
BOG 071221 Strictly Private & Confidential 1 

West Lothian College 
Board of Governors Meeting 

Ref Agenda Item Paper Lead Time 
1. Committee Administration 
1.1 Welcome & Apologies AL 4.30 

1.2 Declaration of any Conflicts of Interest AL 4.32 

1.3 Minutes of Previous Meeting 1 AL 4.35 

1.4 Matters Arising  2 AL 4.40 

2. Matters for Attention 
2.1 
2.2 
2.3 
2.4 

Student Association Report  
Chief Executive Report 
Regional Board Chair’s Feedback 
Strategic Risk Register  

3 
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AL 
SC 

4.45 
4.55 
5.05 
5.10 
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Letter of Representation  
Financial Forecast Return  
Outcome Agreement 2021-22 

6 
7 
8 
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SC 
SC 
MN 
IMcI 

5.55 
6.00 
6.05 
6.10 

4. Committee Matters for Information 
4.1 

4.2 
(i) 

4.3 
(i) 
(ii) 
(iii) 

4.4 
(i) 
(ii) 

Learning and Teaching Committee Update 

Finance and General Purpose Committee Update 
Draft Minutes of Finance & General Purpose Committee 

Audit Committee Update 
Audit Committee Annual Report to the Board of Governors 
External Audit Annual Report 
Health and Safety Report   

Chairs Committee 
Board Development Plan & Recruitment 
Register of Interests 

10 

11 
12 
13 

14 
15 

IMcI 

LH 

SC 

AL 

6.15 

6.20 

6.25 

5. Any Other Business (AOB) AL 6.30 
6. Review of Committee, Supporting Papers LA 
7. Date of Next Meeting:  8 March 2022 AL 

Meeting Date: 7 December 2021:  4.30pm – 6.30pm 

Venue: 
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 
Minute of Meeting of the Board Governors held on Tuesday 21 June at 4.30pm via 
Zoom 
 
Present:  Alex Linkston (Chair) 
   Jackie Galbraith (Principal & Chief Executive) 
   Richard Lockhart 
   Jeanette Dobson 

Iain McIntosh 
Colin Miller 
Elaine Cook 
Moira Niven  
Neil Sinclair 
Julia Simpson 
Tom Bates 
Sue Stahly  

 
In Attendance : Simon Earp (Vice Principal, Performance and Improvement) 
 Sarah-Jane Linton (Vice Principal, Learning and Attainment)  

Jennifer McLaren (Vice Principal, Finance & Corporate Services) 
 Lesley Aitkenhead (Board Governance Advisor) 
 
Agenda Item 8 Bill Dunsmuir (Head of Info Systems & Digital Infrastructure) 
 Tom Thomson (Information Systems Manager) 
 Cheng Hao Kao (Data Scientist) 
 Aaron McKay (Information Systems Officer) 
 
1. Welcome and Apologies 

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.   Apologies were noted from Sue 
Cook, Lynne Hollis, Frank Gribben, Kirsti Clark and Seonaid Crosby.  

 
2. Declarations of Interest 

 
There were no other declarations of interest. 

 
3. Minute of Meeting of 29 June 2021 
 

The Minute of the meeting of the Board of Governors of 29 June 2021 was 
approved as a correct record.  The list of members present was corrected to 
include Elaine Cook and Richard Lockhart. 
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4. Matters Arising from Minute  
 

All matters arising were noted as duly completed or on track.    
 
5. Chief Executive’s Report  

 
The Principal presented Paper 3, highlighting the success of the college in 
receiving 4 award nominations, including the work of the Student Association and 
the Man Cave, promoting mental health. 
 
The board commented on the recent TV, Radio and Social Media Coverage of 
the college, including interviews with the chair of the student association and 
former students.  The board welcome this publicity as a positive reflection on the 
work of the college in supporting vulnerable students.  
 
The Principal commented on the continued discussion on the matter of the 
instructor role, which has gone to the National Joint Council for further 
consideration. 
 
The board noted the discussion at the Finance & General Purpose Committee in 
terms of the work on the Financial Forecast Return (FFR), and the plan to present 
a draft FFR for approval by the Board in October 2021.  The Principal highlighted 
the potential impact of changes on future spending within the college section, 
and the importance of using ‘hard facts’, when lobbying Government Bodies. 
 
Members noted the Chief Executive’s Report.  

 
6. Regional Chair’s Feedback 
 

The Chair updated the board on the work of Colleges Scotland and college 
representation at a number of meetings, including the Strategic Forum, which is 
aimed at enhancing relationships across the college sector. 
 

7. Student Association Report  
 

Board members noted the report from the student association and commented 
on the quality and insight provided, particularly from the observations of the Chair 
and Vice Chair.   The Student Association advised the Board on the success of 
Freshers Week, with over 1,500 ‘hits’ online, and the positive response to the 
creation of a LGBTQ+ community group, and use of the student larder, for 
students facing poverty. 
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The board raised a point around the benefit of other community groups, including 
a BAME community group, which was acknowledged by the student association. 
 
Action 1 SA:  The SA will explore the level of interest in creating other 
community groups, encouraging and enabling peer support. 
 
The student association noted the close working relationship with the Trauma 
Responsive Team, supporting vulnerable students.  The board noted the work of 
the student association to recruit volunteers, and part time support, as cover for 
the vice chair who is on maternity leave.  The board noted the report and thanked 
the Student Association for the quality of the report and update and continued 
enthusiasm. 
 

8. Information Systems & Digital Infrastructure – Power BI 
 

The Chair welcomed members of the Information Systems and Digital 
Infrastructure Team, to provide an update on the work to enhance the colleges 
information systems. 
 
The board noted that the work to develop use of Power BI (MS Data Analytics 
Tool) has been ongoing since 2018, and this presentation is an update on a 5 
year strategic plan.   The board were advised of the benefits of Power BI in pulling 
together complex data sets, using internal and external data sources, as an 
integral part of decision making within the college. 
 
The presenters were able to provide a live demonstration of the tool, using 
college Performance Indicators (PI’s) as an example of the data that is available. 
 
The board welcomed the presentation and live demonstration, noting the benefits 
of the tool, in providing quality insight across a range of topics. 
 
The board raised a question on staff training, noting that this is often an area of 
challenge.  The board were advised that training was being rolled out as part of 
the implementation of Power BI.  The board highlighted the importance of data 
integrity, confidentiality and security, particularly in relation to personal data.  The 
board were advised that this was an area of focus, and that access controls were 
in place and privacy policies had been updated, with oversight by the quality 
assurance team. 
 
Action 2 VP P & I:  Present an update to the Board on the controls for data 
integrity and confidentiality and assurance. 
 
The board noted plans to develop predicative modelling to help identify areas of 
early intervention with students, who may benefit from additional support. 
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The board noted the benefits of this approach and were assured that predicative 
modelling would not be used to predict student success.  The board thanked the 
presenters for a useful demonstration and discussion. 
 

9. Strategic Risk Register 
 

The Vice Principal, Finance & Corporate Services presented a revised Strategic 
Risk Register for approval of the risks and risk tolerance.  The board were 
advised that, once approved, this would be used to capture the risk mitigations 
relative to the Board’s assessment of risk tolerance. 
 
The board discussed the risks noted for the board and committees and confirmed 
they were a fair reflection of the risks for the academic year 2020-21.  The board 
discussed the risk tolerances, particularly in relation to the risks that are 
considered high inherent risk with a low risk tolerance.   
 
Action 3 VP F&CS:  To review the definition of risk tolerance on the 
Strategic Risk Register to ensure the documentation is clear. 
 
The Chair asked each of the committee chairs to confirm agreement to the risks 
presented at each committee and it was confirmed that all the risks were 
considered to be a fair reflection. The Strategic Risk Register was approved. 

 
10. Board Development  

 
The Board Governance Advisor presented the Board Development Plan as a 
consolidation of all Board and Committee Development activity.  The board were 
asked to approve closure for all actions that were noted ‘Recommend to Close’ 
including the action to provide further insight on Cyber Security Arrangements to 
all Board Members, which was agreed by the Audit Committee.  The board 
approved the closure of all actions and noted the paper. 

 
Committee Business 
 
11. Learning and Teaching Committee:  Update from Chair of the Learning and 

Teaching Committee from 8 September 2021 
 

The presentation by the Trauma Responsive Team was noted as a highlight, 
enabling committee members to gain insight into the challenges facing the team 
and many students. 
 
The committee noted the event of curriculum planning on 29 September and the 
presentation by the Workforce Development Team, highlighted as one of the best 
presentations from a staff team at the committee. 
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The committee chair noted the robust discussion on the sector performance, 
including the assurance provided from the actions already completed. 
 
The committee chair welcomed guests to future committees, with positive feedback 
from board members who have attended as guests. 

 
12. Finance and General Purposes Committee:  Update from the Chair of the 

Finance & General Purpose Committee from 9 September 2021. 
 

The presentation by the Children’s Hearings Scotland team was noted as a highlight 
of the Committee, particularly around the ability to respond to changing demands.  
The speed of transition to a digital platform were noted as areas of best practice 
that has been shared across the college.  
 
The committee noted the positive work of the Estates Team and highlighted the 
need for some additional information in the Business Development Report to aid 
discussion.  
 
The committee chair highlighted the formation of the Financial Working Group to 
work through scenario’s for the FFR. 
 
The committee noted the complaints report and recommended that this report is 
presented to future Audit Committees, as an indicator of control effectiveness. 
 

13. Audit Committee: Update from the Chair of the Audit Committee from 24 June 
2021. 

 
The presentation by the Students Funds Team was noted as a highlight of the 
Committee, sharing insight on the work that the team undertake.   
 
The committee noted the Health & Safety Report and the work of the Health & 
Safety Team in keeping the college safe during COVID. The committee agreed to 
extend timelines for minor policy updates, to enable the team to focus on critical 
areas.  An action was agreed to share PREVENT training with Board Members. 
 
A report from the Head of Information Systems and Digital Infrastructure was 
welcomed and provided opportunity to discuss plans to achieve Cyber Essentials 
Plus.    The committee agreed that the report provided by the Head of Information 
Systems and Digital Infrastructure met the objectives of the action raised at the 
Board Strategy Day in May 2021, and provided adequate insight into information 
security arrangements at the college. 
 
The committee noted the required actions in the audit rolling plan and were given 
assurance on the revised deadlines. 
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The committee noted the report from the Internal Audit Team on the Estates Plan 
and asked for the report to be amended for accuracy. 
 
The Internal Auditor provided some insight on the sector update, with an action to 
investigate any possible lessons learned from a recent external event. 
 

14. Nominations Committee:  Update from Chair of Nominations Committee 
from 29 June 2021 

 
The committee noted plans to recruit 2 new Board Members, and recommended 
approval of the proposal to appoint Seonaid Crosby, pending approval from the 
Scottish Government and to complete further recruitment based on the needs 
identified in the skills matrix. 
 
The committee approved the recommendation to combine the responsibilities of the 
Remuneration and Nominations Committees to create a new Chair’s Committee.  
The responsibility to Chair the Chair’s Committee will be shared with the Board 
Chair and Vice Chair, to ensure there is no conflict on matters of remuneration.   
 
The Board approved both recommendations. 
 
Action 4 BGA:  Applications will be sought from Non-Executive Board 
Members for a position on the new Chair’s Committee. 
 

15. AOB 
 

There was no additional business noted. 
 

16. Review of Meeting, Supporting Papers, Development Needs  
 

The Board of Governors were comfortable with the meeting and supporting papers 
presented. 

 
17. Date of Next Meeting  

 
7 December 2021 at 4.30pm and noted plans to arrange the meeting at the college, 
pending confirmation that this complied with Scottish Government guidelines. 



Agenda Item 1.4

Paper 2

Date:  7 December 2021

Board/Committee Meeting Ref Source Action Owner Priority Target Date Status Update

Board 09-Mar-21 B1 Lessons Learned Working through the Pandemic presentation:  The Principal to circulate her pesentation to the Board. Princ 2 30-May-21 Completed Presentation circulated to Board members

Board 09-Mar-21 B2 Board Development Plan
To amend paper 7 to reflect change in wording for 'Removal of Board Members' then circulate for Board 
Approval

BGA 1 30-May-21 Completed

Board 09-Mar-21 B3 F&GP Update To arrange for a Cyber Security Session to be delivered at a Board Meeting BGA 1 06-May-21 Completed Cyber Security Session presented at Board Strategy Day

Board 09-Mar-21 B4 Strategic Risk Register
The risk register will be a standing item at the Board as a discussion paper and the Board will take 
collective responsibility for it.

BGA 1 30-May-21 Completed Strategic Risk Register is standaing agenda item, at each committee 
and Board.

Board 09-Mar-21 B5 Audit Update
To arrange for a presentation from the Info Systems and Digital Infrastructure Team at the September 
Board Meeting.

VPP&I 2 01-Sep-21 Completed Presentation by the Info Systems and Digital Infrastructure Team at 
September Board

Board 29-Jun-21 B7 Committee Remits
The Board Governance Advisor will review the wording of the remit of the Nominations Committee to 
make the responsibility clearer. BGA 2 31-Jul-21 Completed Wording on Nominations Committee updated to make responsibility 

clearer and shared with Board Member and Committee Members.

Board 21-Sep-21 B10 Risk Register
To review the definition of risk tolerance on the Strategic Risk Register to ensure the documentation is 
clear.

VP F&CS 1 07-Dec-21 Completed Meeting between VP F&CS and BGA agreed approach to clarify risk 
tolerance definition, which will be included in Risk Register.

Board 21-Sep-21 B11 Chairs Committee
Applications will be sought from Non-Executive Board Members for a position on the new Chair’s 
Committee.

BGA 1 07-Dec-21 Completed 4 applications received and approach discussed at Ad Hoc Chairs 
Meeting and appointee confirmed.  Appointee to be advised.

Board 21-Sep-21 B9
Info Systems & Digital 
Infrastructure Update

Present an update to the Board on the controls for data integrity and confidentiality and assurance. VP P&I 1 31-Dec-21 On Track

Assurance over the effectiveness of the controls for data integrity, 
confidentiality is part of the internal audit plan and will be presented 
to the Audit Committee and Board as part of the rolling plan.  Any 
issues arising from data confidentiality are reported to the Audit 
Committee and Board on an ongoing basis, with immediate escalation 
of anything material.  Action closed, and covered under ongoing Audit 
Plan.

Board 29-Jun-21 B6 Statement of Ambition Principal to include feedback in response to Statement of Ambition and share with Board Members. Princ 1 21-Sep-21 On Track

Board 21-Sep-21 B8 Student Association Report
The SA will explore the level of interest in creating other community groups, encouraging and enabling 
peer support.

Student 
Association

2 31-Dec-21 On Track

The Student Association has tried to engage with the LGBTQ+ 
community and have arranged an online and in-person events, but 
with limited response.  BGA has agreed with SA to contact other 
colleges for any approaches taken to engage and build diverse 
community networks within the college.  

ACTION: For Attention

West Lothian College
Matters Arising - Board & Committees - Action Tracker

Strictly Private Confidential



Action: For Attention  Agenda Item 2.1 
 

Paper 3 
West Lothian College 
  07 December 2021 
 
 

BOG/071221/Sharepoint 1 
 

Board of Governors  
 
STUDENT ASSOCIATION REPORT 
 
Introduction  
 
This report aims to provide an overview of the activities of the Student Association 
(SA) for the period September to November 2021, focusing on the five Student 
Association Strategic Aims, set by the Student Association at the end of academic 
year 2020-21 (see Appendix 1). A three-year Student Association Strategic Plan has 
been created and the learning and teaching report been adapted to reflect the SA 
priorities. This new format will be utilised to report on SA activity and hold the SA to 
account in terms to achieving the SA priorities set by the students.  
 
Aim 1: Student Association and Strong Leadership  
 
Sub-aims: 
 
• Governance and Policy 
• Structure 
• Training 
• Self-evaluation and evaluation 

 
Governance and Policy 
 
An operational plan has been implemented to ensure that there is clear guidance 
and support for officers, with calendar dates of committees, monthly agreed priorities 
and activities, and details of how and why officers will measure effectiveness.  
 
Structure (Officers, Ambassadors and Volunteers) 
 
This academic year, the SA saw an increased number of students interested in 
volunteering with the Student Association.  
 
The SA also received five Executive Officer nominations from students for three 
available positions. Elections were run to ensure that a democratic process was 
followed and to ensure that students were able to vote for those who they felt best 
represent them. 88 student votes were cast and we would like to formally 
congratulate: 
 
• Vicky Cunningham (Access to Nursing)  
• Aaron Hume (Prep for FE/ Employment)  
• Arron Flanagan (Access to Teaching)  
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In addition, 17 students submitted applications for the roles of SA Ambassador. All 
applicants were interviewed by the Student President and were successful for the 
role.  
 
All Executive Officers and Ambassadors will be involved in Aim 2 Representation 
and Student Voice. Our Ambassadors help to represent the student voice and are 
cross-college student volunteers.  
 
In addition, each Executive Officer and Ambassador chose the SA aims they most 
wanted to be involved in whilst in post.  
 
We monitor which faculties our ambassadors volunteer from and are looking at ways 
of encouraging students to volunteer from less represented areas. This year that 
includes Sport and Fitness, Hair and Beauty, Hospitality, Creative Industries and 
Automotive. Students from these areas are, however, participating on our online 
Teams Channels.  
 
A summary of all posts and their chosen areas of interest is shown below (some 
students appear in more than one column): 
 
Mental Health and Wellbeing 
 

Equality, Diversity and 
Student Community 
 

Sustainability and 
Technology  
 

Executive Officer Lead 
Vicky Cunningham 

Executive Officer Lead 
Arron Flanagan 
 

Executive Officer Lead 
Aaron Hume 

Kieren McLean  
NC Business Management 
SCQF Level 6 

Kieren McLean 
NC Business Management 
SCQF Level 6 

Mary Connell 
Prep Health and Social Care 
SCQF Level 5 

Sarah Louise Tait 
HNC Care and Administrative 
Practice Group 2  
SCQF Level 7 

Mary Connell 
Prep Health and Social 
Care SCQF Level 5 

Mahsa Talebzaden 
HNC Computing  
SCQF Level 7 

Tyelar Dunn 
Pre-apprentice Carpentry and 
Joinery Level 5 

Dean Allan 
HNC Electrical 
Engineering SCQF Level 7 

Emma Drummond 
HND Business SCQF Level 8 

Emma Drummond 
HND Business SCQF Level 8 

Charmaine McNab 
NQ Access to Teaching 
SCQF Level 6 

Dean Allan 
HNC Electrical Engineering 
SCQF Level 7 

Catherine McNeil 
Access to Health and Social 
Care SCQF  

Evelina Diceviciute 
NQ Access to Nursing 
SCQF Level 6 

Charmaine McNab 
NQ Access to Teaching 
SCQF Level 6 
 

Charmaine McNab 
NQ Access to Teaching  
SCQF Level 6 

Sophie Watt 
NQ Access to Nursing 
SCQF Level 6 

Sophie Watt 
NQ Access to Nursing  
SCQF Level 6 
 



Action: For Attention  Agenda Item 2.1 
 

Paper 3 
West Lothian College 
  07 December 2021 
 
 

BOG/071221/Sharepoint 3 
 

Evelina Diceviciute 
NQ Access to Nursing  
SCQF Level 6 

Aaron Hume  
Prep for FE/ Employment 
SCQF Level 4 

 

Sophie Watt 
NQ Access to Nursing  
SCQF Level 6 

Laura Borst 
HND Business  
SCQF Level 7 

 

 
The newly elected Executive Officers and SA President will make up the Executive 
Team and are the decision makers of the Student Association.  
 
Each Executive Officer will lead the group of Ambassadors, as indicated above, 
which will align to the strategic plan. This provides these students with an opportunity 
to develop leadership skills, support the ambassadors and play a pivotal role in 
working towards aims and objectives that are important to them.  
 
This new structure will ensure that leadership and decision-making is spread across 
the team, to ensure students are represented across the college. This new 
collaborative approach will alleviate pressures on all student officers, enable time to 
focus on student priorities and support Ambassadors with more specific aims. 
We have already had feedback that the strategic plan has provided a more 
structured approach to these roles.  
 
In addition to the volunteer roles, a part-time admin assistant was recruited to 
support the SA while the elected Vice President is on maternity leave. This was 
advertised as a staff role, for current students only. Three students applied for the 
position and were interviewed. Ryan Hollinsworth was successful and is already 
showing himself as an asset to the team. Ryan was a SA Executive Officer last year, 
so has a full understanding and experience of the SA. 
 
Training 
 
SA leadership training was updated to reflect the new way of working and support 
officers. 
 
• 14 Ambassadors received training for their SA role. 
• 3 Executive Officers received training for their SA role. 
• 3 students participated in C-Card training (another session will be arranged) 
• 11 students successfully participated in Scottish Mental Health First Aid training 

on Wednesday 20 October. Two further sessions have been arranged for 
November and March. 

• 10 West Lothian Drug and Alcohol sessions have been arranged for 
cross-college classes this year to raise awareness and prevent misuse.  
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Aim 2: Representation and Student Voice 
 
• SPARKLE (Learning and Teaching Evaluation)  
• MS Teams channels 
• Surveys and accessible forums 
• Committee and Board Membership 
• Support students with college policy and procedures  
• Communicate effectively  
• Partnership working with West Lothian College  

 
SPARKLE (Learning and Teaching evaluation) 
 
SPARKLE is our award-winning Student Association survey, and it stands for 
Student, Participation, Alliance, Representation, Knowledge, Learning and 
Evaluation).  
 
In the past, we have run SPARKLE twice a year but it was recognised that this may 
have created survey fatigue for students. In 2021-22, SPARKLE will only be 
presented once. Instead, the Scottish Funding Council survey ‘Student Satisfaction 
and Engagement Survey’ (SSES) which is released in March will include four SA 
questions relating to feedback, assessment, progression, and achievement which 
would normally have been the focus of the second SPARKLE.  
 
SPARKLE will run from 1 to 30 November and data will be analysed week 
commencing 6 December 2021 and distributed to Faculty Directors and Learning 
and Skills Managers for follow up with classes. Results will be made available to the 
Learning and Teaching Committee in the February 2022 report. 
 
This year, we have once again revised SPARKLE to ensure it is fit for purpose. The 
SA worked with our Information Systems Manager, Tom Thomson, and Data 
Scientist, Cheng Hao Kao, to create a Power Automate process which will link 
SPARKLE into Power BI, the college data reporting tool. Data will be available on 
Power BI and, although the view will be limited to SA members until analysed, this is 
a new and exciting way to collect the data and will significantly reduce reporting time, 
increase accuracy of information, and will still be anonymised prior to reports being 
distributed to faculties, if required. We are also able to implement sentiment analysis 
for the first time, to enable us to better analyse qualitative feedback, which has been 
more difficult to do before. 
 
This year, along with learning and teaching questions, the SA have asked students 
to evaluate the extent to which college staff/services/SA demonstrate the college 
values. This will help us to evaluate customer service whilst also communicating 
again our shared values, Welcoming to All, Students at the Centre of All We Do and 
Always Striving For Better.  
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MS Teams Channels  
 
Due to the success of the last academic year and ongoing hybrid approach to 
learning, SA Microsoft Teams channels have been relaunched for 2021-22.  
 
From 1 September to 22 October, engagement with the channel was as follows: 
 
Total Users 2980 Total Users 
Active Users 2035 Active Users 
Inactive Users 945  
Overall Engagement  120 Posts, 97 replies, 59 mentions and 280 reactions  

 
These channels have been judged to be successful and we will continue to grow our 
online student community.  
 
The SA hosted its first ever virtual Freshers Fair in September 2021, which was an 
immense success. The fair was launched on a webpage in MS Teams. Data 
confirmed that there were 2863 hits to this page during the overall week.  
 
Support and representation 
 
The SA will be available to support students, answer enquiries online via MS Teams, 
email, phone or in person. This also includes support with appeals and complaints 
where these arise and support is required. 
 
The following provides a summary of the sources and types of queries between 
August – October: 
 
Source Number of Queries  
Digital (Email/ Messenger/ MS Teams) 97 
Face to Face/Phone  63 
Total 160 

 
Source Number of Queries  
Laptop loan requests & IT Issues   1 
Student Cards including lanyards 7 
Student Association (Roles/Clubs/Ideas) 62  
SA Room/ facilities/Chat 23 
Health and Wellbeing Support   12 
Finance/Money/Bus related 16  
Complaints 4 
Sign posting to services/ Referrals 14 internal referrals  

19 external referrals 
Other 2 
Total 160 
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In each case, students were signposted to appropriate college services, tutor support 
or external agencies as appropriate.    
 
Communication, ensuring communication is accessible and understandable 
 
The SA aims to ensure all communication to students is accessible, understandable, 
and up to date. The President and Development Officer attend a weekly student 
retention meeting to discuss matters of importance and draft a weekly student 
communication which is agreed by this group and advertised on MS Teams to all 
students. This is well received by students and evidenced in MS Teams engagement 
figures, as communicated previously within this report.  
 
However, the SA is being cautious to ensure that communication will take the form of 
a variety of methods to ensure that it is accessible for all students. Training for the 
new internal plasma screens takes place on at the end of October. This will enable 
internal visuals to be created and visible from the SA plasma screens for all 
students.  
 
Partnership working  
 
Working in partnership with the college is key to ensure that the SA Officers are 
supported and can fulfil objectives to meet the needs of the students. Working in 
partnership with the college will ensure strength in student voice, a more focused 
approach and ensure students are at the centre of everything we do. Our Executive 
Officers have now joined staff groups such as the newly formed Mental and Physical 
Health and Wellbeing group, Equality and Diversity group (Divers and Dive in) and 
the COP26 Net Zero group. All these groups will encourage and support a 
partnership working approach between staff and students, working collaboratively 
on joint priorities. 
 
Aim 3: Equality and Diverse Student Community  
 
• Student Community 
• Student Poverty 
• Safeguarding 
 
A group of eight SA Ambassadors led by an Arron Flanagan, our elected Executive 
Officer, have joined the DIVE in and DIVERS groups and will work in partnership 
with staff to collaboratively create and promote events and campaigns.  
 
Arron has created a written piece about what equality and diversity means, as part of 
his executive officer training, which will be added to the college website. In addition, 
as requested by our Estates and Sustainability colleagues, this group will also 
evaluate the effectiveness of the sanitary provision offered in the college and a video 
on how to use some of the items. 
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The newly created LGBT Club, Phoenix was launched in September for students 
and now has 16 members. Dates were set for a meeting which allowed both virtual 
and in person attendance, however sadly nobody attended. The SA requested that 
members complete a survey to communicate how they wish the club to be run, which 
included options such as peer support, workshops, and regular activities. 
 
Ambassadors led by Arron will evaluate the results of the survey and help support 
this club. 
 
Student Community 
 
It is essential for students to feel that they are part of a student community. The 
Student Association physical office and virtual online space has seen 160 enquiries 
and an additional 97 responses to online posts (excluding likes and reactions to 
posts and comments). The SA are also investigating how more clubs can be run on 
campus to encourage a community feel and student participation. Further 
information will be included as this progresses. 
 
Student Poverty 
 
The Student Association will continue to support students by signposting them to 
relevant services which include bursaries and external partners such as The Larder, 
River Kids, Clothing Bank, Food Bank, C Card and by other supportive means where 
appropriate.  
 
There have been four Larder referrals with weekly uptake, regular larder referrals, 
12 Recharge packs distributed (health and wellbeing goodie bags including student 
tips and advice for survival at college).  
 
From week commencing 1 November, the SA will start to promote practical support 
for students which will include: Recharge and the Welfare Hub, The Larder (free 
home cooked meals), River Kids (Christmas appeal), Food Bank, West Lothian 
School Clothing Bank (School uniforms for children in West Lothian schools), 
C Card, sanitary products. In addition, The Man Cave, TogetherAll and Nightline will 
all be promoted. This support campaign will run until mid-December, prior to the 
Christmas break.  
 
This will ensure that students have support in the run up to Christmas and over the 
holiday period, when the SA is aware it can be difficult and when student poverty and 
poor mental health can be overwhelming.  
 
Safeguarding 
 
The Student Association Executive Team will attend Mental Health First Aid Training 
on 20 November, if they have not previously attended a session. SA Ambassadors 
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and students will also be offered the opportunity to attend training throughout the 
academic year. It is essential that the SA Officers are aware of the staff safeguarding 
team so able to effectively signpost students.  
 
All SA Officers have undergone basic safeguarding training. This is being further 
developed to provide certificated modules to Ambassadors and Executive Officers, 
which have been copied and adapted from the mandatory staff training. This will be 
beneficial to Officers and Ambassadors providing a more in-depth training and a 
certificate for employment, course progression or for CV/UCAS application 
statements. 
 
In addition, the SA has been working with Police Scotland to ensure further staff/SA 
training is arranged to support our college being a Third Party Reporting (TPR) 
Centre for Hate Crime. This training is due to take place in December. This provides 
students and members of the public a safe place to report a non-urgent ‘Hate Crime.’ 
Nineteen staff have signed up to attend this training, including Vice Principals, 
Directors, Learning and Skills Managers, support staff and our Student President. 
 
Aim 4: Student Health and Wellbeing  
 
• Creation of a Student Mental Health Agreement/ HBHM (Healthy Body Healthy 

Mind) Award  
• Hosting Events, Campaigns and Support 
• Ensuring suitable Student Association spaces  
• Providing welfare hub and Recharge 
• Training and support 
 
Student Mental Health  
 
A group of staff and Ambassadors led by Executive Officer Vicky Cunningham, has 
been created to focus on Mental and Physical Health and Wellbeing.  
 
The group will establish clear aims, objectives and discuss opportunities which 
include the development of a Student Mental Health Agreement and the possibility of 
taking part in the Healthy Body Healthy Mind award, as well as opportunities with 
See Me and other external organisations.  
 
This is an exciting opportunity to collaborate with cross-college staff and students to 
discuss the fantastic work that happens cross-college and embed further practice 
into the college to further improve student health and wellbeing.  
 
Recharge  
 
The SA is working with the Sports and Fitness Department this year to trial a new 
project in addition to Recharge support document. The ‘Recharge group’ is aimed at 
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those who wish to lose weight, improve fitness levels as well as improving physical 
and psychological wellbeing. The sessions will take place twice a week over an 
eight-week period in ‘Endurance’ (College Gym). The practical sessions may include 
gym sessions, flexibility training, circuit training, floor work. Alternative methods such 
as breathing techniques and Progressive Muscular Relaxation may also be offered. 
Sixteen cross-college students have volunteered to take part in this project.  
 
The impact of this project will be evaluated and early results available in the next 
report to the Learning and Teaching Committee. 
 
Aim 5: Sustainability and Technology 
 
• Commitment to reduce our carbon footprint 
• Educate, raise awareness, and create action 
• New Technology 
 
Commitment to reduce SA Carbon Footprint 
 
The Student President, a team of Ambassadors and Aaron Hume, Executive Officer, 
will work in partnership with college staff, in the COP26 working group, to establish 
ways of reducing our carbon footprint and becoming more environmentally friendly. 
Several ambassadors have volunteered to support volunteer projects regarding 
COP26 activity and look forward working with this group on longer term projects. 
The SA team are running their own campaign alongside these activities to make 
survival blankets, by collecting empty crisp packets. It takes 80 years for a crisp 
packet to decompose and empty packets can be made into survival blankets for 
homeless people. Ironing 150 packets together can keep sleeping bags dry and 
insulated and these will be made and donated by the SA. 
 
Conclusion  
 
The SA would like to offer thanks to the Senior Leadership Team, Beth Brownlee 
and Micole Cochrane for continuous support and encouragement. 
  
There is a lot of work underway and the SA is committed to continuously improve, 
develop and represent the Student Voice.   
 
Despite the current restrictions, the SA is working well and is excited about the 
potential of the new team to achieve their vision.  
 
The Student President would like to continue to share her experience in the role in 
Appendix 2. 
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Recommendation  
 
The Board of Governors are asked to note this report.  
  
 
 
Jinty Dobson 
Student Association President 
07 December 2021 
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Appendix 1: Student Association Strategic Aims for 2021-22 
 
Aim 1: Student Association and Strong Leadership  
 
Sub-aims: 
• Governance and Policy 
• Structure 
• Training 
• Self-evaluation and evaluation 
 
Aim 2: Representation and Student Voice 
 
Sub-aims: 
• SPARKLE (Learning and Teaching Evaluation)  
• MS TEAMS Channels 
• Surveys and accessible forums 
• Committee and Board Membership 
• Support students with college policy and procedures  
• Communicate effectively  
• Partnership working with West Lothian College  
 
Aim 3: Equality and Diverse Student Community  
 
Sub-aims: 
• Student Community 
• Student Poverty 
• Safeguarding 
 
Aim 4: Student Health and Wellbeing  
 
Sub-aims: 
• Creation of a Student Mental Health Agreement/ HBHM (Healthy Body Healthy 

Mind) Award  
• Hosting Events, Campaigns and Support 
• Ensuring suitable Student Association spaces  
• Providing welfare hub and Recharge 
• Training and support 
 
Aim 5: Sustainability and Technology 
 
Sub-aims: 
• Commitment to reduce our carbon footprint 
• Educate, raise awareness, and create action# 
• New Technology 
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Appendix 2: Student President Ongoing Experience 
 
The continued experience of the Student President, Jinty Dobson. 
 
I would like to provide you all with a wee update on my progress. I have loved 
working in the office, it is much better than working online. I have enjoyed engaging 
with the students and I feel that I can really be there for them. This can be just for a 
cuppa and a chat or be there to talk through some personal issues that the students 
want to get off their chest. I love working one-to-one and in groups and feel that the 
students really do engage better when in college. 
 
The students love coming into the student association during break times and love to 
make wonderful use of our new office space, that is so welcoming to all. They love 
having someone to talk to and others come in just to see how I am doing. Students 
have said they feel like being part of something, a family community feel, which is 
really what the student association is all about. 
 
Since Kirsti has been on maternity leave, if I am being honest, I have been so busy 
with students, I have not really had a lot of time to miss her. There is always 
something going on or someone around. Ryan Hollinsworth is going to be helping 
with the admin in the SA office for 10 hours a week and Micole has been working so 
hard in the background to make sure me, ambassadors, exec officers and everything 
we do is working and we are ok, as well as all the online stuff.  
 
We are just building up to SPARKLE and Xmas support and referrals, so it will 
continue to be a busy time. I am looking forward to being Santa Claus again this 
year, helping students. It's time to get the winter woollies out, so donated jackets will 
be available for students, should they need one.  
 
Our full SA team is now up and running. I am really excited about that. I am really 
pleased with the way we have changed it this year, having an executive officer lead 
on one SA objective each.  
 
I feel brilliant, energised, and positive to where we were heading, and we have a 
great team this year. I felt really confident about delivering the training, as I know 
what I am talking about, and I feel I am a really strong leader.  
 
I feel confident that we can accomplish anything this year. My executive team and 
ambassador team are really strong and I feel confident we will have some great 
possible candidates for next year.  
 
I have been working closely with the Trauma Responsive Practice team and one 
particular student who is coming on leaps and bounds. I am immensely proud to say, 
what a talented team there is, working alongside me, in particular Margaret Forisky, 
Sarah Jane Linton, and Lorna Jenkins. They have supported me and helped this 
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student to try to maintain some positive experiences and life chances to gain 
opportunities and stay out of prison. With the student's permission, I managed to get 
them a drug counsellor alongside working with our own college counsellor. I also got 
the student moved from his permanent property, which he is fleeing violence from, to 
wait for permanent housing.  
 
I am first line of contact for this student, and they feel very safe and secure working 
with me. I love every minute of this line of work. The student is due in High Court in 
November, and I will go to support them through this case and any other business 
that comes up.  
 
This student is making steady progress in moving forward and we are incredibly 
pleased with this. 
 
I feel as though I am leaving a legacy behind, and my time has been worthwhile. I 
am really grateful and couldn’t have got to where I am without the help and support 
from Micole Cochrane, Sarah Jane Linton, Margaret Forisky and Lorna Jenkins. I 
have had a lot of praise and support from Jackie Galbraith too, and that has meant 
the world to me, as it is coming from the Principal.  
 
I look back a year and to where I am now, it is amazing. I have accomplished things I 
could never have ever thought I could do in my lifetime, and I can see a bright future. 
I wasn’t sure where I was going before and now, I know. My leadership skills have 
improved, and I am so proud of who I have become. Not a bossy boss, just me! 
 
As we are fast approaching the new academic year, I am hoping that there may be 
job opportunities in the college in this field, as this is the line of work I would love to 
do. 
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Board of Governors 
  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT – OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2021 
 
Ministerial visit 
 
Jamie Hepburn MSP, Minister for Further and Higher Education visited the  
campus last month to meet employees, apprentices and employers benefiting 
from our courses. He was very impressed by how well we have responded to the 
needs of employers and how we have supported people affected by job losses as 
a result of the pandemic (https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rxcYCWyHFeo). 
 
Building an evidence-based case for growth 
 
In recent months, I have been collating evidence to create a compelling case for 
additional credits to be allocated to the college from the Scottish Funding Council 
(SFC). Based on growing demand and actual delivery in 2020-21 (49,632  
credits), our starting point is that we should receive an annual allocation of 50,000 
credits.   
 
In parallel with working with the vice principals to develop this business case, I 
have met key influencers to rehearse the findings from our initial analysis of the 
evidence. In addition to regular discussions with our SFC Outcome Agreement 
manager, I had separate individual meetings with SFC’s chief executive and the 
Director of Policy, Insight and Analytics to highlight our case for growth. 
 
One of our local MSPs, Fiona Hyslop met me on campus in October and we 
spoke about the growth potential of our college. That week, in a debate in  
parliament, she said: 
 
“On Monday, I visited West Lothian College, which is ready, able and willing to 
gear up at scale training for new building standards and retrofitting skills in an 
area of growing population. We need the Government to ensure that the Scottish 
Funding Council can be equally as agile at funding colleges in order to scale up 
quickly”. 
 
When Jamie Hepburn visited the college last month I spoke to him about the 
growing demand we were facing and how consistently we have exceeded our 
credit targets over many years. It was helpful on that day that he heard employers 
reinforce how vital our college was. 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rxcYCWyHFeo
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Award nominations 
 
CDN (College Development Network) announced the finalists in their 2021 Col-
lege Awards. Of the 36 finalists selected from 150 entries, our college has been 
shortlisted in four categories: 
 
• Student of the Year Award – Aaron Hume (https://youtu.be/qdnbRu2Usls) 
• Health and Wellbeing Award – The Man Cave (https://youtu.be/9nQ23EyiJG0 

and https://youtu.be/HM4jk3vmjkU) 
• Employer Connections Award and Innovation Award – A national response to 

supporting key workers at risk of unemployment 
(https://youtu.be/FX6VAm_3iP8). 

 
The awards ceremony takes place in Glasgow on 9 December. 
 
Covid19 
 
To further prevent the spread of Covid19 on campus, the college is investing 
£80,000 in 150 carbon dioxide monitors and sensors that link to and are run 
through our building management system. This will allow us to obtain automatic 
readings in all areas of the college at any time of the day. 
 
Scottish Funding Council (SFC) 
 
Additional Funding  
 
We received confirmation from SFC of additional credits and funding to deliver 
Skills Boost courses and Accelerated HNCs in this academic year to support the 
aims of the Young Person’s Guarantee and National Transition Training Fund. 
We will receive £780,496 (for delivery and student funding) to deliver an  
additional 1,552 credits. This will enable us to help meet the government’s  
commitment to young people and support more people in West Lothian who have 
been affected by disruption in the economy due to Covid19.  
 
Audited Credit Activity for 2020-21 
 
Earlier this month, following the annual audit of our credit activity, I signed off our 
final credit delivery of 49,632 credits in 2020-21 against a target of 46,709. Yet 
again, we exceeded our credit target which demonstrates very clearly the growing 
demand for our courses. 
 
 
 
 

https://youtu.be/9nQ23EyiJG0
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College Leaver Destinations 2019-20 
 
The SFC College Leaver Destinations 2019-20 report published on 26 October 
2021 showed that 97.3% of West Lothian College leavers moved onto positive  
 
destinations compared with a sector average of 93.8%. Positive destinations of 
our leavers improved on 2018-19 by 0.6 percentage points, whereas positive  
destinations across the sector decreased by 1.3 percentage points over the same 
period. 
 
Student Satisfaction and Engagement Survey 2020-21 
 
On 2 November, SFC published national statistics from the 2020-21 Student Sat-
isfaction and Engagement Survey. Overall satisfaction amongst our students was 
88.8% compared with a sector average of 85.8%. While this was slightly down on 
the 90.2% satisfaction rate in the last year that students were surveyed (2018-
19), it is a testimony to the extraordinary efforts of staff that it remained so high in 
such a disrupted year.  
 
Raising the profile of the college 
 
During the period covered by this report we had two articles published in The 
Scotsman. The first described the progress we have made on outdoor learning 
that you can read this at https://www.scotsman.com/news/opinion/columnists/if-
you-go-down-to-the-woods-today-you-just-might-find-classes-in-full-swing-anna-
styles-3391241.  
 
The other celebrated our graduates’ success and is available at 
https://www.scotsman.com/news/opinion/columnists/superhero-students-against-
the-odds-jackie-galbraith-3458227. These articles are attached in Appendix 1 for 
ease of access. 
 
We continue to have good coverage in the West Lothian Courier, for example 
with a special edition featuring a two-page graduation special given to all  
graduates, a 4-page feature following the ceremony and a 2-page article on the 
Minister’s visit. 
 
In November, we had four pages of coverage in The Bulletin that celebrated the 
college’s twenty years in Livingston. Articles featured former students, staff and 
recent developments in the college. 
 
BBC Scotland came onto campus to make a film about our work to make college 
an alternative for young people at risk of a custodial sentence. They filmed  
current and former students along with our Student President. The piece received 
extensive coverage on BBC Scotland TV and radio news.  

https://www.scotsman.com/news/opinion/columnists/if-you-go-down-to-the-woods-today-you-just-might-find-classes-in-full-swing-anna-styles-3391241
https://www.scotsman.com/news/opinion/columnists/if-you-go-down-to-the-woods-today-you-just-might-find-classes-in-full-swing-anna-styles-3391241
https://www.scotsman.com/news/opinion/columnists/if-you-go-down-to-the-woods-today-you-just-might-find-classes-in-full-swing-anna-styles-3391241
https://www.scotsman.com/news/opinion/columnists/superhero-students-against-the-odds-jackie-galbraith-3458227
https://www.scotsman.com/news/opinion/columnists/superhero-students-against-the-odds-jackie-galbraith-3458227
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Graduation ceremony 
  
Over 500 graduates, families and friends, special guests and staff attended our 
graduation ceremony on 23 October. Adhering to Covid19 guidelines, graduates  
 
were socially distanced in the sports hall, with guests distributed across the  
Campus Cafe, Information Point and the conference suite in No.4 in the Square 
watching the ceremony live on big screens. Feedback was overwhelmingly  
positive. 
 
At the ceremony, I announced two lifetime college ambassadors – Jim Johnstone, 
Head of Communities and Social Impact at Morrison Construction, and Roddy 
McKenzie, Global Director of Continuous Improvement at Catalent Pharma  
Solutions. They join our existing ambassadors, Donna Paterson-Harvie and John 
McGee. Our lifetime ambassadors give generously to the college in terms of their 
time, support for our students and resources. 
 
The remainder of this report provides Board members with examples of the  
progress we are making on our four strategic goals, particularly in the last three 
months. This is not an exhaustive list and members are encouraged to read my 
weekly update for further examples of how we are achieving our goals and living 
our values. 
 
Leading with Vision and Empathy 
 
As part of our Eliminating Poverty through Trauma Responsive Action, colleagues 
have been participating in SMILE Counselling’s Mental Wellbeing and Health 
training. Supported by additional funding from the Scottish Funding Council for 
staff and student mental health and wellbeing, we have identified training to help 
all staff develop strategies for building resilience. The day of resilience training is 
an opportunity to equip staff with skills and strategies for their personal wellbeing 
and to handle workload and work stressors. 
 
During COP26 we held a volunteering week for staff and students, during which 
outdoor activity took place on and off campus. On parts of our campus, we now 
have a Bug Hotel, a Hedgehog Home and a number of Air-Bee-and-Bees located 
in a wildflower patch. Students and staff also planted more trees on campus and 
cleared out areas in parks across West Lothian.  
 
Inspiring and Enabling Success for All  
 
Our Hospitality team arranged three-day work placements for all Level 6 and 
HNC Professional Cookery students with a range of outstanding employers  
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including Gleneagles. In addition, some students gained invaluable experience 
through working with the prestigious team of chefs at Edinburgh’s Sheraton Hotel 
in support of the Hospitality Industry Trust Scholarship Awards event. While our 
students have been volunteering at these events for seven years, this year we 
played a larger role with ten students working in the kitchens for four days at the  
 
hotel to prepare and plate food for 350 guests. Two of this year’s HNC  
Professional Cookery graduates, Tyler Watson and Nathan McCrimmon, secured 
jobs at The Balmoral Hotel. 
 
Computing lecturer Christine Eckford was a finalist in the Cyber Educator  
category at last month’s Scottish Cyber Awards. She was recognised for her work 
with neurodivergent young people on cyber security courses.  
 
Further enhancements to our learning estate are improving facilities for students 
on campus. Over the last two months, we have installed a further three covered 
gazebos in the college square, sliding doors in the Campus Cafe to make it a  
flexible space for student conferences and other events, and outdoor washing 
machines and dryer. During our COP26 volunteering week, students and staff 
started work on a second forest classroom.  
 
Supporting Economic Recovery and Growth 
 
Further Education Minister Jamie Hepburn MSP visited our college in October in 
the week that National Transition Training Fund (NTTF) allocations for 2021-22 
were announced for colleges. He spoke to Scottish Ambuance Service mobile 
testing unit staff about the benefits of the bespoke course created by the college 
that was funded through the NTTF.  
 
The college was successful in a bid to West Lothian Council’s Place Based  
Investment Fund for a sustainable construction skills training centre. We were 
awarded £493k to build a critical component of the centre which will be a semi-
detached house designed in two styles - one built using traditional construction 
methods, the other built to passive house standards with renewable energy 
sources to achieve a zero-carbon capability. The training centre will be designed 
and built in conjunction with our industry partners, with the twin design enabling 
students and employees to be trained in two areas where there are significant 
current and future skills shortages - reducing the carbon emissions of existing 
houses by retrofitting, and using new construction techniques and low carbon 
technologies in future new builds.  
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Strengthening our Communities 
 
We launched our Trust Project in November, a wraparound service to support 
students who have, or have had, experience of trauma in their lives. There are 
three strands to the Trust project:  
 
• Helping students who are not enrolled on full-time courses into education or 

employment 
• Our Eliminating Poverty project, funded by the Scottish Funding Council, to 

support 200 full-time students and their families 
• Students within the justice system who are ready to embark on their chosen 

career and use college as a stepping stone.  
  
The Trust team is working with partners to break down barriers and widen 
access. Through the project we aim to enable students to work towards positive 
management of their life experiences and consider opportunities to support their 
future plans to progress to the next stage in their employability pipeline.  
 
Staff News 
 
After nearly thirty years of service at the college our Director of our Care, Health 
and Sport faculty, Claire Glen has been successful in securing a promoted role at 
Glasgow Clyde College. She starts her new role in January and I would like to 
thank Claire for her hard work and commitment over the years. 
 
Finally, last month we said a very sad farewell to one of our colleagues who died 
suddenly after a short illness. Elaine Smith worked in our Information Systems 
team and had been at the college for nearly four years. She was a much-liked 
and well-respected colleague, and will be missed by all of us.  
 
 
Jackie Galbraith 
Principal and Chief Executive 
7 December 2021 
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APPENDIX A – SCOTSMAN ARTICLES SEPTEMBER TO NOVEMBER 2021 
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Board of Governors 

RISK REGISTER 2021-22 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this paper is to set out proposed changes to the risk 
management arrangements and to ask the Board to discuss and agree that 
the risk mitigations are sufficient to mitigate against the risks as set out in the 
2021-22 risk register. 
 
Risk management process 2020-21 
 
At the September 2020 meeting of the Board of Governors, the Board agreed 
the following process: 
 
• Each committee of the board has ownership of the risks aligned with their 

remit.   
• The audit committee has oversight of the entire strategic risk register.   
• The strategic risk register is a standing item at the board as a discussion 

paper and the board takes collective responsibility for the register. 
Assurances are given from the Audit, Learning and Teaching and Finance 
and General Purposes Committees that they are satisfied with the risk 
mitigations. 

 
Risk management process 2021-22 
 
For 2021-22 a new process is proposed which is: 

• The entire Strategic Risk Register will be presented as an agenda item at 
every Board of Governors meeting for approval of any material changes  

• The discussion will be facilitated by the Chair of Audit Committee, with 
input from all the Committee Chairs, Independent Person and Board 
Members   

• The Strategic Risk Register will be presented with an executive summary 
(heat map), which will highlight material changes, and key themes or 
topics, on a rolling schedule 

• Papers relating to the effectiveness of the control environment i.e. 
performance indicators, HR Report, Finance Reports will continue to be 
presented to the Committees, providing the Committee Chairs and 
Members with insight on the Strategic Risk Register, but the Register will 
not be presented as a separate agenda item at the Committees. 
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The Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges states that the Audit 
Committee must support the board and the principal by reviewing the 
comprehensiveness, reliability and integrity of assurances including the 
body’s governance, risk management and internal control framework. 

Given the Audit Committee remit the revised process was discussed at the 
meeting held on 2 December 2021 and is recommended for approval by the 
Committee. 

Risk register 2021-22 

Overall, the Risk Profile remains within the agreed Board Risk Tolerance, with 
1 Red Risk (3.2 Pay Awards), which reflects industry wide discussions on 
terms and conditions.   Of the 23 Strategic Risks, one new risk has been 
identified (6.4 disaster recovery plans), 8 remain stable, 5 have reduced and 9 
have increased to reflect the early stage in the new academic year.   

Action 
 
The Board of Governors is to agree: 
 
• the revised process for 2021-22  
• that the risk mitigations are sufficient to mitigate against the risks as set 

out in the 2021-22 risk register. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services 
7 December 2021 



Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 
 

 

 

West Lothian College 
 

Strategic Risk Register 
2021-22 

 
 
 



 

Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 

Executive Summary – Board Strategic Risk Register 

Overall Summary:  The table reflects an updated Risk Profile for the new academic year 2021-2022.  Overall, the Risk Profile remains within the agreed Board Risk 
Tolerance, with 1 Red Risk - 3.2 Pay Awards, which reflects industry wide discussions on terms and conditions.   Of the 23 Strategic Risks, one new risk One new risk has 
been identified – 6.4 in relation to disaster recovery plans; 8 remain stable, 5 have reduced and 9 have increased to reflect the start of the new academic year.  The 
heatmap below highlights all risks with an Amber or Red Rating only.  Further details on all risks and mitigating actions is shown below, with a summary by Risk Category: 

 

 

 

Strategic Risks (Board): 

No material change has been identified for the Strategic Risks, with an overall GREEN rating.    

 

 

 

Learning & Attainment (L&T): 

The Risk Profile for Learning & Teaching Risks remains stable overall, with a decrease in 2 risks related to Curriculum Planning (following the recent Curriculum Planning 
Event, and Quality Learning.  The risk of poor student engagement has increased due to the continued impact of COVID 19, and locked down restrictions.  Heightened 
awareness of the risks associated with the management of equality, diversity and inclusion issues has resulted in an increase in the potential impact of this risk.  

 

 

 

Financial and HR & People Risks (F&GP): 

The risk profile for financial shows an increase in 3 risks, the most significant reflecting the fact that the outcome of national pay negotiations and job evaluation is still 
unknown. HR and people development remain stable overall, with one risk increasing as a result of the ongoing instructors dispute. 

 

 

 Estate & Digital Infrastructure (Audit): 

Overall the risk profile remains stable. 

 

 



Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 
 

Executive Summary – Board Strategic Risk Register – Heat Map 
   

 
 
VPF&CS 

 
Vice Principal Finance & Corporate Services 

VPL&A Vice Principal Learning & Attainment 

VP P&I Vice Principal Performance & Improvement 

Movement in Risk Score is shown as comparison with Strategic Risk Register agreed at June 2021 Board of Governors (which reflects the end of AY 20-21).  It will be 
updated in February 2022 to show comparison with this Board reporting period (quarterly). 



 

Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 

 

 
Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  

Previous Score 

1 Strategic 

1.1 
 
VPL&A 
 
 
 
 

There is a risk of inadequate strategic 
oversight due to lack of engagement with 
external stakeholders in the strategic 
planning processes resulting in reputational 
loss.  
 
Link to Strategic Goals 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Strengthen our communities 
 

5 3 15  8 Robust curriculum planning process including 
stakeholder event.  Senior managers 
represented on key local and national 
stakeholder groups. 

3 2 6  6 
 
 

1.2 
 
VPL&A 

There is a risk that the college is unable to 
meet ongoing demand in the region due to 
insufficient funding resulting in the college 
not meeting the needs of the region.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Strengthen our communities 
 
 
 
 

5 5 25 16 College region is well placed to respond to 
short term funding opportunities as they arise, 
with a proven track record for delivering on 
Young Persons Guarantee and National 
Transition Training Fund. 

4 2 8   12 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

2 Learning & Attainment 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
VPL&A 
 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
deliver the curriculum plan due to 
disruption in the ongoing COVID19 
pandemic resulting in disengagement of 
students.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Strengthen our communities 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

5 4 20  8 Directors and Learning and Skills managers 
meet every fortnight to discuss adaptations to 
the curriculum plan to ensure delivery models 
are continually adapted to respond to the 
pandemic and prevent the disengagement of 
students.  
 
Further 'lockdown' restrictions are out with the 
control of the college 

3 3 9 Above appetite – needs action 
– either to accept or reduce. 

12 
 
 

2.2 
 

 
VPL&A 
 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
deliver high quality learning, teaching and 
assessment due to poor alignment of 
resources and/or poor quality of teaching 
resulting in poor retention, attainment and 
progression for students. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Strengthen our communities 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

5 4 20 18 Training of all delivery staff (approx 145 per 
week) began in a weekly model from August 
2021, thus ensuring a consistent approach to 
the quality of learning, teaching and 
assessment. 

3 2 6  9 
 
 

2.3 
 

 
VPP&I 

There is a risk of limited student 
engagement and a less effective student 
voice due to COVID19 resulting in negative 
student feedback. 
 

 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Strengthen our communities 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

 

4 4 16 15 All students have access to a dedicated MS 
Teams channel to build community and aid 
communications. Student retention group 
meets weekly.  
 
3 Executive Officers work with 18 Student 
Ambassadors on key student goals, all 
appointed and trained.  
 
60% of courses delivered on campus and 
those delivered on line students periodically 
scheduled to be on campus. Latest EW fig to 
be inserted.    

5 3 15  9 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

2 Learning & Attainment 

2.4 
 
 
VPP&I  

There is a risk that the college fails to meet 
its equality, diversity and inclusion targets 
and obligations due to not acting on our 
equality outcomes resulting in the college 
not representing the diversity in our 
community. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 4 16 8 Statutory Mainstreaming Report published in 
April 2021.   
 
Dedicated Equalities and Widening Access 
Officer has been appointed to oversee 
compliance and development of the action 
plan, and to support staff and student 
engagement and embedding of the Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion agenda.   

4 2 8  6 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

3 Financial 

3.1  
Finance & 
General 
Purposes 
Committee  
 
VPF&CS 

There is a risk that the college is not able 
to budget for or achieve break-even or a 
surplus on an annual basis due to poor 
cost control resulting in the college not 
being financially sustainable.  
 
Link to strategic goal: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 

5 3 15 8 Budget setting process overseen by college 
leadership team with actions agreed at each 
meeting to arrive at a balanced budget.   
Budget review meetings held with all budget 
holders with agreed actions.    
 
Monthly management accounts presented to 
College Leadership Team with agreed actions 
where necessary. 

3 3 9 Given early stage in year risk 
is maintained as significant 

6 
 
 
 

3.2 
Finance & 
General 
Purposes 
Committee 
 
VPF&CS 

There is a risk that pay awards and terms 
and conditions negotiated through the 
national bargaining process are 
unaffordable resulting in the college not 
being financially sustainable. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

5 4 20 20 College has influence in determining agreed 
pay award and terms and conditions.   
 
College inputs into Colleges Scotland budget 
submission. 

4 4 16 Maintained as a major risk as 
pay settlements have not been 
reached for 2021-22 and 
outcome of job evaluation is 
unknown 

12 
 
 
 
 
 

3.3 
Finance & 
General 
Purposes 
Committee 
 
VPL&A  

There is a risk of failure to deliver contracts 
achieved through non-core funding due to 
insufficient demand in the economy 
resulting in a clawback of funding. 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Strengthen our communities 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 
 

4 3 12 8 The Director for workforce development 
ensures that college contracts are met by 
continually adapting the offer to industry in line 
with demand, this is supported by the Vice 
Principal for learning and Attainment  by 
regular tracking and monitoring with all 
directors responsible for the delivery. 

4 2 8 FWDF need to manage 
backlog as few courses were 
undertaken between April and 
August.  
 
Procure associate trainers to 
ensure that training is high 
quality and able to meet 
demand. 
 
  

6 
 
 



 

Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 

Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

3 Financial 

3.4 
Finance & 
General 
Purposes 
Committee 
 
VPL&A & 
VPP&I 
 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
secure alternative income streams due to 
economic challenges or poor horizon 
scanning resulting in a loss of income 
and/or investment opportunity for the 
college.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 4 16 15 3 year operational plan and 1 year detailed 
campaign plan produced. Recent success 
means we're currently ahead of target.   

3 3 9  12 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

4 HR & People Development 

4.1  
 
 
 
VPF&CS 

There is a risk of not engaging and 
communicating effectively with staff 
resulting in a demotivated workforce and a 
failure to deliver high quality learning, 
teaching and service delivery. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 4 16 6 Principal’s drop-in session allow staff 
concerns to be heard and acted upon.  
Virtual staff conference and team meetings 
give opportunity for concerns to be 
addressed.  Annual staff survey to be 
undertaken 

3 2 6 Staff pulse survey undertaken 
May 2021 
 
 
 
 
  

6 
 
 

4.2 
 
 
 
VPF&CS 

There is the risk of not being able to adapt 
staff roles to manage changes in the 
curriculum due to national bargaining 
restrictions resulting in an inability to adapt 
to deliver high quality learning and student 
experience. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Support economic recovery and 

growth 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

5 3 15 20 College is a member of the Employers 
Association and has influence in negotiating 
terms and conditions 

5 3 15 Maintained as significant due 
to ongoing instructor dispute 

10 
 
 
 
 
 

4.3 
 
VPF&CS 

There is the risk of a breakdown in 
relationship with the local JNCCs due to 
local interpretation of national disputes 
resulting in local disputes and/or industrial 
action. 
 
Link to strategic goal: 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

4 3 12 8 Quarterly JNCC meetings held and 
fortnightly Joint JNCC COVID meetings held 

3 3 9 Risk considered significant in 
light of ongoing instructor 
dispute 
At this stage Board to accept 
the  
 

9 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

4 HR & People Development 

4.4 
 
 
VPF&CS 

There is a risk that staff are not upskilled to 
cope with new ways of working and digital 
developments due to inadequate training 
and resources resulting in a demotivated 
workforce and a poor student experience. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 3 12 8 Learning and Development (L&D) budget 
which supports staff development.  Staff 
development programmes run throughout 
year.  
 
Learning Continuity Group supports staff 
using on-line technology and shares good 
practice.    

3 2 6  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

6 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

5 Estate 

5.1 
 
 
VPF&CS 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
deliver on its 5-year estates plan due to 
insufficient funding resulting in the college 
not meeting the needs of our students. 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Strengthen our communities 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

5 4 20 15 Money set aside each year from estates grant 
to continue programme of development.  
Communication with local members of the 
Scottish Parliament and Scottish Funding 
Council to highlight need for additional 
resources. 

4 3 12  
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

12 
 
 

5.2 
 
VPF&CS 

There is the risk that the college fails to 
undertake statutory maintenance checks 
and maintain the building due to a lack of 
funding resulting in a build-up of essential 
back log maintenance. 
 
Link to strategic goal: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
 

5 3 15 8 Established planned preventative programme 
in place and implemented annually.  Budget 
allocation to address planned and reactive 
maintenance. 

4 2 8  8 
 
 

5.3 
 
 
VPF&CS 
 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
complete capital projects within timescale 
and budget due to poor project planning 
and control resulting in cost overrun.  
 
Link to strategic goal: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 

 

4 3 12 8 Technical expertise externally recruited where 
required.  Project plan prepared for each 
project.  Regular monitoring of budget and 
meetings with contractors to identify any 
deviation from plan and agree remedial action.  
Supported by procurement co-ordinator. 

3 2 6  
 
 
 
 
 

6 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

6 Digital Infrastructure 

6.1 
 
 
 
VPP&I 

There is a risk of a Cyber Security breach 
due to an inadequate allocation of 
investment in digital security and training, 
resulting in the college not operating 
effectively in the event of a major incident.   
 
 
Link to strategic goal: 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
 

5 4 20 16 IT Security Project Officer post made 
permanent in from 1st August 2021. 
Mandatory training on cyber security and 
GDPR implemented for new starts and annual 
refresher for all staff as part of ongoing staff 
development. 
 
Regular updates posted to Staff Zone on new 
sharepoint site. Monthly scheduled - Sophos 
endpoint anti-virus software - updates rolled 
out to all staff.  
 
Cyber Incident and IT Policies updated. 
Technical expertise provided where required 
via shared service and external suppliers. 

5 3 15 Completion of Cyber 
Essentials + status due by 
end of November. Network 
Officer post in process of 
recruitment.  
 
Penetration testing quarterly 
cycle being implemented. 
Chief Information Security 
Officer (CISO) proposal 
under review.  
 
New server infrastructure 
with enhanced security 
features due by April 2022. 

 
 
 
 

10 
 
 

6.2 
 
 
 
VPP&I 
 
 
 
 
 
 

There is a risk of reduced student 
retention, attainment or progression due to 
insufficient investment in underlying digital 
learning technologies or devices resulting 
in a reduced classroom experience or 
ability of students to undertake learning.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 4 16 12 Communication with local members of the 
Scottish Parliament and Scottish Funding 
Council to highlight need for additional 
resources.  
 
An additional 165 student laptops arrived in 
college for distribution. A further 100 laptops 
and 40 dongles ordered.  
 
20 new clevertouch devices installed  
since August 2021. 

4 3 12 100  mobile devices to 
support learners due for 
distribution. A new  
lapsafe - self service laptop 
loan rack system - due for 
delivery January 2022.   
 
Additional core spend 
planned for 2022 for 
classroom based learning 
technologies and IT refresh. 

6 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

6 Digital Infrastructure 

6.3 
 
VPP&I 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
achieve efficiencies due to a failure to 
integrate and streamline our information 
systems resulting in reliance on manual 
input, increased levels of duplication and 
re-work and reduced ability to make 
evidenced based decisions.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

4 4 16 12 Power Bi, SSRS and Student and Staff 
Advantage give staff and students access to a 
range of management and operational 
reporting on a 24/7 basis.  
 
College online services are subject to regular 
review. Staff and student survey outputs are 
used as part of a cycle of continuous system 
and application improvements.  
 
Resultant projects approved and monitored via 
the Systems Review Group. 

4 3 12 A new curriculum building 
and planning online tool is 
being launched in Nov 21.  
 
New streamlined and more 
efficient student application 
and enrolment service and 
help desk are being 
launched for Dec 21.    
 
By the 23/24 all college 
enrolments will be done 
online, completely 
eliminating paper- based 
systems. 
 

6 
 
 

6.4 
 
 
VPF&CS 
 
 
 

There is a risk that the college fails to 
achieve efficiencies due to a failure to 
integrate and streamline our information 
systems resulting in reliance on manual 
input, increased levels of duplication and 
re-work and reduced ability to make 
evidenced based decisions.  
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

5 4 20 8 Regular review of business continuity plans.  
Annual testing of plan facilitated by 
representative from Zurich. 

4 2 8 Business Continuity Plans 
for the Finance and 
Information Systems and 
Digital Infrastructure to be 
further updated in line with 
any supplier changes. 

 
 

12 
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Risk Numbers/ 

Owners 

POTENTIAL CONTRIBUTING FACTORS TREATMENT POST MITIGATION EVALUATION 

Risks 

 

Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Tolerance 

Controls/Mitigation Actions Im
pact 

Likelihood 

Score 

Further actions planned  Previous Score 

6 Digital Infrastructure 

6.5 
 
 
 
VPP&I 

There is a risk that the college’s business 
continuity plan is sub-optimal due to a lack 
of a fully comprehensive off-site IT back-up 
facility resulting in the college not being 
able to fully operate effectively in the event 
of a major incident. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 
• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 
 

5 4 20 8  
The current LIVE and backup virtual servers 
located at the Civic Centre, hosted by West 
Lothian Council. 
 
The VEEAM backup operates on a prescribed 
backup schedule. Office 365 staff and student 
accounts backed up to the cloud from start 
21/22. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 3 12 Discussions at advanced 
stage for a new offsite 
backup solution to be in 
place to coincide with new 
infrastructure investment 
being in place by April 22.   

 
 
NEW 

6.6 
 
 
VPF&CS 

There is the risk of a significant GDPR 
breach due to non-compliance with 
regulation resulting in a significant financial 
penalty and reputational damage. 
 
Link to strategic goals: 
 

• Inspire and enable success for all 
• Lead with vision and empathy 

5 3 15 9 Each member of staff undertakes annual 
mandatory training.   

3 3 9  12 
 
 

 



 

Key to Risk Estimation/Score based on scale of 1 – 5 for impact/likelihood: Green (1-8) = Minor Risk; Amber (9-15) = Significant Risk; Red (16-20) = Major Risk; Purple, (>21 - 25) = Fundamental Risk 

Appendix 1 - Risk Tolerance Matrix 

 

Routine Minor Significant Major Catastrophic
1 2 3 4 5

Access – More 
Equal Society

- Majority of access targets met with only 
one or two exceptions.

- Overall  stakeholders, communities, 
schools  and universities engaged with 
college.

 -Recruitment from the most deprived 
postcodes has reduced slightly.

 - Number of students getting advanced 
standing to University declines.  

 - Recruitment across a number of equality 
measures is below target.

 - Stakeholder engagement with communities, 
stakeholders, schools and universities is not 
effective in supporting targets.

 - College overall  activity target being impacted on.

 - Insufficient progress made with equality 
targets, resulting in reduced activity target 
and clawback of funds for specific initiatives.

 - Poor stakeholder relations and reputational 
damage.

 - Failure to deliver on equalities targets 
leaving the college open to challenge and 
significant reputational damage.

 - Claw back of funds and inabil ity to 
access any related initiatives or future 
projects.

Responding to 
the Economy 

 - One subject area not delivering but 
credit target/budget delivered.

 - Overall  schools and appropriate 
stakeholders  are engaged.

 - One Centre/ Department not delivering but 
credit target/budget delivered.

 - Schools and Stakeholders fairly engaged.

 - Up to 10% of credit target/budget not achieved due 
to supply and demand. mismatch or lack of 
engagement with key partners.

 - Some schools and stakeholder dissatisfaction 
with the college.

 - >25 %  of credit target/budget not achieved 
due to supply and demand mismatch. 

 - Major shortfall  in recruiting to vocational 
pathway programmes.

 - Majority of schools and stakeholders 
dissatisfied with the college.

 - Major shortfall  in recruitment and 
retention leading to clawback of funds or 
activity.

 - Major reputational damage arising from 
poor performance.

Student Success  - Isolated cases of poor learner retention 
and attainment.

 - Under sector average for attainment in one 
PI success category.

 - Positive feedback from Education Scotland 
Progress Review

 - Few instances of quality targets not being 
met.

 - Less than sector average in FE and HE full  time 
success indicators. 

 - Downward trend in FE and HE full  time success 
indicators.

 - Increasing negative destinations and activity 
targets under threat.

 - Education Scotland progress review 
unsatisfactory.

 - Majority of Centres with poor learner 
retention, attainment and negative 
destinations.

 - Activity target shortfall  and funds clawback 
indicated.

 - Education Scotland progress review 
unsatisfactory.

 - High negative learner destinations with 
major funds clawback and activity targets 
significantly under achieved.

 - Education Scotland/Scottish Funding 
Council  intervention.

Innovation and 
Enterprise

 - Commercial targets achieved overall  
albeit individual contract variance in 
performance.

 - Apprenticeship expansion within 10% of 
target.

 - Key account management in the main 
successful.

 - Shortfall  in commercial targets but abil ity 
to make up for this across college.

 - Apprenticeship expansion within 20% of 
target.

 - Shortfall  in commercial targets and reduction in 
college surplus forecast.

 - Apprenticeship numbers static.

 - Business engagement weak.

 - Major shortfall  in commercial surplus 
resulting in more significant interventions.

 - Reductions in Apprenticeship places.

 - Business and Employer dissatisfaction.

 - Commercial surplus significantly 
reduced and major impact on college core 
operations.

 - Withdrawal of Apprenticeship contract.

 - Business and employer complaints.

Financial and 
organisation 
Sustainability

 - One instance <£50k or a number of 
instances where the cumulative value is 
<£50k. 

£50k-£99k. £100k- £299k. £300k - £499k. >£500k.
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Board of Governors 
 
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2020-21 
 
Introduction 
 
The annual financial statements for financial year 2020-21 are attached to this 
paper.     
 
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP)  
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) and with Financial Reporting 
Standards FRS102. They also comply with the 2020-21 Government Financial 
Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government.   
 
Financial Results for the Year ended 31 July 2021 
 
The college generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of 
£1,742,000 (2020 - deficit of £1,599,000), with total comprehensive income 
surplus of £2,593,000 (2020 – deficit of £5,005,000). The total comprehensive 
income in 2021 recorded an actuarial gain in respect of pension funds of 
£4,335,000 (2020 – loss of £5,895,000).   
 
After transfer of £495,000 from the revaluation reserve, the cumulative deficit 
on the Income and Expenditure account decreased by £3,088,000 from 
£20,546,000 deficit to £17,458,000 deficit. 
 
Adjusted Operating Position 
 
The adjusted operating position is used by the Scottish Funding Council to 
measure colleges’ financial sustainability.  It is intended to reflect the financial 
performance of the college after allowing for non-cash adjustments and other 
material one-off or distorting items required by the SORP. The adjusted 
operating position is therefore designed to smooth any volatility in reported 
results arising from FRS 102 and also to recognise that some of the reported 
costs do not have an immediate cash impact on the college. In 2019-20 the 
college recorded an adjusted operating surplus of £738,000.  
 
Key Changes 2019-20 
 
On 3 June 2021, the Scottish Funding Council issued its accounts direction 
for Scotland’s colleges for 2020-21, along with supporting guidance. 
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Changes include: 
 
Remuneration and staff report 
 
A new best practice disclosure has been introduced for Diversity and Inclusion 
which encourages institutions to include details and narrative of their own 
diversity and inclusion policies, initiatives and longer term ambitions in the 
staff report. 
 
Governance statement 
  
The Governance statement should now include the following: 
 
• The ongoing process and structures used to identify, evaluate and 

manage the principal and emerging risks faced. 
 
• A statement that internal control systems have been in place for the year 

under review and up to the date of approval of the financial statements. 
 
• The main features that support regular monitoring, review and assurance. 
 
• The process applied in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of risk 

management and internal control, including explaining what actions have 
been or are being taken to remedy any significant failings of weaknesses. 

 
 
Action 
 
The Board of Governors is asked to approve the annual financial statements 
for the year ended 31 July 2021. 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services 
7 December 2021 
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PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 July 2021 
 
Principal and Chief Executive’s Statement 
 
Students and staff started the 2020-21 academic year hopeful that what there would not 
be a repeat of what they had experienced in the last four months of the previous 
academic session following lockdown in March 2020. Most students returned in 
September to more campus-based learning, although a significant minority of students in 
subjects like accounts, business and computing took part in their learning remotely for 
the full year.  
 
Staff made good use of time when they were on campus to engage students in the 
practical aspects of their courses and to help vulnerable groups build relationships with 
lecturers and support teams. Throughout the year, many lecturers were creative in 
enhancing blended learning through virtual industry talks, online student conferences 
and master classes from experts. 
 
As winter approached, the second wave of the pandemic led to tighter government 
guidelines and colleges were instructed to have a very small proportion (5%) of students 
on campus. Following the festive break, the country went into lockdown from January to 
March 2021. This was a very bleak time, although one positive outcome was that it 
enabled the construction company appointed to extend our engineering workshop to 
complete the project uninterrupted. 
 
This lockdown had a more negative effect on students and staff than the spring 
lockdown in 2020. Dark, cold days led to isolation, and uncertainty surrounding the 
spread of the virus led to increased anxiety. Those who were parents of school-age 
children had to educate them at home, while those with pre-school children had limited 
childcare options. Despite facing many of the same challenges as our students, college 
staff responded magnificently during this time.  
   
As we emerged out of the winter lockdown there were positive signs on vaccines. 
Unfortunately, during March and April strike action called by the EIS over a number of 
weeks led to further anxiety for students who were very already anxious about keeping 
up with their learning. After the Easter break we were able to bring increasing numbers 
of students back onto campus to complete practical units. Industrial action ended in May. 
Efforts focused on helping as many students complete their courses as possible in the 
remaining months of the academic year with some lecturers working during their 
summer break to achieve this. 
 
Despite 2020-21 being without doubt the most challenging year in living memory, the 
college had a very successful year. We experienced the highest ever level of student 
enrolments, exceeded our activity targets, increased student success and completed two 
major estates projects.  
 
Staff made significant progress in improving their digital skills through training and 
sharing good practice, we developed our digital pedagogy through a cross-college group 
supported by a dedicated member of staff, and invested in digital devices for learning 
that included new laptops for all lecturers and other delivery staff, Clevertouch interactive 
mobile screens and lecture capture equipment. 
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Our main priority for 2020-21 was to support the wellbeing, engagement and motivation 
of students and staff to get through the second year of the pandemic. We supported 
students facing mental health problems, learning difficulties and financial challenges by, 
for example, introducing a free hot breakfast to supplement our free hot lunch, enabling 
students to access learning support online and on campus, and offering discretionary 
funding for students to feed their families and prevent evictions.  
 
On top of all of that, the college worked hard to improve student success despite all 
these challenges. While paying attention to these fundamental priorities, we also 
supported people and companies affected by economic disruption caused by the 
pandemic by providing bespoke courses designed for specific industry sectors. 
 
Staff, students and the Student Association continued to be innovative throughout 
2020-21 on mental health and wellbeing. In addition to our existing counsellors, we 
recruited a specialist member of staff to help students. Feedback from students on the 
support provided throughout the pandemic has been very positive. The Man Cave, a 
dedicated space for male students and staff to talk about their mental health, met online 
throughout the year. Health and social care students, supported by their lecturer in 
collaboration with a construction lecturer, designed and built an outdoor wellbeing space 
for all students to use on campus. Collaborations with third sector mental health 
supporting organisations matured over the year, including a new strategic partnership 
with S.M.I.L.E. Counselling. 
 
Although our attention was firmly focused on supporting students, staff and the wider 
community through the pandemic, we were still able to embed our new management 
and faculty structure in 2020-21, and refresh our vision, goals, values and behaviours 
through two staff conferences. We conducted three pulse surveys with staff to establish 
how supported they felt in this third emergency year, the results of which were very 
positive. Over 80% took part in our annual staff engagement survey in October 2020 and 
the results were the most positive they have ever been. 
 
As well as supporting young people throughout the year, we agreed a strategic 
commitment to developing our own young workforce. We recruited six young people 
through the UK Government’s Kickstart scheme and two Modern Apprentices (with more 
in 2021-22). In addition, throughout the year we continued to offer graduate internships 
and work placements for our Foundation Apprenticeship students. 
 
During 2020-21 the college continued to make much-needed campus improvements 
and, informed by feedback from students and employers, invested £1.5 million to 
improve our learning estate and curriculum facilities. Two major projects were 
completed. Creating a new floor in an existing workshop doubled the size of what was 
previously a shared engineering and construction workshop. The installation of 
engineering machinery that was not previously on site was very positively received by 
local employers and led to new courses being introduced to meet their apprenticeship 
skills requirements.  
 
Significant growth in student numbers over the past decade has led to all available 
space being used for classes and workshops with no areas for students to study before, 
in between and after timetabled sessions. A complete reconfiguration of the ground floor 
of the main campus building led to a 200% increase in individual and collaborative 
flexible learning spaces, and included a new, modern Learning Centre, Student 
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Association hub and Information Point. Additional funding from the Scottish Funding 
Council (SFC) enabled these projects to be completed. 
 
Throughout 2020-21, the college built on already excellent relationships, enhanced local 
partnerships with employers, West Lothian Council and the third sector, and further 
developed national partnerships with the Scottish Government and its skills and 
education agencies. Through these partnerships, the college supported a range of 
measures to help people whose jobs were affected by the pandemic. In the summer of 
2020, we formed a four-college collaboration with Edinburgh, Fife, and Forth Valley 
Colleges to develop a multi-region response to economic recovery. Following 
discussions with SFC and Skills Development Scotland, senior leaders from each of the 
colleges developed a suite of proposals. The Scottish Government agreed to progress 
with two proposals, Skills Boost courses and Accelerated HNCs which were rolled out to 
the sector and funded through the Young Person’s Guarantee and the National 
Transition Training Fund. These have continued in the current academic year.  
 
In September 2020, the college held its first online curriculum planning session event 
with over 100 participants drawn from staff, students, the Student Association, 
employers, partners and board members. This was followed in February 2021 by a 
similar event focused on school/college provision, with 70 participants from staff, 
schools, West Lothian Council, Education Scotland, Skills Development Scotland and 
universities.  
 
About West Lothian College 
 
West Lothian College is one of thirteen college regions in Scotland and serves an area 
with one of the fastest growing populations in Scotland. In 2020-21, the college 
celebrates twenty years at our Livingston campus. A lot has changed since the college 
moved to Livingston, although its most important job remains ensuring that people get 
access to relevant qualifications that help them move towards their own goals.  
 
The college provides a wide range of further and higher education courses to support 
government priorities such as Developing the Young Workforce, the Young Person’s 
Guarantee and widening access to higher education. Hundreds of senior school pupils in 
West Lothian’s eleven secondary schools take part in college courses each year 
alongside their school qualifications, and the college is the number one choice for school 
leavers, ahead of all other colleges and universities in Scotland.  
 
West Lothian College plays a critical role in achieving community planning partnership 
priorities, in particular to address the skills needs of employers and enable people to be 
better educated with access to quality learning and job opportunities.  
 
West Lothian College is a free-standing corporate body under the provisions of the 
Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, as amended by the Further and 
Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently the Post-16 Education 
(Scotland) Act 2013. It is governed by a Board of Governors and receives the majority of 
its funding directly from the SFC. The college is listed on the Scottish Charity Register 
and is entitled, in accordance with section 13(1) of the Charities and Trustee Investment 
(Scotland) Act 2005, to refer to itself as a charity registered in Scotland (SC021216). 
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Vision, Goals and Values 
 
In 2020-21, with the involvement of board members and all staff, the college refreshed its 
vision, identified four strategic goals to achieve that vision, reinforced the three values that 
will underpin how we will do that and identified behaviours for each of these values. 
 

 
Our vision is of a highly skilled, enterprising and resilient workforce. Four strategic goals 
contribute to achieving that vision: 
 
• Inspiring and enabling success for all  
• Supporting economic recovery and growth  
• Strengthening our communities  
• Leading with vision and empathy. 
 
Three values underpin our approaches to all that we do including achieving our vision 
and strategic goals. They are: 
 
• Welcoming to all 
• Students at the centre of everything we do 
• Always striving for better. 
 
Living our values means that we exhibit the following behaviours: 
 
Welcoming to all 
 
• We are respectful and inclusive, and treat everyone as an individual 
• We listen actively, and communicate in an open and supportive way 
• We are positive role models, engaging with purpose and enthusiasm  
 
Students at the centre of everything we do 
 
• We work together and support each other as part of a team 
• We are flexible and accommodating, and act on feedback to make changes 
• We are understanding and responsive, focusing on individual needs 
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Always striving for better 
 
• We evaluate and reflect on our practice to improve and succeed 
• We are open to new ways of working, look outwards and learn from others 
• We are proactive and forward thinking, preparing for what may come next 
 
Performance Summary 
 
SFC’s Student Satisfaction and Engagement Survey 2020-21 showed that 89.6% of 
FEFT students were satisfied with their experience of college (compared with a national 
figure of 88.6%), and 84.9% of HEFT (compared with a national figure of 80.3%). While 
these figures are lower than satisfaction rates achieved in 2018-19 (the last reported 
year before the pandemic), achieving such high student satisfaction in the most 
disrupted year in college history is significant.  
 
The college received two significant external accreditations in 2021 that recognised the 
extensive support we provide to students who are carers. We achieved the Going 
Further for Student Carers: Recognition Award from the Carers Trust and we were one 
of the first two colleges in Scotland to achieve the Carers Federation Quality Standard in 
Carer Support.  
 
Examples of student success include one of our 2020 Project Search graduates winning 
the Young Achiever Award at the Scottish Health Awards in December 2020, and an 
HNC Professional Cookery student being announced as The Staff Canteen 2020 
Member of the Year. Project SEARCH, delivered in partnership with West Lothian 
Council’s supported employment team and NHS Lothian, is aimed at young people aged 
16 to 29 who have a learning disability and/or autism, and who are leaving school or 
looking for work. The college was awarded the DFN Project Search Performance Award 
for 2019-20 as 75% of the students gained, and were still in, employment six months 
after completing the course. This is a significant achievement as these students finished 
their course just before the pandemic hit the country. 
 
Despite the major disruption to organisations caused by the pandemic, the college 
continued to deliver significant levels of work-based learning over the year, enabling 
almost one thousand employees in 350 organisations to undertake SVQs, and 
supporting 421 modern apprentices in training, including 202 new starts, a significant 
increase over the previous year. Through the Flexible Workforce Development Fund, we 
worked with 53 companies to train 2,700 employees. Continuing our commitment to 
Developing the Young Workforce, we increased Foundation Apprenticeships enrolments 
with 192 students from schools across West Lothian, including 132 new starts. Over the 
year, we trained 2,120 Children’s Hearings Scotland volunteers, including over 700 new 
panel members. 
 
Although the college was unable to have any large gatherings on campus over the year, 
we were innovative in our approaches to virtual events such as open days, graduation 
and staff conferences. In recognition of how well we adapted to delivering virtual events, 
the college won the CDN Marketing Award in 2020. 
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Analysis of Key Performance Indicators 

 
Activity Targets 
 
The college continued to exceed its credit activity target, as well as additional credits 
allocated by SFC during the year for the Young Person’s Guarantee (YPG) and the 
National Transition Training Fund (NTTF). In 2020-21 we delivered our highest ever 
number of credits, 49,632 against a target of 46,709. This included 2,356 credits for 
NTTF and YPG, and the college exceeded our target allocation by 463 credits. 
 
Outcome Agreement activity targets for key groups including SIMD10, care experienced, 
BAME, and senior phase students were all exceeded. For the fourth consecutive year 
there was a higher volume and proportion of credits (8.8%) delivered to students living in 
the 10% most deprived postcodes.  
 
Continuing a four-year trend, a higher proportion of credits was delivered to care 
experienced students (6.2%) and a total of 257 students identified as care experienced 
(an increase of 77). The proportion of credits delivered to BME students (4.4%) 
continued to increase and success for these students was the highest in the sector.  
 
The number of senior phase pupils studying vocational qualifications at the college 
increased over the year to 322. Reflecting changes to our curriculum portfolio, the 
proportion of credits delivered to students on STEM courses increased to 27%.  
 
Enrolments 
 
Student enrolments reached a record level at 9,377 in 2020-21, an 18% increase on the 
previous year. This strong demand has continued in 2021-22 with current enrolments in 
full-time courses ahead of the same time last year. Continuing the long-term trend of 
increasing demand, there was an increase in 2020-21 in full-time enrolments and 
part-time HE enrolments. The previous year’s decrease in part-time FE enrolments due 
to the first lockdown, improved over the year and was very close to the record number 
achieved in 2018-19. The college continued to be the top destination for school leavers 
in West Lothian.  
 
Increasing demand for courses was reflected in a record number of enrolments in 
2020-21. Ninety-one per cent of full-time students live in West Lothian, of whom around 
40% were resident in Livingston and 60% in other towns and villages across the region. 
Two thirds of all students studied FE (further education courses) and a third studied HE 
(higher education). For full-time students, 40% chose to study HE qualifications and 60% 
chose FE. Of all enrolments, 25% were full-time and 75% were part-time. 
 
Student Success 
 
In 2020-21, student success improved in many areas. Overall, 81.3% of students 
completed their course successfully (up from 78% in the previous year). Success for 
part-time students continued to be high, particularly at FE level, and this influenced our 
high rate of overall success. 
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There was a good increase of three percentage points in full-time HE (higher education) 
student success. A significant contributor to that increase was the college’s ability to 
sustain work placements in subjects such as childhood practice and professional 
cookery.  
 
Full-time FE student success declined due to an increase in withdrawals. The winter 
lockdown from January to March 2020, and two months of disruption resulting from EIS 
strike action, adversely affected FEFT students and contributed to more leaving their 
courses. However, despite significant improvement in 2018-19 (the year before the 
pandemic), withdrawal rates for full-time FE students have been stubbornly high for over 
ten years. Therefore, although the two pandemic years have undoubtedly contributed to 
increased withdrawals, the college will establish a working group in 2021 to look into this 
in detail and identify actions for improvement. 
 
In 2019-20, the college was in the top three of fifteen regional colleges for success for all 
student enrolments over 160 hours, above sector average for students living in the most 
deprived areas, for care-experienced students and students with a disability. BME 
students at West Lothian College in that year had the best success in the sector. We 
expect to be in a similar, or improved, position in the sector for 2020-21. 
 
Key Issues and Risks  

 
The college’s risk management framework includes a risk management policy, a 
Strategic Risk Register with each member of the leadership team assigned as a risk 
owner for each risk, a risk appetite set by the Board of Governors at an annual risk 
workshop facilitated by the college’s internal auditors, and a risk tolerance matrix 
overseen by the college’s internal auditors 
 
The Board of Governors undertook a review of the strategic risks in 2020-21 and agreed 
22 risks facing the college. The risks that carried the highest risk rating were: 
 
• Being unable to meet demand for courses due to insufficient SFC credit allocation 
• Failing to deliver the curriculum plan for 2020-21 due to disruption from the ongoing 

pandemic 
• Inflexible organisation structure due to national bargaining restrictions  
• Our estate not adequately reconfigured in line with the college’s ambition for growth 

due to insufficient resources 
• Unaffordable pay awards and terms and conditions negotiated through the national 

bargaining process  
 
The key actions taken to mitigate against those risks were: 
 
• Regular discussions with SFC on opportunities for additional credits and the 

readiness of the college to respond  
• Setting the curriculum planning timeframe to ensure full engagement of stakeholders 
• Setting aside money each year from our estates grant to continue campus 

improvements and communication with local Members of the Scottish Parliament and 
SFC to highlight need for additional resources. 
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BREXIT 
 
The college has not yet experienced any significant impacts from BREXIT. 
 
Going Concern 

 
The Board of Governors has considered the college’s forecasts and financial projections 
and considers that the college has adequate resources to meet its ongoing liabilities and 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues 
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.  
 
While the pandemic impacted on the college’s financial position through loss of fees 
income, this was mitigated through the development of online courses to continue 
delivering work-based learning, accessing the UK Government’s Job Retention Scheme 
and with additional funding from SFC.  
 
Although the college has net liabilities, this is largely due to the change of treatment of 
deferred Government Grant (capital) which is now recognised as deferred income within 
creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than 
one year as appropriate.   
 
Financial Review  
 
Nature, Objectives and Strategies  
 
The college’s management and control ensures financial stability is sound, and there are 
clear management structures and reporting arrangements in place with performance 
indicators and risk management processes to support delivery of outcomes.   

 
To monitor progress against its Outcome Agreement, the college focuses on a range of 
key performance indicators which are reviewed by managers and the Board of 
Governors on a regular basis. Delivering on the curriculum plan due to Covid 
restrictions, unaffordable pay awards and funding estates developments were among 
the key risks identified in the college’s 2020-21 strategic risk register.   
 
The board presents its report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 
31 July 2021.  The Board of Governors has approved these accounts on the basis the 
college is a going concern.  The audited financial statements have been prepared under 
the historic cost convention in line with the principles and guidance set out in the 
Statement of Recommended Practice, Accounting for Further and Higher Education and 
with the Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM). 
 
Scope of the Financial Statements 
 
The Financial Statements cover all activities of the college. 
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Financial Position  

 
Financial Results for the year ended 31 July 2021 
 
The college generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the year of £1,742,000 
(2020 - deficit of £1,599,000), with total comprehensive income surplus of £2,593,000 
(2020 – deficit of £5,005,000).  The total comprehensive income in 2021 recorded an 
actuarial gain in respect of pension funds of £4,335,000 (2020 – loss of £5,895,000).   
After transfer of £495,000 from the revaluation reserve, the cumulative deficit on the 
Income and Expenditure account decreased by £3,088,000 from £20,546,000 deficit to 
£17,458,000 deficit. 
  
The cumulative deficit at the year-end comprised £265,000 for holiday pay accrual, 
£2,211,000 for voluntary agreed PFI termination loan, £3,523,000 for early retirement 
provisions, £12,093,000 for defined benefit pension obligations, off-set by surplus 
£633,000 for trading activities (see Note 16). 
 
The college is reporting net total liabilities of £9,920,000 in its balance sheet, which is 
due to the reclassification of deferred Government Grant as deferred income within 
creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than 
one year as appropriate and the actuarial gain in respect of Pension Schemes. 
 
Cash Budget for Priorities  
 
Following their reclassification as central government bodies from 1 April 2014, colleges 
are now also required to comply with Central Government budgeting rules.  In addressing 
the impact of these budgeting rules, Scottish Government and SFC committed to providing 
the cash budget previously earmarked for depreciation for use on specified priorities. 
 
Colleges have now each been given a fixed cash budget for priorities which must be spent 
on agreed government priorities as outlined in the table below. Spend of the college’s cash 
budget for priorities, and impact on the operating position for the academic year, is detailed 
below. 
 
Table of cash budget for priorities spend 
 

 2020-21 
£’000 

2019-20 
£’000 

Revenue Priorities - - 
   
Total impact on operating position 
 

- - 

Capital   
Loan repayments - 158 
Early retirement provision payments 
 

190 32 

Total Capital 190 190 
Total cash budget for priorities spend 190 190 
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SFC has confirmed that a deficit resulting from the college following its guidance should 
be treated as a ‘technical’ deficit and should not be interpreted, on its own, as a 
challenge to the college’s ongoing financial sustainability. Audit Scotland accepts that a 
deficit arising from the use of cash funding originally provided for non-cash depreciation 
does not indicate an underlying financial sustainability concern. 
 
Adjusted Operating Position  
 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income (SOCI) presents the financial performance 
during the accounting period in accordance with the FE/HE SORP. The adjusted operating 
position is intended to reflect the financial performance of the college after allowing for 
non-cash adjustments and other material one-off or distorting items required by the SORP. 
The adjusted operating position is therefore designed to smooth any volatility in reported 
results arising from FRS 102 and also to recognise that some of the reported costs do not 
have an immediate cash impact on the college.  This should give a better indication of the 
college’s cash generative capacity. 
 

 Note 
 

2020-21 
£’000 

2019-20 
£’000 

Deficit before other gains and losses 
(FE/HE SORP basis) 

 (1,742) (1,599) 

Add back: 
- Depreciation (net of deferred capital grant) 
- Pension adjustment – Net service cost (FRS 

102) 
- Pension adjustment – Net interest cost 

 
1 
2 
3 

 
    625 
1,781 
  264 

 
    234 
1,510 
  241 

Deduct: 
- CBP allocated to loan repayments 
- CBP allocated to Early Retirement Payments 

 
  4 
  5 

  

 
- 

190 

 
158 
32 

Adjusted operating surplus  738 196  
 
The adjusted operating surplus above does not take account of a further £9,000 of 
payments the college has made towards its Early Retirement Provision during the year 
(£168,000 in 2019-20). Taking this into account the adjusted operating result would be a 
surplus of £729,000 (surplus of £28,000 in 2019-20).  
 
Note 1 Depreciation net of deferred capital grant is added back in recognition that this 

has a non-cash budget from the Scottish Government. 
Note 2 The non-cash element of current and past service pension cost less cash 

contributions paid. 
Note 3 The non-cash element of interest earned on pension assets less interest cost on 

pension liabilities. 
Note 4 Cash Budget for Priorities is included in income but the loan repayment is not 

reflected in costs therefore this amount is adjusted. 
Note 5 Cash payments in respect of the Early Retirement Provision included in CBP.  
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Taxation Status 

 
The college is registered with the Office of the Scottish Charities Regulator as a Scottish 
Charity and is exempt from corporation tax and capital gains tax. The college receives no 
similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax. 

 
Cash Flows  

 
Cash flow projections are prepared annually, broken down on a monthly basis to ensure 
that these are sufficient to meet the needs of the college.  These are reviewed monthly 
and reports are provided to the Executive Leadership Team and the Finance and 
General Purposes Committee.  Bank balances are checked on a daily basis and day-to 
day surplus funds are deposited overnight in a high interest bank account.   
 
Liquidity 

 
The college uses a number of ratios to assess the college’s liquidity. The two key ratios 
are current assets: current liabilities and days cash to total expenditure. However as a 
result of ONS reclassification the college is only able to hold minimum cash reserves.  
At the end of 2020-21 current assets: current liabilities were 1:1 and days cash to total 
expenditure was 50 days reflecting the ONS requirement.   
 
Creditor Payment Policy  

 
The college complies with the CBI Prompt Payment Code and has a policy of paying its 
suppliers within 30 days of invoice unless the invoice is contested.  All disputes and 
complaints are handled as quickly as possible. The college did not pay any late interest 
payments during the year. 

 
The Scottish Public Finance Manual sets a Government target for the payment of 
invoices within ten working days of their receipt. While this is a difficult target for the 
college to achieve, it nevertheless strives to pay all invoices as promptly as possible. 

 
Post-Balance Sheet Events  
 
There are no post-balance sheet events. 
 
Human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters 
 
West Lothian College is committed to upholding human rights, anti-corruption and 
anti-bribery within the college and through the supply chain. 
 
Environmental matters 

 
West Lothian College recognises that it has a role to play in the conservation and 
protection of the environment. The college works towards improving its own 
environmental and sustainable practices and promoting an awareness of 
environmental responsibilities amongst our staff and students. 
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Through our Environmental and Sustainability Policy we: 
 
• comply with and exceed when possible all applicable legislation, regulations and 

codes of practice 
• ensure that all environmental risks are assessed, managed and controlled 
• integrate sustainability considerations into all our business decisions 
• minimise the impact on the environment and our sustainability of our core activities, 

and 
• review and continually strive to improve our sustainability and lessen our impact on 

the environment. 
 
During 2020-21 the college finalised its Net Zero Plan for the period 2021-26. This plan 
sets out actions and initiatives to achieve as we transition towards a net zero future. This 
will not only help achieve the Scottish Government’s targets and our aims, it will provide 
a sound basis for our students and staff to live, support and promote sustainability in 
their everyday lives. The plan also sets out how the college will address the United 
Nations sustainable development goals. 
 
A range of cross-college activities and initiatives are planned in 2021-22 and during 
COP26 which will be overseen by the college’s Sustainability Group. 
 
Climate Change (Scotland) Act compliance 

 
The college complied with the Scottish Government sustainability reporting in line with the 
requirements of the Climate Change (Scotland) Act 2009.   
 
The Performance Report is approved by the Principal on 7 December 2021 
 
 
 
 
Jackie Galbraith 
Principal and Chief Executive 
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REMUNERATION AND STAFF REPORT  
 
The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board of Governors on 
the service arrangements and remuneration of the Principal and determines the service 
arrangements and remuneration of Vice Principals. 
 
Remuneration including salary and pension entitlements 
 
Salary Entitlements1 
 
The following table provides detail of the remuneration and pension interests of college 
senior management. 
 
Single total figure of remuneration 
 12 months ended 31 July 2021 12 months ended 31 July 

2020 
 
Name 

Actual 
Salary 
£’000 

 

Pension 
Benefit 
£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

Actual 
Salary 
£’000 

 

Pension 
Benefit 
£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

Alex Linkston 20-25 0 20-25 20-25 0 20-25 
Jackie Galbraith 115-120 20-25 140-

145 
105-110 20-25 115-120 

Simon Earp 75-80 15-20 95-100 70-75 10-15 80-85 
Sarah-Jane Linton* 70-75 15-20 90-95 N/A N/A N/A 
Jennifer McLaren  75-80 15-20 95-100 70-75 10-15 80-85 

 
*Sarah-Jane Linton joined the college September 2020 
 
Median Remuneration 
 
Colleges are required by the FReM to disclose the relationships between the 
remuneration of the highest paid official and the median remuneration of their workforce. 
 
Based on the twelve-month equivalent figures above, the banded remuneration of the 
highest paid official in the organisation in the financial year 2020-21 was £115k-£120k) 
(£105k-£110k in 2019-20). This was 3.4 times (3.5 times in 2019-20) the median 
remuneration of the workforce which was £30k-£35k (2019-20 £30k-£35k). 
 
 
 

                                                 
1 Note: 
 

a) The salaries in the above table represent the amount earned in the financial year 
b) The value of pension benefits is calculated as the real increase in pension multiplied by 20 plus the real increase in any 

lump sum less the contributions made by the individual.  The x20 multiplier aims to bring public bodies in line with other 
industries in disclosing an assessed cumulative pension benefit for a standard 20 year period which is the estimated life 
span following retirement. 

c) The details in this table are subject to audit 
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Accrued Pension Benefits  
 
Pension benefits for employees are provided through the Scottish Teacher’s 
Superannuation Scheme (STSS), a defined benefit scheme which is notionally funded, 
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). Both STSS and LGPS are career 
average salary pension schemes. 
 
The scheme’s normal retirement age is the scheme member’s state pension age. 
 
Contribution rates are set annually for all employees. There is no automatic entitlement 
to a lump sum. Members may opt to give up (commute) pension for lump sum up to the 
limit set by the Finance Act 2004. The accrual rate guarantees a pension based on final 
pensionable salary and years of pensionable service.  
 
Senior Officials’ Pension 
  
Pension benefits are provided to senior officials on the same basis as all other staff. The 
accrued pension benefits for senior officials are set out in the table below, together with 
the pension contributions made by the college. 
 
 
 
Name 

Accrued 
pension at 

pension age  
at 31/07/21 

£’000 

Accrued lump 
sum at 

pension age  
at 31/07/21 

£’000 

Real increase 
in pension 
01/08/20 to 
31/07/21 

£’000 

Real increase 
in lump sum 
01/08/20 to 
31/07/21 

£’000 
Jackie Galbraith 16 0 2 0 
Simon Earp  7 0 2 0 
Sarah-Jane Linton 11 2 11 2 
Jennifer McLaren  17 0 2 0 

 
Cash equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) 
 
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value 
of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. 
 
 
Name 

CETV 
at 31/07/21 

£’000 

CETV 
at 31/07/20 

£’000 

Real increase in 
CETV 
£’000 

Jackie Galbraith  245 201 44 
Simon Earp 85 63 22 
Sarah-Jane Linton* 114 N/A 114 
Jennifer McLaren  265 233 32 

 
*Sarah-Jane Linton joined the college in September 2020 
 
The value of the accrued pension benefits has been calculated on the basis of the age at 
which the person will first become entitled to receive a pension on retirement without 
reduction on account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to 
commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the 
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effects of future inflation. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the 
person has accrued as a consequence of their total Local Government service and not 
just their current appointment.  
 
In considering the accrued pension benefits figures the following contextual information 
should be taken into account:  
 
(i) the figures for pension and lump sum are illustrative only in light of the assumptions 

set out above and do not necessarily reflect the actual benefits that any individual 
may receive upon retirement.  

(ii) the accrued benefits figures are reflective of the pension contributions that both the 
employer and the scheme member have made over a period of time. 

 
Real increase in CETV 
 
This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the 
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee 
(including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or 
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the 
period. 
 
Compensation for loss of office 
 
There were no employees who left under voluntary exit terms during the year.  
 

                                 2020-21 2019-20 

£’000 Number of 
Employees 

Number of 
Employees 

15-20 0 - 
20-25 0 4 
25-30 0 1 

 
There were no compulsory redundancies in the year. 
 
Staff Report 
 
Salaries and Related costs 
 
 2021 

Directly 
employed staff 

£’000 

2021 
Seconded and 
agency staff 

£’000 

2021 
Total 

 
£’000 

2020 
Total 

 
£’000 

Wages and salaries 10,478 - 10,478 9,975 
Social security costs 978 - 978 924 
Other pension costs  3,785 - 3,785 3,307 
Restructuring Costs (9) - (9) 99 
Total 15,232 - 15,232 14,305 
Average number of FTE 294 - 294 282 
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The college employed 273 females (78%) and 108 (22%) males during 2020-21 
(headcount). 
 
In the year ended 31 July 2021 staff turnover was 9.76% 
 
Sickness Absence Data 
 
The total sickness absence percentage as at 30 June 2021 was 1.35%.  This is lower than 
the equivalent figure for 2019-20 (6.21%) due to a decrease in both short and long term 
sick absence. 
 
Facility Time 
 
In accordance with the Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) regulations 
2017, the college provided the following support through paid facility time for union officials 
working at the college during the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. 
 
Relevant union officials 
 
Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the relevant 
period 

8 

Full time equivalent employee number 7.2 
 
Percentage of time spend on facility time 
 
Percentage Number of employees 
0% 0 
1%-50% 7.2 
51%-99% 0 
100% 0 

 
Percentage of pay bill spend on facility time 
 
Total cost of facility time 20,375 
Total pay bill 15,232,000 
Percentage of the total pay bill spend on facility time 0.1% 

 
Paid trade union activities 
 
Time spend on trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours was 
100%. 
 
Equal Opportunities  
 
The college is committed to its core value of being welcoming to all – ensuring all staff, 
regardless of background, are welcomed, retained and developed. 
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The framework and direction for action in this area is set by the college’s People 
Strategy (https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/4937/people-strategy-2021-2025.pdf), 
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy (https://www.west-
lothian.ac.uk/media/3207/equality-diversity-and-inclusion-policy.pdf ) and can be further 
reviewed in more detail within the college’s Equality Mainstreaming Report 
(https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/4936/equality-mainstream-report.pdf ). 
 
The college has due regard to the key aims of the public sector duty. Equality and 
diversity is a focus for staff induction and mandatory training. Further training is 
undertaken for managers and staff on themes such as unconscious bias. The college 
monitors and reports on the fairness and effectiveness of equality and diversity activities 
through workforce data monitoring, including an annual staff experience survey. On 
particular equality themes the use of external accreditation supports progressing equality 
and diversity in areas such as disability (Disability Confident Employer, Epilepsy 
Friendly) and sexual orientation (Silver LGBT Charter Mark). 
 
The college recognises and commits to the further need for action to ensure the 
workforce is representative of the local community. In particular work using the Scottish 
Government’s minority ethnic recruitment toolkit will encourage applications from BAME 
backgrounds. Action will also be taken via various initiatives to support younger people 
into employment with the college. Across other protected characteristics further work will 
be undertaken to support and encourage applicants from across the community and 
removing any real or perceived barriers to employment from applicants and ensuring all 
staff can make a full contribution to the college’s work once in post. 
 
Approved by the Board of Governors on 7 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jackie Galbraith 
Principal and Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/4937/people-strategy-2021-2025.pdf
https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/3207/equality-diversity-and-inclusion-policy.pdf
https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/3207/equality-diversity-and-inclusion-policy.pdf
https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/media/4936/equality-mainstream-report.pdf
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BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 
 
Board of Governors 

 
Membership of the Board of Governors 
 
The Post 16 Education (Scotland) Act 2013 requires that the board of a regional college 
should consist of no fewer than 15, nor more than 18 members. The Board of Governor 
members who held office during the year were as follows: 
 
 

Name Position Appointed Term 
Alex Linkston Chair 27 Jun 20 2nd 
Sue Cook  Vice Chair and Non-Exec 1 Mar 19 2nd 
Frank Gribben Non-Exec /Senior 

Independent 
1 Mar 19 2nd 

Iain McIntosh Non-Executive 1 Mar 19 2nd 
Colin Miller Non-Executive 1 Mar 19 2nd 
Elaine Cook Non-Executive 2 May 19 2nd 
Lynne Hollis Non-Executive 2 May 19 1st 
Richard 
Lockhart 

Non-Executive 1 July 20 1st 

Thomas Bates Non-Executive  1 Aug 17 2nd 
Sue Stahly Non-Executive 14 Nov 19 1st 
Moira Niven Non-Executive 1 Dec 20 2nd 
Jackie Galbraith Principal and Chief Executive 6 Aug 18 n/a 
Julia Simpson Staff 6 Sep 18 2nd 
Neil Sinclair Staff 25 Jun 19 2nd 
Kirsti Clark Student Association 1 Aug 20 2nd 
Jeannette 
Dobson 

Student Association 1 Aug 20 2nd 

Seonaid Crosby Co- Opted 4 Sep 19 2nd 
Name Position Appointed Change 
Simon Ashpool Non-Executive 1 Jul 20 Resigned 1/7 
Jeremy Miles Non-Executive 12 Feb 20 Resigned 19/6 

 
Membership of the Executive Leadership Team 
 
The Executive Leadership Team is responsible for the day to day management of 
West Lothian College’s activities and operations and consists of: 
 
Jackie Galbraith Principal and Chief Executive 
 
Simon Earp              Vice Principal Performance & Improvement 
 
Sarah-Jane Linton Vice Principal Learning & Attainment 
  
Jennifer McLaren Vice Principal Finance & Corporate Services 
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Related Party Transactions 
 
Due to the nature of the college’s operations and the composition of its Board of 
Governors (being drawn from local public and private sector organisations), it is 
inevitable that transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the 
college’s Board of Governors may have an interest, and will be recorded as such in the 
Minutes of the Meetings and/or the Register of Interest. All transactions involving 
organisations in which a member of the Board of Governors may have a material interest 
are conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with normal project and procurement 
procedures. The related party transactions due to/by the college for the year ended 31 
July 2021 and the amounts outstanding at this date are disclosed in note 24 and a link to 
the register of interests is provided below. 
 
https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/corporate-and-governance/board-information/ 
 
Personal Data Related Incidents 
 
Section 417 of the Companies Act 2006 requires that organisations report on personal 
data related incidents.  In 2020-21, the college had no reported data incidents (2019-20: 
no incidents). 
 
 
 
 
 
Jackie Galbraith 
Principal and Chief Executive 
7 December 2021 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.west-lothian.ac.uk/corporate-and-governance/board-information/
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Statement of the Responsibilities of the Board of Governors 
 
The Board of Governors is required to present audited financial statements for each 
financial year.            
   
In accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended 
by the Further & Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently by the Post-16 
Education (Scotland) Act 2013, the Board of Governors is responsible for the 
administration and management of the college’s affairs, including ensuring an effective 
system of internal control, and is required to present audited financial statements for 
each financial year.           
   
The Board of Governors is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which 
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the college and 
enable it to ensure that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with the 
Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 as amended by the Further & Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently amended by the Post-16 Education 
(Scotland) Act 2013, the 2019 Statement of Recommended Practice - Accounting for 
Further and Higher Education, the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2020-21 
(FReM) where applicable and other relevant accounting standards.  In addition, within 
the terms and conditions of a Financial Memorandum agreed between the Scottish 
Funding Council and the college’s Board of Governors, the Board of Governors, through 
its designated office holder, is required to prepare financial statements for each financial 
year which give a true and fair view of the college’s state of affairs and of the surplus or 
deficit and cash flows for that year.  
 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Accounts Direction issued 
by the Scottish Funding Council which brings together the provisions of the Financial 
Memorandum with other formal disclosures that the Scottish Funding Council require the 
Board of Governors to make in the financial statements and related notes. 
            
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors is required to:  
              
• Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;  
 
• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;   

          
• State whether applicable Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;  
 
• Prepare financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the college will continue in operation. The Board of Governors is 
satisfied that it has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable 
future and for this reason the going concern basis continues to be adopted in the 
preparation of the financial statements.  
         

The Board of Governors has taken reasonable steps to:     
        
• Ensure that funds from the Scottish Funding Council are used only for the 

purposes for which they have been given and in accordance with the Financial 
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Memorandum with the Funding Council and any other conditions which the 
Funding Council may from time to time prescribe;     
         

• Ensure that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to 
safeguard public funds and funds from other sources;  

 
• Safeguard the assets of the college and prevent and detect fraud;  

  
• Secure the economical, efficient and effective management of the college’s 

resources and expenditure.         
       

The key elements of the college’s system of internal financial control, which is designed 
to discharge the responsibilities set out above, include the following:   
           
• Clear definitions of the responsibilities of, and the authority delegated to, heads of 

academic and support departments;  
       
• A comprehensive medium and short-term planning process, supplemented by 

detailed annual income, expenditure, capital and cash flow budgets;  
    
• Regular reviews of key performance indicators and business risks and quarterly 

reviews of financial results involving variance reporting and updates of forecast 
outturns;  

  
• Clearly defined and formalised requirements for approval and control of 

expenditure, with investment decisions involving capital or revenue expenditure 
being subject to formal detailed appraisal and review according to approval  levels 
set by the Board of Governors; 

         
• Comprehensive Financial Regulations, detailing financial controls and procedures, 

approved by the Audit Committee and the Finance and General Purposes 
Committee;  

      
• Professional internal audit team whose annual programme is approved by the Audit 

Committee and endorsed by the Board of Governors and whose head provides the 
Board of Governors with a report on internal audit activity within the college and an 
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the college’s system of internal 
control, including internal financial control. 

        
Any system of internal financial control can, however, only provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.   
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Auditor 
 
The Auditor General for Scotland has appointed Mazars LLP to undertake the audit for 
the year ended 31 July 2021. 
           
Disclosure of Information to Auditors 
 
The Board of Governors certify that, so far as we are each aware, there is no relevant 
audit information of which the college’s auditors are unaware; and as members of the 
Board of Governors we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to 
make ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
college’s auditors are aware of that information. 
 
Approved by order of the members of the board on 7 December 2021 and signed on its 
behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
 
Alex Linkston 
Chair 
  



 West Lothian College  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Page 27   

 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
 
Introduction 
 
The college is committed to exhibiting best practice in all aspects of corporate 
governance. This summary is written to assist the reader of the financial statements and 
describes the manner in which the college has applied the principles of good 
governance set out in 2016 Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the 
Government’s Scottish Public Finance Manual.  
 
This governance statement is designed to supplement the information provided in the 
financial statements.  It sets out the governance structures, risk management and 
internal control processes that have been operating in West Lothian College in the year 
ended 31 July 2021 and reports the board’s assessment of the effectiveness of these 
arrangements. 
 
During 2020-21 there were changes to the board membership (see page 22). 
 
Governance Structure 
 
The college has an effective board and committee structure in place. All of the 
committees are formally constituted with terms of reference.   
 
 
 
       
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The full board meets four times a year. Due to Covid restrictions the board continued to 
hold meetings online throughout the year. In addition, an annual strategic meeting took 
place in May 2021 where the board invited AdvanceHE to lead a discussion on how to 
increase BAME representation at board level.  The board also received cyber security 
training. 
 
In March 2021 the board held a virtual risk workshop facilitated by the college’s internal 
auditors where risk tolerance levels were discussed and agreed. 
 
Board of Governor Committees 
 
Due to Covid restrictions all committee meetings were held virtually. 
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The Audit Committee meets four times a year, with the college’s external and internal 
auditors in attendance where required. The committee considers detailed reports 
together with recommendations for the improvement of the college’s systems of internal 
control and management’s responses and implementation plans.  It also receives and 
considers reports from the Scottish Funding Council as they affect the college’s business 
and monitors adherence to the regulatory requirements. The Principal and Chair attend 
meetings of the Audit Committee but are not members of the committee.  
 
The Finance and General Purposes Committee recommends to the board the college’s 
annual revenue and capital budgets and normally meets four times a year.  
 
The Learning and Teaching Committee meets four times a year, and focuses on the 
quality of the student experience.    
 
The Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration of senior staff, specifically 
the Principal and Vice Principals, and meets as required, normally once a year.  
 
The Nominations Committee considers candidates to fill vacancies on the board and 
meets as required, normally at least once per year.   The Nominations Committee is 
responsible for selecting candidates for appointment by the Board of Governors to 
vacancies in its membership.  The committee may use a number of selection methods, 
including external advertising, personal contact, the encouragement of nominations and 
the use of a search committee.  The committee considers the balance of membership, 
including members’ experience and skills and identifies any gaps.  The committee also 
tries to ensure that the membership of the board reflects its community.  The committee 
makes its recommendations to the board for consideration and approval for 
appointment. 
 
Board of Governors Membership 
 
The college’s Board of Governors comprises lay members, students and employees 
appointed under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992, as amended by 
the Further & Higher Education (Scotland) Act 2005 and subsequently by the Post-16 
Education (Scotland) Act 2013. The majority of board members are non-executive.  The 
roles of Chair and Vice-Chair of the Board of Governors are separated from the role of 
the college’s Principal. During 2020-21 the gender balance for non-executive positions 
changed from 7 males/6 females to 8 males/5 females.  Gender balance remains are 
area of focus and is part of the assessment process for all recruitment. 
 
Matters specifically reserved to the board for decision are set out in the college’s 
Standing Orders, by custom and under the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish 
Funding Council. The board acknowledges the responsibility for the ongoing strategic 
direction of the college, approval of major developments and the receipt of regular 
reports from the Principal on the day to day operations of its business. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 West Lothian College  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Page 29   

 
Board Effectiveness 
 
An annual Board Member review was completed for Non-Executive Members, and no 
issues were noted in terms of meeting attendance or performance of duties and all 
meetings met quorum requirements.  The following table is a summary of attendance for 
the period 1st August 2020 to 31st July 2021. 
 
Board/ 
Committee 

Board Audit L&T F&GP Nom Remun 

Actual 
Meetings 

4 4 4 4 2 2 

Alex Linkston 4 X 4 4 2 2 
Sue Cook  4 4 X X 2 2 
Frank Gribben 3 X X 3 X X 
Iain McIntosh 4 X 4 X 2 2 
Colin Miller 4 3 X X X X 
Elaine Cook 3 X 3 X X X 
Lynne Hollis 4 4 X 4 X X 
Richard 
Lockhart 

3 3 X X X X 

Thomas Bates 3 X 3 X X X 
Moira Niven 4 X 4 4 2 2 
Sue Stahly 2 X X 4 X X 
Jackie 
Galbraith 

4 X 4 4 X X 

Julia Simpson 2 X X 4 X X 
Neil Sinclair 4 X 4 X X X 
Kirsti Clark 3 X 3 4 X X 
Jeannette 
Dobson 

4 X X X X X 

Simon Ashpool 4 3 X X X X 
Jeremy Miles 1 1 X X X X 
Attendance 83% 75% 91% 97% 100% 100% 

 
Board Development Actions 
 
An annual Board Effectiveness Self-Assessment for 2020-21 was completed and 
externally validated in April 2021.  The self-assessment confirmed that the board and 
committees were operating effectively but highlighted the need to update the planned 
actions to be more readily measured.  
 
The following actions were noted as areas requiring improvement, with progress 
updates. 
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Action Progress Update 
 
 
We will demonstrate more proactive 
pursuit and early engagement with 
the aim of creating a more diverse 
representation on the board, such as 
those from an ethnic minority 
background. 

 
Diversity of the board is an area of focus 
and was included as a topic of external 
presentation at the Board Strategy Day in 
May.  
 
The Principal attended a meeting of the 
West Lothian Race Forum to discuss 
working in collaboration and agreed that the 
college will be represented at future WL 
Race Forum Board Meetings.  
 
Recruitment of new Board Members is 
focused on greater diversity and will be 
shared with local community Groups. 
 

 
We will update the Board Action Plan 
to reflect SMART (specific, 
measurable, achievable, realistic and 
timely) terms as possible. 
 

 
A revised Board Development Plan has 
been prepared with measurable outcomes.  
 
Progress updates are reviewed at each 
board, or committee as appropriate. 
 

 
We will implement revised risk 
management processes, including to 
respective roles and responsibilities 
during 2021, with regular updates on 
progress provided to the board. 
 

 
A revised approach was presented to the 
Principal by the VP's and a simplified 
approach was proposed for implementation 
in the September and December boards. 

 
We may further develop the 
Committee Chair appointment 
process, including succession 
planning and shadowing options to 
support continuity and skills 
development.  
 

 
A revised Skills Matrix was prepared, giving 
greater insight into the detailed skills and 
experience of Board Members.  This has 
been used to highlight gaps in current and 
future skills and experience, and diversity. 

 
We will develop a more structured 
review process for Board Chair and 
Board Members to ensure there is a 
consistent understanding of agreed 
actions and development areas. 
 

 
The Board Chair has completed a formal 
review of all Board Members using a 
standard process, and review template.  A 
final report was agreed with individual 
Board Members and the Board Chair, with 
any Development Actions captured on the 
Board Development Plan. 
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Assessment of Corporate Governance 
 
The Code of Good Governance states; “The board secretary may be a member of the 
senior management team in their board secretary capacity, but they cannot hold any 
other senior management team position at the same time”. During 2020-21 the Board of 
Governors reviewed the dual role held by the Vice Principal Finance & Corporate 
Services and agreed that the Secretary to the Board should be a separate and 
independent appointment.  On 6 April 2021 a new Secretary to the Board was 
appointed.  Between 1 August 2020 and 5 April 2021, the Vice Principal Finance and 
Curriculum Services acted as Secretary to the Board on an interim basis.  
 
5-year estates plan 
 
During 2020-21 the college produced its 5-year estates plan which captures the estates 
developments required to deliver on curriculum plans and give students the best 
possible learning experience.    
 
Risk Management 
 
The college maintains a Strategic Risk Register.  Each strategic risk is assigned an 
owner from the College Leadership team who agree the risk register and quarterly 
updates.  The Performance Report details key strategic risks identified during 2020-21 
and the mitigating actions. 
 
The most significant risks during 2020-21 were: 
 
• Failing to deliver the curriculum plan for 2020-21 due to disruption in the ongoing 

Covid pandemic resulting in disengagement of students. 
• Inflexible organisational structure due to national bargaining restrictions resulting in 

an unaffordable staffing structure and limited student experience. 
• Estate not adequately reconfigured in line with the college’s ambition for growth due 

to insufficient resources resulting in not meeting the needs of the region. 
• Pay awards and terms and conditions negotiated through the national bargaining 

process unaffordable resulting in the college not being financially sustainable 
• Sub-optimal business continuity plan due to a lack of a fully comprehensive off-site IT 

back-up facility resulting in the college not being able to fully operate efficiently in the 
event of a major incident. 

 
During 2020-21 the Board of Governors reviewed the process for identifying, reporting, 
evaluating and managing the college’s significant risks and agreed that it would: 
 
• Annually agree the college’s significant risks and undertake an annual risk workshop 

at which the risk appetite would be set 
• Delegate to the Audit Committee responsibility for reviewing the risk management 

framework  
• Delegate responsibility for the risks aligned with their respective remits to the Audit, 

Finance and General Purposes, and Learning and Teaching committees for 
reviewing and being satisfied that these risks are being managed effectively 
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• Receive a quarterly update from the Chairs of the Audit, Finance and General 
Purposes, and Learning and Teaching committees.   

 
Reports by management have been received and reviewed by the board and board 
Committees which have provided information as to how risks are being managed and 
what internal controls are in place.   
 
Internal Audit 
 
West Lothian College also has an internal audit service, the work of which concentrates 
on areas of key activities determined in accordance with the annual internal audit plan 
approved by the Board of Governors. The internal auditors report to the Audit 
Committee, and have direct access to the chair of the Audit Committee if required.  
The internal auditors issue an annual report that gives an opinion of the adequacy, 
reliability and effectiveness of the college’s internal control system. 
 
Internal audit reports have been received on a range of areas within the college during 
2020-21.  In the internal auditor’s opinion, the college has a framework of internal 
controls in place that provides reasonable assurance regarding the organisation’s 
governance, risk management, achievement of objectives and value for money for the 
year ended 31 July 2021. 
 
Internal Control 
 
The college’s Board of Governors is responsible for the college’s system of internal 
control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The review of the effectiveness of the system 
of internal control is conducted through the work of the Board of Governors, the Finance 
and General Purposes Committee and the Audit Committee. The system can provide 
only reasonable and not absolute assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions 
authorised and properly recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either 
prevented or would be detected within a timely period.   
 
The college has a range of internal financial controls which include:   
 
• a budgeting system with an annual budget which is approved by the Board of 

Governors; 
• the provision of management information on a planned, regular basis and as 

required; 
• regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of monthly and 

annual financial reports and key performance indicators which indicate financial 
performance against the forecasts; and 

• financial regulations, which identify policy and set up a control system within which 
management can delegate authority whilst informing staff of correct financial 
procedures. 
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Assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls 
 
The Board of Governors is of the opinion that throughout the year ended 31 July 2021, 
the college has been in compliance with all the principles set out in the 2016 Code of 
Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s Scottish Public 
Finance Manual.  
 
The Board of Governors is of the view that there is a process for identifying, evaluating 
and managing the college’s significant risks, that it has been in place for the year ended 
31 July 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial 
statements, that it is regularly reviewed by the Board of Governors and that it accords 
with the 2016 Code of Good Governance for Scotland’s Colleges and the Government’s 
Scottish Public Finance Manual. 
 
External auditors have reviewed the key financial controls to the extent required, to 
ensure the college’s financial statements are not materially misstated.  The external 
auditors have not identified any weaknesses in key controls and the wider scope work 
has identified appropriate Governance procedures and management has adequate 
arrangements in place covering standards of conduct.  
 
BREXIT 
 
The Board of Governors does not consider there to be any significant impact from 
BREXIT. 
 
Going Concern 
 
The Board of Governors has considered the college’s forecasts and financial projections 
and considers that the college has adequate resources to meet its ongoing liabilities and 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues 
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.  
 
Although the college has net liabilities, this is due to the change of treatment of deferred 
Government Grant (capital) which is now recognised as deferred income within creditors 
and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year 
as appropriate.   
 
 
Approved by order of the members of the board on 7 December 2021 and signed on its 
behalf by: 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF WEST LOTHIAN COLLEGE, THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR 
SCOTLAND AND THE SCOTTISH PARLIAMENT  
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements  

Opinion on financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of West 
Lothian College for the year ended 31 July 2021 under the Further and Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee 
Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. The financial statements comprise  the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, Statement of Changes in Reserves, Balance 
Sheet, and Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. The  financial reporting framework that has 
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements: 
 
• give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education 

(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council 
of the state of the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2021 and of its deficit for the year 
then ended; 

 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally 

Accepted Accounting Practice; and 
 
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further    and Higher 

Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish 
Funding Council, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and 
regulation 14 of The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 

 
Basis for opinion 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code   of Audit Practice 
approved by the Auditor General for Scotland. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of our report. We were appointed by the Auditor 
General on 31 May 2016. The period of total uninterrupted appointment is five years. 
We are independent of the college in accordance with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial  
Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Non-audit services 
prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the college. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
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Emphasis of Matter – Material valuation uncertainty   
 
We draw attention to Note 1(t) in the financial statements, which discloses a 
material valuation uncertainty caused by Covid-19 declared in the valuation 
report for property. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.   
 
Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 
 
We have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may 
cast significant doubt on the college’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern 
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial 
statements are authorised for issue. 
 
Risks of material misstatement 

 
We report in a separate Annual Audit Report, available from the Audit Scotland 
website, the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement that we 
identified and our judgements thereon. 
 
Responsibilities of the Board of Governors for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Governors' 
Responsibilities, the Board of Governors is responsible for the preparation of 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial 
reporting framework, and for such internal control as the Board of Governors 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors are responsible for 
assessing the college’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless deemed inappropriate. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws 
and    regulations. 
 

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
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We design procedures in line with our responsibilities outlined above to detect 
material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Procedures 
include: 

 
• obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory framework 

and how the college is complying with that framework; 
 

• identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of    the 
College; 

 
• assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material 

misstatement, including how fraud might occur; and 
 

• considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate 
competence and capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance with laws 
and regulations. 

 
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including 
fraud, is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the 
effectiveness of the college’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the audit 
procedures performed. 

 
Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than 
irregularities that result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. The capability of 
the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on factors such as the 
skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of manipulation, the degree 
of collusion involved, the relative size of individual amounts manipulated, and the 
seniority of those individuals involved. 

 
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 
report. 
 
Reporting on regularity of expenditure and income 

 
Opinion on regularity 

 
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial 
statements were incurred or applied in accordance with any applicable enactments 
and guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers. 

 
Responsibilities for regularity 

 
The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure 
and income. In addition to our responsibilities to detect material misstatements in 
the financial statements in respect of irregularities, we are responsible for 
expressing an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in accordance 
with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000. 

 

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx


 West Lothian College  
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Page 37   

 
Reporting on other requirements 

 
Opinion prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland on audited  part of the 
Remuneration and Staff Report 

 
We have audited the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report described as 
audited. In our opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has 
been properly prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding 
Council. 

 
Statutory other information 

 
The Board of Governors is responsible for the statutory other information in the 
annual report and accounts. The statutory other information comprises the 
Performance Report and the Accountability Report excluding the audited part of the 
Remuneration and Staff Report. 

 
Our responsibility is to read all the statutory other information and, in doing  so, 
consider whether the statutory other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent 
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a 
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this  
statutory other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard. 

 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the statutory other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon 
except on the Performance Report and Governance Statement to the extent 
explicitly stated in the following opinions prescribed by the Auditor General for 
Scotland. 

 
Opinions prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland on  Performance Report 
and Governance Statement 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

 
• the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which 

the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements 
and that report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish 
Funding Council; and 

 
• the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for 

which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial 
statements and that report has been prepared in accordance with the Further 
and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by 
the Scottish Funding Council. 
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

 
We are required by the Auditor General for Scotland to report to you if, in    our 
opinion: 

 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

 
• the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff 

Report are not in agreement with the accounting records; or 
 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 
 

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 
 

Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities 
 

In addition to our responsibilities for the annual report and accounts, our conclusions 
on the wider scope responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice are set out 
in our Annual Audit Report. 
 
Use of our report 

 
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with 
the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other p urpose. 
In accordance with paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, we do not 
undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual 
capacities, or to third parties. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Lucy Nutley 
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
 
Mazars LLP 
100 Queen Street 
Glasgow 
G1 3DN 
 
7 December 2021 
 
Lucy Nutley is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 21 of the 
Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   
 

  Notes 

Year    Year  
Ended   Ended 

31 July 
2021 £’000   

31 July 
2020 
£’000 

Income         
SFC grants 2 14,587   13,544 
Tuition fees and education contracts 3 3,437   3,243 
Other income 4 1,315   2,020 
Investment income 5 -   1 
          
Total Income   19,339   18,808 
          
Expenditure         
Staff Costs 6 15,232   14,782 
Other operating expenses 7 4,550   4,615 
Depreciation 10 1,035   769 
Interest payable 8 264   241 
          
Total Expenditure   21,081   20,407 
          

Deficit before tax   (1,742)   (1,599)   

Taxation 9     -   
Deficit for the year   (1,742)   (1,599) 
 
Unrealised Surplus on Revaluation of 
Assets 

 -   2,489 

Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect of pension 
schemes   4,335   (5,895) 

  
  

      
Total comprehensive income for the 
year 2,593   (5,005) 

          Represented by:   
Restricted comprehensive income 

  
-   - 

Unrestricted comprehensive income 2,593   (5,005) 

    
      

2,593   (5,005) 
The Statement of Comprehensive Income is prepared under the FE/HE SORP. The 
SORP does not permit colleges to reflect the non-cash budget for depreciation in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.  Note 28 provides details of the adjusted 
operating position on a Central Government basis. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES 
 

  

Income and 
Expenditure 

Account 
Revaluation 

Reserve Total 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

Balance at 31 July 2019 (13,351) 5,843 (7,508) 

Deficit from statement of comprehensive 
income (1,599) - (1,599) 

Other comprehensive income (5,895) 2,489 (3,406)   
Transfers between revaluation reserve and 
income and expenditure account 299 (299) - 

Total comprehensive income for the year (7,195) 2,190 (5,005) 

Balance at 31 July 2020 (20,546) 8,033 (12,513) 

Deficit from statement of comprehensive 
income (1,742) - (1,742) 

Other comprehensive income 4,335 - 4,335   
Transfers between revaluation reserve and 
income and expenditure account 495 (495) - 

Total comprehensive income for the year 3,088 (495) 2,593 

        
Balance at 31 July 2021 (17,458) 7,538 (9,920) 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 JULY 
 

 
 

 
Notes 

 
2021 
£’000 

  
2020 
£’000 

Non-Current Assets 
Fixed Assets 
 

 
10 19,391 

 
 

 
19,792 

Current Assets 
 
Trade and other receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
 

 
 

11 
17 

 
1,627 
2,749 

  
 

1,444 
1,129 

 
 

  
4,376 

  
2,573 

 
Less: Creditors; amounts falling due within 
one year 
 

 
12 (4,303) 

  
(3,358) 

 

Net Current Liabilities  73  (785) 
     
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 
 

 19,464  19,007 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more  
than one year 

13 
 
 

(13,768) 
 

 (13,415) 
 

Provisions 
Defined benefit obligations 
Other provisions 

 
15 
15 

 
(12,093) 
(3,523) 

  
(14,299) 
(3,806) 

     
Total Net Liabilities  (9,920)  (12,513) 
 
 

    

Unrestricted Reserves 
Income and expenditure account 
Revaluation reserve 
 

 
16 

 
(17,458) 

7,538 

  
(20,546) 

8,033 

Total Reserves  (9,920)  (12,513) 
 
 
The financial statements on pages 39 to 67 were approved by the Board of Governors  
On 7 December 2021 and signed on its behalf on that date by: 
 
 
 
 
 

Alex Linkston 
Chair 

 Jackie Galbraith 
Principal 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 
2021  
£’000 

 

 Year 
 Ended 
31 July 

2020  
£’000 

 
Cash flow from operating activities 
Deficit for the year 
 
Adjustment for non-cash items 
Depreciation  
Deferred capital grants released to income 
(Increase) in debtors 
Increase in creditors due within one year 
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 
Pension costs less contributions payable 
 
Adjustment for investing or financing activities 
Investment income 
Interest payable 
 

  
(1,742) 

 
 

1,035 
 (410) 
(183) 
1,074 
(199) 
1,781 

 
 

- 
264  

  
(1,599) 

 
 

769 
 (535) 
(274) 

615 
(200) 
1,510 

 
 

(1) 
241  

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating 
activities 

 1,620  526 

     
Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 
 

  
- 
 

  
1 

 
  -  1 
     
Cash flows from financing activities 
Repayments of amounts borrowed 

  
- 

  
 (158) 

  -  (158) 
     
Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents in the year 

  
1,620 

  
369 

     
 
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year 

  
1,129 

  
760 

 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

  
2,749 

  
1,129 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2021 
 
1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
a) Basis of Preparation 
 
The financial statements will be prepared in accordance with the Statement of 
Recommended Practice (SORP): Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019, 
and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards FRS 102 and the 2020-21 
Government Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) issued by the Scottish Government. 
They conform to the Accounts Direction and other guidance published by the Scottish 
Funding Council (FReM 2.2.8). 
 
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise 
judgement in applying the college’s accounting policies. 
 
b) Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements will be prepared under the historical cost convention as 
modified by the revaluation of surplus land and certain fixed assets. 
 
The accounting policies contained in the FReM apply International Reporting Standards 
as adapted or interpreted for the public sector context. Where the FReM permits a 
choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most 
appropriate to the college for the purposes of giving a true and fair view will be selected. 
The particular policies adopted by the college in dealing with items that are considered 
material to the financial statements are set out (FReM 2.2.8). 
 
c) Going Concern 
 
The activities of the college, together with the factors likely to affect its future 
development and performance will be set out in the Performance Report. The financial 
position of the college, its cash flow and liquidity will be presented in the Financial 
Statements and accompanying Notes. The net liabilities are due to the reclassification 
of deferred Government grants as deferred income within creditors and allocated 
between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as appropriate 
 
The college’s forecasts and financial projections will indicate that the college has a 
reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future, and for this reason will continue to adopt the going 
concern basis in the preparation of its Financial Statements. 
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d) Recognition of Income 
 
Income from the sale of goods or services will be credited to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income when the goods or services are supplied to the external 
customers or the terms of the contract have been satisfied.  
     
Fee income will be stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and credited 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period in which students are 
studying.   
Income received in advance will be recognised as deferred income within creditors on 
the balance sheet and then released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the 
period it is earned.     
    
All income from short-term deposits and Investment income will be credited to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income on a receivable basis.    
     
Funds the college receives and disburses as paying agent on behalf of a funding body 
will be excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income.    
       
e) Grant Funding 
 
Government revenue grants including the recurrent grants from the Scottish Funding 
Council will be recognised in income over the periods in which the college recognises 
the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. Where part of a 
government grant is deferred it will be recognised as deferred income within creditors 
and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year 
as appropriate. 
 
Grants from non-governmental sources will be recognised in income when the college is 
entitled to the income and performance related conditions have been met. Income 
received in advance of performance related conditions being met will be recognised as 
deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the 
conditions are met. 
 
f) Capital Grants 
 
Government capital grants will be recognised in income over the expected useful life of 
the asset. Other capital grants will be recognised in income when the college is entitled 
to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being met. 
 
g) Short Term Employment Benefits 
 
Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences will be 
recognised as an expense in the year in which the employees render service to the 
college. Any unused benefits will be accrued and measured as the additional amount 
the college expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement. 
 
h) Pension Schemes 
 
Retirement benefits to employees of the college are provided by the Teachers' 
Superannuation Scheme (Scotland) (STSS) and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF). 
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These are defined benefit schemes which are externally funded and contracted out of 
the State Earnings Related Pension Scheme until March 2016.   
 
i) STSS 
 
The college is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the 
STSS on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore, as required by FRS 102, will 
account for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The amount 
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income will represent the contributions 
payable to the scheme in respect of the year. The contributions will be determined by 
qualified actuaries on the basis of periodic valuations using the projected unit method. 
 
ii) LPF 
 
The college’s share of LPF scheme assets and liabilities are valued by the LPF actuary, 
Hymans Robertson. Contributions to the schemes will be charged to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees working 
lives with the college.  The contributions will be determined by an actuary on the basis 
of triennial valuations. In accordance with FRS 102, the amount charged to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income will represent the service cost expected to arise 
from employee service in the current year. 
 
The costs of enhanced early retirement benefits are borne directly by the college. 
 
i) Tangible Fixed Assets 
 
In line with the FReM all tangible assets must be carried at fair value. 
 
i) Land and Buildings  
 
Land and Buildings will be measured using the revaluation model. Under the revaluation 
model assets are revalued to fair value. Where appropriate Depreciated Replacement 
cost will be used as a measure of fair value for land and buildings otherwise Market 
Value will be used. The college has a policy of ensuring a full revaluation takes place at 
least every 5 years such that the fair value is not materially different to the current value.  
Depreciation and impairment losses will be subsequently charged on the revalued 
amount. 
 
Freehold land will not be depreciated as it is considered to have an indefinite useful life. 
 
college buildings will be depreciated over 30 years and transferred car parking areas will 
be depreciated over 25 years, both commencing in the first full financial year after the 
date of transfer of the estate to public ownership (2 April 2007). Other additions to the 
estate will be depreciated over 10 years from the date they are brought into use.  
 
Costs incurred in relation to land and buildings after initial purchase or construction, and 
prior to valuation, will be capitalised to the extent they increase the expected future 
benefits to the college. 
 
If a building is brought into use mid-way through a year the depreciation charge in the 
first year will be pro-rated to reflect the number of months the asset was in use.   
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A review for impairment of a fixed asset will be carried out if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. 
 
Buildings under construction will be accounted for at cost, based on the value of 
architects’ certificates and other direct costs incurred to 31 July. They will not be 
depreciated until they are brought into use. 
 
ii) Fixed Plant and Equipment 
 
Equipment will be capitalised at cost and carried at depreciated historical cost, which is 
used as a proxy for fair value when it is expected to be in use within the business on a 
continuing basis for at least 3 years. Depreciated historical cost is deemed to be more 
appropriate than revaluing for equipment as it is common for such assets to reduce in 
value rather than to increase as they are utilised by the college (FReM 6.2).   
 
Assets of a low value may be capitalised where they form part of a group of similar 
assets purchased at approximately the same time in the same financial year and cost 
over £2,500 in total. 
 
Capitalised equipment will be depreciated over its useful economic life from the date it is 
brought into use as follows: - 
  
 Fixed Plant 5-29 years 
 Equipment  4 years 
 
Where equipment is brought into use mid-way through a year the depreciation charge in 
the first year will be pro-rated to reflect the number of months that the asset was in use. 
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values will be reviewed at the date of 
preparation of each Balance Sheet. 
 
iii) Operating Leases 
  
Costs in respect of operating leases will be charged on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term.  Any lease premiums or incentives will be spread over the minimum lease 
term. 
 
iv) Finance Leases  
 
Leases in which the college assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the leased asset will be classified as finance leases. Leased assets acquired by way of 
finance lease and the corresponding lease liabilities will be initially recognised at an 
amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments at inception of the lease. 
 
Minimum lease payments will be apportioned between the finance charge and the 
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge will be allocated to each period 
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability. 
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Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an 
asset in return for payment will be accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets. 
  
j) Maintenance of Premises 
 
The cost of maintenance will be charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in 
the period in which it is incurred. 
 
k) Stocks 
 
Stocks will be written off in the year of acquisition on the basis of non-materiality. 
 
l) Cash  
 
Cash includes cash in hand, deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts. Deposits are 
repayable on demand if they are in practice available within 24 hours without penalty. 
 
m) Taxation 
 
The college is an exempt charity within the meaning of the Trustee Investment and 
Charities (Scotland) Act 2005 and, as such is a charity within the meaning of section 506 
(1) of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act (ICTA) 1988. The college is recognised as a 
charity by HM Revenue & Customs and is recorded on the index of charities maintained by 
the Office of Scottish Charity Regulator and therefore not liable for corporation tax. 
 
Non-recoverable Value Added Tax arising from expenditure on non-trading activities is 
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
The college benefits by being exempt from corporation tax on income it receives from 
tuition fees, interest and rents. 
 
n) Provisions 
 
Provisions will be recognised when the college has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. 
 
o) Agency Arrangements 
 
The college acts as an agent in the collection and payment of certain Student Support 
Funds. These funds will be excluded from the college Statement of Comprehensive 
Income; movements will be disclosed in the notes. Where the college has more discretion 
in the manner in which specific funds are disbursed, and these funds do not meet the 
definition of agency funds, the income and expenditure relating to those funds will be 
shown in the college Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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p) Financial Instruments 
 
The college only enters into basic financial instruments transactions that result in the 
recognition of financial assets and liabilities like trade and other debtors and creditors and 
other loans to related parties. 
  
Debt instruments that are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade debtors 
and creditors, will be measured, initially and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of 
the cash or other consideration expected to be paid or received.   
 
q) Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation   

uncertainty 
 
In preparing these financial statements, management will make the following judgements: 
 
• Determine whether leases entered into by the college either as a lessor or a lessee are 

operating or finance leases. These decisions depend on an assessment of whether the 
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the lessor to the lessee on 
a lease by lease basis. 

 
• Determine whether there are indicators of impairment of the college’s tangible assets. 

Factors taken into consideration in reaching such a decision include the economic 
viability and expected future financial performance of the asset. 

 
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
• Tangible fixed assets 
 
Tangible fixed assets will be depreciated over their useful lives taking into account residual 
values, where appropriate. The actual lives of the assets and residual values are assessed 
annually and may vary depending on a number of factors. In re‐assessing asset lives, 
factors such as technological innovation and maintenance programmes will be taken into 
account. 
 
• Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability 
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety 
of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions 
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying 
amount of the pension liability.  
 
• Material Valuation Uncertainty (revaluation of land and buildings) 
 
The outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (Covid), declared by the World Health Organisation 
as a “Global Pandemic” on the 11 March 2020, has impacted many aspects of daily life 
and the global economy – with some real estate markets experiencing significantly lower 
levels of transactional activity and liquidity. As at the valuation date, 31 July 2020, there 
was a shortage of market evidence for comparison purposes, to inform opinions of value. 
The valuation was therefore reported as being subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as 
set out in VPS 3 and VPGA 10 of the RICS Valuation – Global Standards. Consequently, 
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less certainty – and a higher degree of caution – should be attached to the valuation than 
would normally be the case. For the avoidance of doubt, the inclusion of the ‘material 
valuation uncertainty’ declaration above does not mean that the valuation cannot be relied 
upon. Rather, the declaration has been included to ensure transparency of the fact that – 
in the current extraordinary circumstances – less certainty can be attached to the valuation 
than would otherwise be the case. The material uncertainty clause is to serve as a 
precaution and does not invalidate the valuation.  
 
2 SFC GRANTS  
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

SFC Teaching & fee waiver grant 
Childcare funds 
Release of deferred capital grants (SFC) 
Other SFC Grants 

 11,857 
491 
410 

1,829 

 11,821 
678 
535 
510 

   
14,587 

  
13,544 

 
3 TUITION FEES AND EDUCATION CONTRACTS  
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

FE Fees - UK 
HE Fees - UK 
SDS contracts 

 851 
1,588 

998 

 848 
1,647 

748 
 
 

  
3,437 

  
3,243 

 
4  OTHER INCOME  
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

Residence and catering 
European funds 
Other income generating activities 
Other income 

 16 
- 

938 
361 

 260 
27 

1,173 
560 

 
 

  
1,315 

  
2,020 
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5  INVESTMENT INCOME 
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

 
Other Interest Receivable 
 

  
- 
 

  
1 

 
 
 
6 STAFF COSTS 
 
The average weekly number of persons (including senior post-holders) employed by the 
college during the period was: 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

FTE 

 Year 
 Ended 

31 July 2020 
FTE 

 
Teaching departments 
Teaching support services 
Administration 
Premises 
Catering and residences 
Other Income-generating activities 
Other staff 

  
167 

35 
45 
20 
6 

19 
2 

  
161 

35 
42 
18 
6 

18 
2 

 
 

  
294 

  
282 

 
Analysed as: 
Staff on permanent contracts 
Staff on temporary contracts 

  
 

258 
36 

  
 

272 
10 

 
 

  
294 

  
282 
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  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

 Year 
 Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

Staff Costs for the above persons 
 
Wages and salaries 
Social security costs 
Other pension costs 
Restructuring costs 

  
 

10,478 
978 

3,785 
(9) 

  
 

10,310 
955 

3,418 
99 

 
 

  
15,232 

  
14,782 

 
 

    

Analysed as: 
Staff on permanent contracts 
Staff on temporary contracts 
Pension charge less contributions paid 
Restructuring costs 

  
12,934 

526 
1,781 

(9) 

  
12,696 

477 
1,510 

99 
   

15,232 
  

14,782 
 
 
 
 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

Analysed as: 
Teaching departments 
Teaching support services 
Administration 
Premises 
Catering and residences 
Other income-generating activities 
Other staff 
Pension charge less contributions paid 
Restructuring costs 

  
8,218 
1,163 
1,882 

712 
208 
839 
438 

1,781 
 (9) 

  
8,190 
1,125 
1,714 

686 
204 
777 
477 

1,510 
99 

 
 

  
15,232 

  
14,782 

 
Key management personnel 
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility 
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the college and are 
represented by the Senior Team which comprises the Principal and three Vice 
Principals. 
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Emoluments of Key management personnel, Accounting Officer and other 
higher paid staff  
 
  

2021 
  

2020 
 

 No.  No. 
 
The number of key management personnel 
including the Accounting Officer was: 

 
 

4 

  
 

3 
 

 
 
The number of key management personnel and other staff who received annual 
emoluments, excluding pension contributions but including benefits in kind, in the 
following ranges was: 
 
 Key management 

personnel 
Other staff 

  
2021 

 
2020 

 
2021 

 
2020 

 
  

No. 
 

No. 
 

No. 
 

No. 
 
£70,001 to £80,000 
£110,001 to £120,000 

 
3 
1 

 
2 
1 

 
- 
- 

 
- 
- 

 
 

 
4 

 
3 

 
- 

 
- 

 
Key management personnel emoluments are made up as follows: 
 
 2021 

 
2020 

 
 £’000 £’000 

Salaries 
Benefits in kind 

340 
- 

255 
- 

 340 255 
 
Pension contributions 

67 50 

 
Total emoluments 

407 305 
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There were no amounts due to key management personnel that were waived in the year, 
nor any salary sacrifice arrangements in place.  The above emoluments include amounts 
payable to the Accounting officer (who is also the highest paid officer) of: 
 
 2021 

 
2020 

 
 £’000 £’000 

Salaries 
Benefits in kind 

117 
- 

107 
- 

 117 107 
 
Pension contributions 

23 21 

 
Total emoluments 

140 128 

 
Compensation for loss of office paid to former key management personnel 
 
 2021 

 
2020 

 
 £’000 £’000 

Compensation paid to former post-holders 
Estimated value of other benefits, including provision for 
pension benefits 

- 
- 

- 
- 

 
Overseas Activities 
 
There were no costs incurred during 2020-21 in respect of overseas activities, which were 
carried out in accordance with the strategy approved by the Board of Governors. 
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7  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

 
Teaching departments 
Teaching support services 
Administration 
Premises 
Catering 
Other income generating activities 
Overspend on student support funds 
Childcare fund costs 
Other 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1,095 

170 
1,192 
1,452 

27 
93 

- 
492 

29 

  
834 
216 

1,419 
806 
134 
391 

- 
678 
137 

   
4,550 

  
4,615 

 
Other Operating Expenses (Administration) 
include: 
 

    

Auditors Remuneration (including 
irrecoverable VAT) 

- Internal audit 
- External audit 

Other services provided by: 
- Internal audit 
- External audit 
-  

  
 

37 
15 

 
- 
- 

  
 

22 
15 

 
- 
- 

  52  37 
 
 
8  INTEREST PAYABLE 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

 
On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans 
Pension finance costs 

  
- 

264 
 

  
- 

241 
 

  264  241 
 
9 TAXATION 
 
The board does not believe the college was liable for any corporation tax arising out of its 
activities during this period. 
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10  FIXED ASSETS 
 Land and 

Buildings 
Freehold 

£'000 

Fixed Plant 
 
 

£'000 

Equipment 
 

 
£’000 

Total 
 
 

£'000 
Cost or valuation 
 
At 31 July 2020 
Additions  
Disposals 
 

 
 

18,539 
554 

(564) 
 

 
 

1,810 
- 
- 
 

 
 

66 
80 

(66) 
 

 
 

20,415 
634 

(630) 

At 31 July 2021 18,529 1,810 80 20,419 
 
Depreciation 
 
At 31 July 2020 
Charge for Period 
Disposals 
 

 
 
 

564 
633 

(564) 
 

 
 
 
- 

382 
- 
 

 
 
 

59 
20 

(66) 
 

 
 
 

623 
1,035 
(630) 

At 31 July 2021 633 382 13 1,028 
 
Net Book Value 

    

At 31 July 2021 17,896 1,428 67 19,391 
 
Net Book Value 

    

At 31 July 2020 17,975 1,810 7 19,792 
     
Financed by: 
Capital Grant 

17,896 1,428 67 19,391 

 
The college’s land and buildings were independently valued by GVA James Barr as at 
31 July 2020. This valuation has been incorporated into these financial statements. 
Under FRS102 the board gives annual consideration to assessing the value of buildings 
and equipment to be included in the annual accounts. The basis of valuation adopted 
was depreciated replacement cost. Had they not been re-valued, inherited and owned 
land, buildings and fixed plant would have had an historic net book value of 
£14,474,000 (2020: £16,816,000). 
 
11 TRADE AND OTHER RECOVERABLES 

  Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

Trade Debtors  
European Funding 
Prepayments and accrued income 
Amounts Owed by SFC 

 260 
  45 

1,322 
- 

 419 
- 

976 
49 

 
 

  
1,627 

  
1,444 
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12   CREDITORS:  Amounts falling due within one year 
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 
 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

Trade Creditors  
Taxation and Social Security 
Accruals and Deferred income 
Deferred Income – Deferred capital grant < 1 Year 
Deferred Income – SFC capital grants 
Deferred Income – SFC revenue grants 
Amounts Owed to SFC 
Unspent Student Funds 
 

 667 
487 

1,917 
439 

12 
316 

- 
465 

 289 
450 

1,838 
410 

12 
183 
158 

18 

   
4,303 

  
3,358 

 
13  CREDITORS:  Amounts falling due after one year 
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 
 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

 
Amounts Owed to SFC 
Deferred Income – SFC Capital grants 
 

  
2,211 

11,557 

  
2,053 

11,362 

 
 

  
13,768 

  
13,415 

 
14 MATURITY OF DEBT  
 
SFC Loan is repayable as follows: 
 
  Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 
 

 Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

In one year or less 
Between one and two years 
Between two and five years 
In five years or more 

 - 
- 

158 
2,053 

 - 
- 
- 

2,211 
 
 

  
2,211 

  
2,211 

The college voluntarily terminated its PFI contract in April 2007, at which point the title of 
the college buildings transferred to the college.  The college received total funding from 
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SFC in April 2007 of £27.7million to enable it to terminate the contract.  This comprised a 
grant of £22.16million and a repayable advance of £5.54million representing the 
college’s own contribution towards the cost of the assets previously held under the PFI 
contract.   
 
The £5.54million advance is interest free and was repayable in equal instalments over 
16 years.  The first repayment was made in August 2010 and at 31 July 2019 the 
amount outstanding was £2,369,055.  In March 2014 the college made an upfront 
payment of £650,000 towards the loan and negotiated a reduced annual payment of 
£157,937 per annum with the Scottish Funding Council from April 2015. 
 
 In 2020 the Scottish Funding Council agreed to the suspension of repayments on the 
loan from July 2021 to July 2025 inclusive, recommencing in July 2026. As a result, the 
loan period has been extended to July 2039. 
 
15 PROVISIONS  
 
 Defined 

Benefit 
Obligations  

 
£’000 

Early 
Retirement 

Provision  
 

£’000 

Total 
 
 
 

£'000 
 
At 1 August 2020 
 
Expenditure in the period 
Other movements in period 
 

 
14,299 

 
(998) 

(1,208) 

 
3,806 

 
(199) 
(84) 

 
18,105 

 
(1,197) 
(1,292) 

 
At 31 July 2021 

 
12,093 

 
3,523 

 
15,616 

 
Defined benefit obligations relate to liabilities under the college’s membership of the 
Local Government pension scheme.  Further details are given at Note 18. 
 
The early retirement provision is in accordance with a valuation carried out by Hymans 
Robertson, an independent firm of actuaries at 31 July 2021. 
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16 RESERVES 
 
Analysis of income and expenditure account 
 
 I&E 

Account  
Trading 

Activities 
 

£'000 
 

I&E 
Account  
Holiday 

Pay 
 

£,000 

I&E  
Account 

 PFI Loan 
 
 

£'000 
 

I&E  
Account 

 Early  
Retirement  

 
£'000 

 

I&E  
Account 
Defined 
Benefit 
Pension  

£’000 

Total 
 
 
 
 

£'000 

At 31 July 2020 
 

(33) (197) (2,211) (3,806) (14,299) (20,546) 

Total 
comprehensive 
income for the 
year 
(excluding 
revaluation) 
 

371 (68) - 84 2,206 2,592 

Transfer from 
revaluation 
reserve 
  

495     495 

Payments for early 
retirement 
 

(199)   199  - 

 
At 31 July 2021 
 

 
633 

 
(265) 

 
(2,211) 

 
(3,523) 

 
(12,093) 

 
(17,459) 

 
 
17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
  
 At 1 August 

2020 
 £'000 

 
Cash 

Flows 
 £'000 

 

 
Other 
£'000 

At 31 July 
2021 

 £'000 

Cash 
Debt due within 1 year 
Debt due after 1 year 

1,129 
(158) 

(2,053) 

1,620 
- 
- 

- 
158 

(158) 

2,749 
- 

(2,211) 
 
 

 
(1,082) 

 
1,620 

 
- 

 
538 
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18 PENSION COMMITMENTS 
 
The college’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Scottish 
Teachers’ Superannuation Scheme (STSS), and the Lothian Pension Fund (LPF).   
 
Total pension cost for the period Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 
 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

 
STSS contributions paid 
 

    1,005  1,009 

LPF Pension scheme: 
        Contributions paid 
        FRS 102 (28) charge 
 

 
998 

1,781 

  
899 

1,510 

 

Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income 
 

 2,779  2,409 

 
Total Pension Cost  for the period within staff 
costs 

 3,785  3,418 

 
Contributions amounting to £171,000 (2020: £158,000) were payable to the schemes at 
31 July and are included within creditors. 
 
Scottish Teachers Superannuation Scheme 
 
The Scottish Teachers' Superannuation Scheme is a notional fund valued every year by 
the Government actuary.  Contributions are paid by the college at the rate specified.  
The Scheme is unfunded and contributions are made to the Exchequer.  The payments 
from the scheme are made from funds voted by the Scottish Parliament.  The 
contribution rate payable by the employer since 1 April 2015 is 17.2% of pensionable 
salaries. From 1 September 2019 this rate increased to 23%. 
 
Under the definitions set out in Financial Reporting Standard 102 (28.11) (FRS 102), the 
STSS is a multi-employer pension plan.  The college is unable to identify its share of the 
underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme.  Accordingly, the college has taken 
advantage of its exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions as if it 
were a defined contribution plan. The college has set out above the information available 
on the plan and the implications for the college in terms of the anticipated contribution 
rates. 
 
Lothian Pension Fund Scheme 
 
The Lothian Pension Fund is valued every three years by professionally qualified 
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method, the rates of contribution 
payable being determined by the trustees on the advice of the actuaries.  In the 
intervening years, the LPF actuary reviews the progress of the LPF scheme. 
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The Lothian Pension Fund is a funded defined-benefit plan, with assets held in separate 
funds administered by City of Edinburgh Council.  The total contributions made for the 
year ended 31 July 2021 were £1,178,000 and employees’ contributions totalled 
£279,000.  The agreed contribution rates for future years for the employer are 19.8% 
from 1 April 2020.  For employees, contribution rates range from 5.5% to 12.0% 
depending on salary. 
 
Principal Actuarial assumptions 
 
The following information is based upon a full actuarial valuation of the fund at 31 March 
2017 updated to 31 July 2021 by a qualified independent actuary. 
 
 At 31 July  

2021 
 

At 31 July  
2020 

 
Rate of increase in salaries 3.4% 3.9% 
Future pensions increases 2% 2.2% 
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.6% 1.4% 
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.9% 3.1% 
Commutation of pensions – pre April 2009 50% 50% 
Commutation of pensions – post April 2009 75% 75% 

 
The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements 
in mortality rate. The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are: 
 
 
 

Males Females 

Current pensioners 20.5 years 23.3 years 
Future pensioners  21.9 years 25.2 years 

 
The college’s share of assets in the scheme and the expected rate of return are: 

 
 Long term 

rate of 
return  

 

Fair 
Value at  
31 July 

2021 
£'000 

Long term 
rate of 
return  

 

Fair Value 
 at  

31 July 
2020 
£'000 

     
Equities 1.6% 19,697 1.4% 17,524 
Bonds 1.6% 3,831 1.4% 2,536 
Property 1.6% 1,641 1.4% 1,614 
Cash 1.6% 2,188 1.4% 1,384 
     
Total fair value of employer assets  27,357  23,058 
     
 
Actual return on employer assets 

  
3,690 

  
(1,250) 
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The amount included in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit 
pension plan is as follows: 
 
 Year Ended 

31 July 2021 
£'000 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 
   
Fair value of employer assets 27,357 23,058 
Present value of funded liabilities (39,450) (37,357) 
   
Net Pension Liability (12,093) (14,299) 

 
 
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the 
plan are as follows: 
 
 Year Ended 

31 July 2021 
£'000 

Year Ended 
31 July 2020 

£'000 
Amounts included in staff costs   
   
Current service cost 2,779 2,158 
Past service cost 
 

- 251 

Total 2,779 2,409 
 
 
Amounts included in Pension Costs   
   
Net pension costs 
 

212 164 

Total 212 164 
 
 
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income 

  

   
Return on pension assets 3,362 (1,752) 
Change in demographic assumptions 1,458 - 
Change in financial assumptions (2,667) (4,117) 
Other experience 
 

2,046 
 

148 

Total 4,199 (5,721) 
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Movement in net defined benefit (liability) during 
year 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

   
Net defined benefit (liability) at start of period (14,299) (6,904) 
Movement in period:   

Current service costs (2,779) (2,158) 
Past service costs - (251) 
Employer contributions 998 899 
Net interest on the defined liability (212) (164) 
Actuarial (loss)/gain 4,199 (5,721) 

 
Net defined benefit (liability) at end of period 

 
(12,093) 

 
(14,299) 

 
Asset and Liability Reconciliation 
 
 
Changes in fair value of plan assets Year  

Ended 
31 July 2021 

£’000 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

   
Fair value of plan assets at start of period 23,058 23,756 
Interest on plan assets 
Past Service Cost 

328 
- 

502 
(216) 

Return on plan assets 3,362 (1,752) 
Employer contributions 998 899 
Contributions by plan participants 
Other experience 

308 
(163) 

279 
- 

Benefits paid (534) (410) 
 
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 

 
27,357 

 
23,058 

 
 
Changes in the present value of defined benefit 
obligations 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2021 
£’000 

Year  
Ended 

31 July 2020 
£’000 

   
Defined benefit obligation at start of period 37,357 30,660 
Current service cost 2,779 2,158 
Past service cost - 35 
Interest cost 540 666 
Contributions by plan participants 308 279 
Changes in demographic assumptions (1,458) - 
Changes in financial assumptions 2,667 4,117 
Other experience (2,209) (148) 
Benefits paid (534) (410) 

Defined benefit obligation at end of period (39,450) 37,357 
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19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
Financial Assets 
 
Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost totalled £260,000 
(2020: £468,000) at the balance sheet date.  This comprises trade debtors and amounts 
owed by SFC. 
 
Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost totalled £5,248,000 (2020: £4,356,000) 
at the balance sheet date.  This comprises trade creditors, accruals, unspent student 
funds and amounts owed to SFC. 
 
 
20 LOSSES AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS 
 
 

Above SFC annual reporting 
requirements 

SFC 
Requirement 
Per Instance 

 
2021 

Number 

 
2021 
Total 

 
Debt write-off 

 
£3,000 

  

Cash losses £3,000 - - 
Ex-gratia payments £1,000 1 £17,303 
Compensation payments £5,000 - - 

 
The ex-gratia payments were approved by the Scottish Funding Council.  
 
 
21   CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
 
At 31 July the college had commitments of a capital nature as follows: 
 
 2021 

£000 
2020 
£000 

 
Committed but not contracted 

 
- 

 
- 

Committed and contracted - - 
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22 LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
 
At 31 July the college had minimum lease payments under non‐cancellable operating 
leases as follows: 
 
 2021  

£’000 
2020 
£000 

Other   
 
Expiring within one year 
Expiring between one and five years 
 

 
                      
38 
- 

   
                       
45 
                       
38 

 38 83 
 
During 2020-21 the college paid £45,000 in operating lease rentals. 
 
23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
There were no contingent liabilities at Balance Sheet date. 
 
24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Owing to the nature of the college’s operations and the composition of the Board of 
Governors being drawn from local public and private organisations, it is inevitable that 
transactions will take place with organisations in which a member of the Board of 
Governors may have an interest.  All transactions involving such organisations are 
conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the college’s financial regulations and 
normal procurement procedures. 
 
The college had transactions during the year or worked in partnership with the following 
publicly funded or representative bodies in which members of the Board of Governors 
hold or held official positions. 
 
Name 
 

Organisation Position 

Mr Alex Linkston 
 
Elaine Cook 
 

Colleges Scotland 
 
West Lothian Council 
 

Board Member 
 
Depute Chief Executive  

2019-20 
Name 
 

Organisation Position 

Mr Alex Linkston 
 
Mr Alex Linkston 
 
Elaine Cook 
 

NHS Forth Valley 
 
Colleges Scotland 
 
West Lothian Council 
 

Chair 
 
Board Member 
 
Depute Chief Executive  
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The value of the transactions due to/by the college for the twelve months ended 31 July 
2021, and the amount outstanding at this date was as follows: 
 

Organisation Year ended 31 July 2021 Year ended 31 July 2020 

  

Total Value 
of 

Transactions 
Balance 

Outstanding 
Total Value 

of 
Transactions 

Balance 
Outstanding 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Due to WLC                                
West Lothian Council - - 57                   - 
NHS Forth Valley - - 1                   - 
Due by WLC         

Colleges Scotland 30 0 27                    
- 

West Lothian College 178 11 425                    
- 

 
No expenses were paid to or on behalf of the Governors during the year. (2020: £431;  
2 governors).  This represents travel and subsistence expenses and other out of pocket 
expenses in attending Governor meetings and other events in their official capacity. 
 
The Chair of the Board received a salary in accordance with the directions issued by the 
Scottish Government.  The total paid to the Chair over the period was £23,758 (2020: 
£23,123) 
 
 
25 FE BURSARIES AND OTHER STUDENT SUPPORT FUNDS 

 
 FE 

Bursary 
£’000 

 

FE  
Discr’y 
£’000 

 
EMAs 
£’000 

 
OTHER 
£’000 

2020-21 
Total 
£’000 

2019-20 
Total 
£’000 

Balance b/fwd 
 

- - (16) - (16) 25 

Allocations received in 
year 
 

2,983 625 318 584 4,510 3,701 

Expenditure 
 

(2,458) (993) (149) (455) (4,056) (3,776) 

Repaid to SFC  
 

(20) - (169) - (189) (47) 
 

Virements 
 

(82) 368 - (86) 216 95 

 
Balance c/fwd 

 
422 

 
- 

 
- 

 
43 

 
465 

 
     (2) 

       
 
Residual cash balances and the corresponding creditor / (debtor) are included in the 
balance sheet.  FE Bursaries and Student Support Funds are available solely for 
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students; the college acts only as paying agent.  The grants and related disbursements 
are therefore excluded from the Statement of Comprehensive Income.   
 
26 CHILDCARE FUNDS 
 

 2020-21 
£’000 

 

2019-20 
£’000 

 
Balance b/fwd - - 
Allocations received in year 708 774 
Expenditure (492) (679) 
Virements (216) (95) 
 
 Balance c/fwd 

 
- 

 
- 

   

 
Residual cash balances and the corresponding creditor are included in the balance sheet.  
Childcare Funds are reported gross in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.   
 
 
27 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 
 
There have been no significant post balance sheet events. 
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28 IMPACT OF DEPRECIATION BUDGET ON STATEMENT OF 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 
Following reclassification, colleges received a non-cash budget to cover depreciation but 
this additional budget is not recognised under the FE/HE SORP accounting rules.  
Colleges may show a deficit equivalent to net depreciation as a result of having to meet 
Government accounting rules and the requirement to spend the entire cash allocation. 
 
Under the FE/HE SORP, the college recorded an operating deficit of £1,742,000 for the 
year ended 31 July 2021.  After adjusting for the non-cash allocation provided under 
government rules, the college shows an ‘adjusted’ deficit of £1,552,000 on a Central 
Government basis. 
 
 2020-21 

 
£’000 

 

2019-20 
 

£’000 

Deficit before other gains and losses (FE/HE 
SORP basis) for academic year 
 

(1,742) (1,599) 

Add: Depreciation budget for government 
funded assets (net of deferred capital grant) 
for academic year 
 

190 190 

Operating deficit on Central Government 
accounting basis for academic year 
 
 

(1,552) (1,409) 

 
The deficit is attributable to other factors reflected in the adjusted operating table (see 
page 14) and the college is therefore operating sustainably within its funding allocation. 
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APPENDIX 1 
 

Accounts Direction 
 
The following note is taken from the 2020-21 SFC Accounts Directions and has 
been included as required by SFC.  It does not form part of the Financial 
Statements. 
 
Accounts direction for Scotland’s colleges 2020-21  
 
1. It is the Scottish Funding Council’s direction that institutions1 comply with the 2019 
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further and Higher Education 
(SORP) in preparing their annual report and accounts.  
 
2. Institutions must comply with the accounts direction in the preparation of their annual 
report and accounts in accordance with the Financial Memorandum with the Scottish 
Funding Council (SFC) or the Regional Strategic Body (RSB) (for assigned colleges).  
 
3. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board are also required to 
comply with the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2020-21 (FReM) where 
applicable.  
 
4. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board are reminded that they 
must send two copies of their annual report and accounts to the Auditor General for 
Scotland by 31 December 2021.  
 
5. The annual report and accounts should be signed by the chief executive officer / 
Executive Director and by the chair, or one other member of the governing body.  
 
6. Incorporated colleges and Glasgow Colleges’ Regional Board should reproduce this 
Direction as an appendix to the annual report and accounts.  
 
 
 
Scottish Funding Council  
3 June 2021  



BUDGET FOR YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET TO DATE VARIANCE NOTES
INCOME
Grant in Aid 12,030,855 11,856,666 12,030,855 -174,189 1
Fees 2,446,939 2,439,012 2,446,939 -7,927
SDS Contracts 1,087,011 997,514 1,087,011 -89,497
Income Generation 1,158,585 938,342 1,158,585 -220,243
European Funds 258,351 0 258,351 -258,351
Other Income 332,789 376,929 332,789 44,140
Other SFC Funding 1,185,771 1,829,069 1,185,771 643,298 2

18,500,301 18,437,532 18,500,301 -62,769

EXPENDITURE
SALARIES
Faculties 8,635,513 8,478,108 8,635,513 157,405
Departments 2,905,530 2,942,779 2,905,530 -37,249
Business Development 801,626 805,541 801,626 -3,916
Other Activities 88,590 87,270 88,590 1,320
Estates 895,424 934,257 895,424 -38,833

13,326,683 13,247,956 13,326,683 78,727 3
SUPPLIES & SERVICES
Faculties 537,978 866,688 537,978 -328,710
Departments 1,610,573 1,351,962 1,610,573 258,611
Business Development 452,151 156,393 452,151 295,758
Other Activities 258,559 1,026 258,559 257,533
Estates 1,551,664 1,269,203 1,551,664 282,461

4,410,925 3,645,271 4,410,925 765,654 4

OTHER PAYROLL COSTS 306,000 306,037 306,000 -37

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 18,043,608 17,199,264 18,043,608 844,344



TRADING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 456,693 1,238,268 456,693 -907,113

Pension Transfers 0 0 0 0
Apprenticeship Levy -35,000 -35,420 -35,000 -420
Holiday Pay Accrual 0 -68,420 0 -68,420

-35,000 -103,840 -35,000 -68,840
INTEREST
Interest Receivable 1,452 0 1,452 -1,452
Interest Payable 0 0 0 0

1,452 0 1,452 -1,452
DEFERRED GRANT & DEPRECIATION
Release of Deferred Grant 409,505 409,705 409,505 200
Depreciation -711,181 -1,035,031 -711,181 -323,850

-301,676 -625,326 -301,676 -323,650 5
STUDENT FUNDS
Student Funds Income 4,631,393 4,547,505 4,631,393 -83,888
Student Funds Expenditure -4,631,393 -4,547,505 -4,631,393 83,888

0 0 0 0
INVESTMENT FUND
College Spend -58,000 -216,000 -58,000 -158,000 6
Transfer to ALF 0 0 0 0

-58,000 -216,000 -58,000 -158,000

COLLEGE SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 63,469 293,102 63,469 -1,459,055

PENSION
FRS102 LPF -1,327,000 2,206,000 -1,327,000 3,533,000
Early Retirement Provision -204,000 93,148 -204,000 297,148

-1,531,000 2,299,148 -1,531,000 3,830,148 7



FRS102 SURPLUS (DEFICIT) -1,467,531 2,592,250 -1,467,531 2,371,093

Transfer (to)/from pension reserve 1,327,000 -2,206,000 1,327,000 -3,533,000 7
Transfer (to)/from revaluation reserve 298,468 495,053 298,468 196,585

AMOUNT CARRIED FORWARD TO I&E 157,937 881,303 157,937 -965,322 8

NOTES:
1. Grant in Aid (GIA) variance relates to revenue funding transferred to capital.
2. Other funds made available e.g. co-vid, mental health counsellors etc. after budget set.
3. Salary cost at July include pension adjustments.

5. Depreciation greater than budgeted due to revaluation and additional assets capitalised.
6. Investment spend includes £58k budgeted and £158k available as a consequence of SFC Loan break.
7. FRS Pension adjustment based on actuarial valuations, therefore out-with College management control.
8. £881k transferred to I&E this FY largely as a result of improved FRS Pension position

4. Underspends in supplies & services largely as a result of revenue spend being capitalised at year-end i.e. costs moved from the 
SOCIE to the balance sheet.
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Board of Governors 
 
LETTER OF REPRESENTATION TO MAZARS 
 
The letter of representation provides assurance to the college’s external 
auditors, Mazars, that the board is aware of its responsibilities in relation to 
the audit of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2021.   
 
The board’s responsibilities are set out in the attached letter which is signed 
by the Principal and Chair of the Board of Governors on behalf of the board. 
 
Action 
 
The Board of Governors is invited to discuss and agree that the letter be 
signed by the Principal and Chair of the Board of Governors on behalf of the 
board. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Corporate Services 
7 December 2021 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
7 December 2021 
 
 
Mazars 
Apex 2 
97 Haymarket Terrace 
Edinburgh 
EH12 5 HD 
 
 
 
Dear Sirs  
 
LETTER OF REPRESENTATION  
 
We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief the following representations 
given to you in connection with your audit of the college’s accounts for the period 
ended 31 July 2021.  
 
We acknowledge as members of the Board of Governors our responsibility for 
ensuring:  
 
a) the financial statements are free of material misstatements including 

omissions;  
b) that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 

the college as at 31st July 2021;  
c) all the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of 

your audit and all the transactions undertaken by the college have been 
properly reflected and recorded in the accounting records;  

d) all other records and related information, including minutes of all management 
meetings, have been made available to you;  

e) the accounting policies used are detailed in the financial statements and are 
consistent with those adopted in the previous financial statements and are in 
accordance with the Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding 
Council (SFC) under the terms of the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) 
Act 1992; and f) compliance with the terms and conditions of the Financial 
Memorandum issued to the Board of Governors by the SFC.  

 
Azets acted as Internal Auditors to the college during the year. All reports issued to 
the college and our responses to them have been made available to you.  
 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal 
control systems to prevent and detect fraud. We have disclosed to you the results of 
our risk assessment that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of 
fraud. There have been no irregularities (or allegations of irregularities) involving 



 
 

 

management, employees who have a significant role in internal control or others that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
 
The college has no liabilities or contingent liabilities other than those disclosed in the 
accounts.  
 
All claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, 
received have been properly accrued for in the financial statements. 
 
There have been no events since the balance sheet date that require disclosure or 
which would materially affect the amounts in the accounts, other than those already 
disclosed or included in the accounts. Should further material events occur, which 
may necessitate revision of the figures included in the financial statements or 
inclusion of a note thereto, we will advise you accordingly.  
 
The college has had at no time during the year any arrangement, transaction or 
agreement to provide credit facilities (including loans, quasi-loans or credit 
transactions) for the Board of Governors nor to guarantee or provide security for 
such matters.  
 
We confirm that we have disclosed to you all related party transactions relevant to 
the college and that we are not aware of any further related party matters that 
require disclosure in order to comply with the requirements of charities legislation, 
the Statement of Recommended Practice for Further and Higher Education accounts 
or accounting standards.  
 
The college has not contracted for any capital expenditure other than as disclosed in 
the accounts.  
 
The college has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or 
encumbrances on the college’s assets, except for those that are disclosed in the 
financial statements.  
 
We are not aware of any irregularities, including fraud, involving existing 
management or employees of the college, nor are we aware of any breaches or 
possible breaches of statute, regulations, contracts, agreements or college's 
Constitution and Articles of Government which might result in the college suffering 
significant penalties or other loss. No allegations of such irregularities, including 
fraud, or such breaches have come to our attention.  
 
We confirm that we are not aware of any possible or actual instance of non-
compliance with those laws and regulations which provide a legal framework within 
which the college conducts its business.  
 
We confirm that, in our opinion, the college is a going concern on the grounds that 
current and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the 
college’s needs. We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of 
approval of the financial statements. We believe that no further disclosures relating 
to the college’s ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the 
financial statements.  



 
 

 

 
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the 
Covid pandemic on the college, including the impact of mitigation measures and 
uncertainties, and that the disclosure in the Performance Report fairly reflects that 
assessment.  
 
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the 
United Kingdom leaving the European Union, including the potential outcomes at the 
end of the Implementation Period, and that the disclosure in the Performance Report 
fairly reflects that assessment.  
 
We confirm that no unadjusted misstatements have been brought to our attention.  
We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where 
appropriate, of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can 
properly make each of the above representations to you.  
 
 
 
 
 
Yours faithfully  
 
.………………………………………….. Chair of Board  
 
…………………………………………….. Principal 
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Board of Governors  
 
FINANCIAL FORECAST RETURN (FFR) 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this paper is to ask the Board of Governors to discuss the 
October 2021 FFR attached to this paper and approve the college’s financial 
strategy to achieve a balanced budget over the planning period.  
 
Introduction 
 
The College is required to produce a financial forecast and commentary as 
part of the Scottish Funding Council’s (SFC) financial health monitoring 
framework. The attached financial forecast and commentary covers the 
period 2020-21 to 2023-24.   
 
The FFR approved by the Board in June 2021 covered the period 2020-21 
and 2021-22. The forecast for 2020-21 provided in June has been updated to 
reflect the latest forecast. 
 
The key assumptions as advised by SFC were discussed at the September 
meeting of the Finance & General Purposes Committee and are set out 
below.   
 
Key income assumptions 
 
• The additional funded credits allocated for Foundation Apprenticeships 

(FAs) and deferred students in 2021-22 are not to continue beyond 
2021-22 (core credits will need to be used to provide FAs) – this would 
result in a decrease in grant in aid (GIA) of just over £1 million, £740k of 
which relates to FA funding. 
 

• Digital learning and mental health support will not continue beyond 
2021-22 (the college received a total of £241k), however SFC advised in 
2021-22 that these funding streams were one-off 
 

• Estates maintenance grant to be based on 2021-22 funding allocation 
 

• Flexible Workforce Development Fund, Young Person’s Guarantee and 
National Transition Training Fund to continue at 2020-21 levels 
 

• Funding for Counsellors and Access to free sanitary provision to continue 
at 2020-21 levels. 
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Key expenditure assumptions 
 
• For all staff the current Scottish Government public sector pay policy 

should be applied for each year of the forecast which is £800 for staff who 
earn £25k or less, 2% for staff who earn between £25k and £40k, 1% for 
staff who earn between £40k and £80k and £800 maximum for staff 
earning more than £80k 
 

• SFC will not provide funding for voluntary severance schemes. 
 
Additionally, SFC is asking colleges to consider an alternative more 
pessimistic scenario which is based on the assumption that there will be no 
cost of living increase made available by the Scottish Government to the 
college sector and provide a narrative which sets out mitigating actions that 
would be required to address financial sustainability challenges. 
 
As in previous years SFC has asked colleges to present a balanced budget in 
each year and describe the mitigating actions needed in order for this to be 
achieved. The Board of Governors should be aware that the actions 
described in the commentary are being reported to SFC in order to flag the 
impact of not funding FA credits beyond 2021-22. This strategy was 
discussed and agreed at a special meeting of the Finance working Group on 
7 October 2021.  
 
For information, although the statement of comprehensive income shows a 
deficit position from 2021-22, break-even is achieved after transfer to and 
from the pension and revaluation reserves. 
 
Action 
 
The Board of Governors is asked to agree the college’s financial strategy to 
achieve a balanced budget and approve the FFR for the period 2020-21 to 
2023-24. 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal Finance and Corporate Services 
7 December 2021 
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Finance and General Purposes Committee 
 
FINANCIAL FORECAST RETURN, OCTOBER 2021  
 
Introduction 
 
This financial forecast return aims to reflect the college’s strategic goals, in 
particular to inspire and enable success, to support economic recovery and 
growth, and to strengthen our communities. Together, making progress on 
these goals will enable the college to achieve our vision of developing a 
highly skilled, enterprising and resilient workforce.  
 
The biggest challenge to achieving these goals is an ongoing flat core credit 
target at a time of growing demand for college courses, largely driven by a 
growing population in the region.  
 
The college has responded very well to SFC guidance that required the 
sector to reduce full-time qualifications from 18 to 16 credits, de-prioritise 
schools delivery to the senior phase and have limited one-plus. In addition, in 
2020-21 the college delivered proportionately more credits for additional 
priorities such as the Young Person’s Guarantee and Foundation 
Apprenticeships.  
 
In an attempt to meet the growing demand we face while achieving a break-
even FFR, the college needs to make difficult choices from 2022-23 that 
allow us to support as many students as possible while receiving fewer 
planned credits to do so. Regretfully, we have concluded that ending the 
delivery of Foundation Apprenticeships is the only way we can achieve this. 
 
The forecast for the 12-month period to 31 July 2021 is based on the April 
2021 Management Accounts which were considered by the Board of 
Governors in June. The forecast from the latest set of Management Accounts 
for the eleven-month period to end June 2021 is in line with the April position.   
 
The budget for 2021-22 is based on the college delivering its agreed 47,776 
Credits (includes 1,483 ESF credits, 2,541 Foundation Apprenticeship credits 
and 912 credits for deferred students). The budget and forecasts are 
consistent with the Estates Plan and Finance Plan.  
   
Review of Financial Performance 2020-21 
 
For the twelve months to 31 July 2021 the college is forecasting a net 
increase to the I&E Reserve of £50k which is £108k lower than the loan 
repayment due to SFC at April 2021. This is £15k lower than the position 
reported in April and is due to additional investment in the estate. 
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College Target Outturn 2021-22 
   
As reported in June, the budget presented has been set at breakeven as is 
required by the Scottish Funding Council (SFC). The college will re-invest the 
value of the annual loan repayment in upgrading the estate during the period 
repayments are suspended. The budget therefore allows for an investment 
fund of £158k. 
 
Credit and Foundation Apprenticeship Targets 2021-22 
 
The college is on target to meet its credit target and is on track to achieve 
88% of its target for Foundation Apprenticeships. 
 
SFC Grants 
 
2021-22   
 
• £11.913m in funding for the base teaching and fee waiver allocation, and 

£416k for the ESF allocation, to deliver 44,323 credits 
• £741k for delivery of 2,541 Foundation Apprenticeship credits  
• £260k for deferred students (912 credits) 
• £525k of Flexible Workforce Development Funding (FWDF) - the college 

will also receive £100k from West Lothian Council to supplement this 
funding 

• £756k of estates grant funding which comprises the full allocations for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22 (£378k) and FY 2022-23 (£378k) 

• £128k to support the transition towards the provision of increased digital 
learning 

• £113k to provide additional mental health services to staff and students 
due to the impact of COVID19. 

 
2022-23 and 2023-24 
 
SFC grants are as per guidance contained in the Financial Forecast Return 
circular. 
 
Young Person’s Guarantee and National Transition Training Fund  
 
2021-22 
 
The budget assumes a grant of £236k that matches the costs of delivery.   
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2022-23 and 2023-24 
 
As per SFC guidance, it has been assumed that this funding will continue at  
2020-21 levels. 
 
Changes in tuition fee income and other income 
 
2021-22 
 
Tuition fees are based on a detailed curriculum plan and include fees for 
articulation students from Napier and Queen Margaret Universities. Part-time 
students are encouraged to apply for ITA and PFG scheme funding. Changes 
to SDS income reflect the transfer of funding for Foundation Apprenticeships 
to SFC.  
 
2022-23 and 2023-24 
 
The forecast assumes that tuition fees will continue at 2021-22 levels. SDS 
income is forecast to decrease with the transfer of FAs to SFC. Modern 
Apprenticeship (MA) income is forecast to remain at 2021-22 levels. 
However, in 2020-21 the college delivered additional activity (23% over the 
initial allocation) and hopes there will be opportunities for further MA starts. 
As the college has no control over whether SDS will invite the college to 
deliver additional activity, no assumption has made about an increase in 
numbers. 
 
Commercial Income  
 
2021-22 
 
The main source of commercial income for the college is our contract to 
deliver training to Children’s Hearings Scotland (CHS) panel members. The 
contract has been extended for a further year to September 2022 with costs 
and income included in the budget.  
 
2022-23 and 2023-24 
 
Under the terms of our current contract, the CHS contract can be extended 
for one further year to 30 September 2023 (at which point it will be re-
tendered). While this is yet to be negotiated, it has been assumed that this 
contract will continue in 2022-23. It is assumed that the contract will not be 
renewed in 2023-24.   
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Other Income  
 
Other income shows an increased contribution from business development 
activities. 
 
In 2021-22, refectory, restaurant and salon sales have been significantly 
reduced to take account of the ongoing effects of COVID19 restrictions. This 
is assumed to continue for 2022-23 and 2023-24. 
 
Staff Costs 
 
2021-22 
 
The budget and forecasts provide for cost of living pay awards in line with 
public sector pay policy and for the expected additional cost of implementing 
the support staff and middle managers job evaluation.   
 
If the current NJNC negotiations result in higher than public sector pay, this 
will impact negatively on the college’s budget for 2021-22. 
 
Employer contributions to SPPA are provided for at 23.0% and 19.8% for the 
Lothian Pension fund throughout the planning period.  
 
2022-23 and 2023-24 
 
The planning assumption (as advised by SFC) is that the funded credit 
activity for FAs and deferred students will not continue beyond 2021-22. Not 
funding credits for FA delivery will have a significant and disproportionate 
impact on West Lothian College for the following reasons: 
 
• We have the 7th highest number of planned FA enrolments in the sector – 

more than some significantly larger regional colleges. 
 
• As a proportion of core credits, we have been allocated the highest 

percentage of credits to Foundation Apprenticeships of all 13 college 
regions. 

 
• In absolute terms, we have the sixth largest number of credits allocated to 

FAs and 8.4% of the sector total. 
 
• In financial terms, of the total £8,799,607 cut across the sector, we 

account for 8.4% of that cut – significantly disproportionate to other 
college regions. 

 
While it would be very disappointing to stop delivering FAs, in order to remain 
financially sustainable we would have little choice but to take this course of 
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action from 2022-23 onwards. This would result in in corresponding staff 
reductions. As the college does not have the cash reserves to fund a 
voluntary severance scheme, we would need to consider redundancy as a 
last resort unless SFC supported a VS scheme.  
 
The estimated reduction in FTEs is: 
 

 2022-23 2023-24 

FTE reduction 12.6 4 

 
If cost of living pay awards are not funded, this would result in the need to 
reduce staffing further by approximately 1.8 FTE in 2022-23 and 7 FTE in 
2023-24. 
 
Non-staff Costs 
 
In 2021-22 non-staff costs are based on detailed costings provided by 
budget holders. An inflationary uplift of 3% has been applied in 2022-23 
and 2023-24. 
 
Investment 
 
The budget and forecast assume that the college will invest £158k each year 
of the forecast to improve our learning estate in line with the value of the SFC 
loan repayment, for which we have been allowed a five-year loan break.  
 
The college has an ambitious five-year estates plan to reconfigure our 
campus to meet the requirements of key industry sectors, to be equipped to 
better support hybrid models of delivery and to enhance the student 
experience. Our challenge in achieving this is that what is required will cost 
significantly more than planned estates funding from SFC. Seeking funds to 
deliver this is the focus and priority of our income-generating activity in the 
period covered by this FFR. 
 
Cash Budget for Priorities 
 
The college has a fixed annual Cash Budget for Priorities of £190k. This has 
been allocated against estates costs. 
 
Balance Sheet – Cash Position 
 
The college tries to maintain an operational cash balance of £750k 
throughout the year, although this can vary. The forecast cash balance at 
31 July 2021 is £749k positive and this position is expected to be maintained 
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throughout the planning period on the basis that costs reduce in line with the 
reduction in grant-in-aid.   
   
Risk Management 
 
Management of the key budget risks takes place through the college’s risk 
register and the relevant risks are outlined in the spreadsheet accompanying 
this paper.  
 
The main risk, based on the financial planning assumptions from 2022-23, is 
that the college is unable to meet growing demand from individuals, 
employers and communities in our region.  
 
To mitigate this risk, we need to consider the efficiency of the qualifications 
we offer as there is limited scope for making efficiencies in staff costs 
following a successful restructure in 2020 that resulted in a leaner 
management and staffing complement.  
 
As explained earlier in this paper, the college has responded to SFC 
guidance on making full-time courses more efficient and ensuring schools 
activity is focused on the senior phase. With the increasing demand for 
courses in the region and SFC’s proposed removal of funding and associated 
credits for FAs, ceasing the expensive delivery of FAs is our only realistic way 
of achieving the required break-even FFR for years beyond 2021-22. 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal Finance and Corporate Services 
25 November 2021 
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KEY RISKS

Please use the boxes below to provide a commentary on material risks to income and 
expenditure as identified in the Risk Register. Where possible these risks should be 
quantified.

Please use the boxes below to describe the actions planned by the College to 
address/mitigate the identified risks.

There is a risk that the college is unable to meet ongoing demand in the region due to insufficient funding 
resulting in the college not meeting the needs of the region. 

Currently at 86% full time enrolments against target.  Additional activity deployed to reach target.  Regular 
discussions with Scottish Funding Council (SFC) outcome agreement manager to consider ‘in-year distribution’ 
opportunities and the readiness of the curriculum to respond. This is evidenced in the fortnightly planning & 
review meetings held by the VPL&A with directors.  Curriculum Planning process ensures robust review of 
efficient use of credit allocation.  Review of unmet demand using data analytics to ‘repurpose’ learners 
without an offer into eligible ‘new’ funding streams e.g Youth Guarantee etc.  Liaising with SFC and other 
stakeholders.

There is a risk that the college fails to deliver high quality learning, teaching and assessment due to poor 
alignment of resources and/or poor quality of teaching resulting in poor retention, attainment and 
progression for students.  

 Support for Staff; Learning Technology Project Team will support the upskilling of staff (Learning and Teaching 
and Assessment). External Resources; Pastoral care to support students during pandemic; Neil’s Hugs, More 
Choices, More Chances (MCMC) Key Workers; good alignment of resource, Scottish Association for Mental 
Health (SAMH) also new laptops for students and staff Internal Quality Assurance (IQA) – Appeals group 
established (supporting progression, attainment, retention).  

There is a risk that the college is not able to budget for or achieve break-even or a surplus on an annual basis 
due to poor cost control resulting in the college not being financially sustainable.  

Monthly management accounts presented to college leadership team with agreed actions where necessary.  
Budget setting process overseen by college leadership team with actions agreed at each meeting to arrive at a 
balanced budget.  
Budget review meetings held with all budget holders with agreed actions.

here is a risk that pay awards and terms and conditions negotiated through the national bargaining process 
are unaffordable resulting in the college not being financially sustainable.   

College has influence in determining agreed pay award and terms and conditions.  College inputs into Colleges 
Scotland budget submission.

There is a risk of failure to deliver contracts achieved through non-core funding due to insufficient demand in 
the economy resulting in a clawback of funding. 

A management structure is in place to manage all non credit funded activity.  

There is a risk that the college fails to secure alternative income streams due to economic challenges or poor 
horizon scanning resulting in a loss of income and/or investment opportunity for the college. 

Comprehensive tracking and control measures.  Strong connectivity with key networks and information 
sources.  East Central Scotland Collaboration in place.  Weekly meetings taking place with West Lothian 
Council.  12 month campaign plan in place.

There is a risk that the college fails to deliver on its 5-year estates plan due to insufficient funding resulting in 
the college not meeting the needs of our students.  

Money set aside each year from estates grant to continue programme of development.  Expansion of the 
Construction & Engineering Workshop completed April 2021 and refurbishment of the main building 
completed July 2021.  Communication with local members of the Scottish Parliament and Scottish Funding 
Council to highlight need for additional resources.  
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS Forecast 
2021-22

Forecast 
2022-23

Forecast 
2023-24

£000 £000 £000
Effect of each scenario before mitigating action
(assumes the stated sensitivity occurs each year, with cumulative impact to be 
shown)

1 Adjusted operating surplus / (deficit) based on planning assumptions 61 -29 -29

2 Increase in staff costs of 1% 147.16 146.12 141.87
Restated adjusted operating surplus / (deficit) -86.16 -175.12 -170.87

Restated cash position 603 603 607

3 Increase in social security costs of 1% 10.61062 10.66 11
Restated adjusted operating surplus / (deficit) 50.38938 -39.66 -40

Restated cash position 739 738 738

3 Increase in pension costs of 1% 20.23 21.91 22.61
Restated adjusted operating surplus / (deficit) 40.77 -50.91 -51.61

Restated cash position 709 800 801

Please give details of the mitigating actions in the event of such an outcome in the box below:

Please give details of the mitigating actions in the event of such an outcome in the box below:



2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
£000 £000 £000 £000 Details of Methodology and Valuation Details of Methodology and Valuation Details of Methodology and Valuation Details of Methodology and Valuation 

STSS 1,005 941 1,019 1,052 Actual from Annual accounts From detailed budget calculations (23%) Pro-Rata based on previous year Pro-Rata based on previous year

Other pension schemes - LGPF 998 1,082 1,172 1,209 Actual from Annual accounts
From detailed budget calculations 

(19.8%)
Pro-Rata based on previous year Pro-Rata based on previous year

Other pension schemes - please state which scheme
Other pension schemes - please state which scheme

Total 2,003 2,023 2,191 2,261

Pension Assumptions
Employer Contributions
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Statement of Comprehensive income and expenditure (Consolidated)

Actual 
2019-20

Forecast 
2020-21

Forecast 
2021-22

Forecast 
2022-23

Forecast 
2023-24

2019-20 - 
2020-21

2020-21- 
2021-22

2021-22 - 
2022-23

2022-23 - 
2023-24

Explanation for variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 % % % %
INCOME

Tuition fees and education contracts 3,243 3,437 2,974 2,902 2,902 6.0% -13.5% -2.4% 0.0%
Funding council/RSB grants 13,544 14,635 16,054 15,458 15,952 8.1% 9.7% -3.7% 3.2%
Research grants and contracts 0 0 0 0 0
Other income 2,021 1,315 1,741 1,782 709 -34.9% 32.4% 2.4% -60.2%
Investment income 1 0 0 0 0 -100.0%
Total income before donations and endowments 18,809 19,387 20,769 20,142 19,563 3.1% 7.1% -3.0% -2.9%
Donations and endowments 0 0 0 0 0
Total income 18,809 19,387 20,769 20,142 19,563 3.1% 7.1% -3.0% -2.9%

EXPENDITURE

Staff costs 14,684 13,451 14,716 14,612 14,187 -8.4% 9.4% -0.7% -2.9%
Staff costs - exceptional restructuring costs 98 0 0 0 0 -100.0%
Exceptional costs - non-staff 0 0 0 0 0
Other operating expenses 4,616 4,538 5,327 4,894 4,740 -1.7% 17.4% -8.1% -3.1%
Donation to Arms Length Foundation 0 0 0 0 0
Depreciation 769 1,035 792 792 792 34.6% -23.5% 0.0% 0.0%
Interest and other finance costs 241 0 0 0 0 -100.0%

Total expenditure 20,408 19,024 20,835 20,298 19,719 -6.8% 9.5% -2.6% -2.9%

Surplus/(deficit) before other gains and losses and share of operating 
surplus/deficit of joint ventures and associates

(1,599) 363 (66) (156) (156)
-122.7% -118.2% 136.4% 0.0%

Gain/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets 0 0 0 0 0
Gain/(loss) on investments 0 0 0 0 0
Share of operating surplus/(deficit) in joint venture(s) 0 0 0 0 0
Share of operating surplus/(deficit) in associate(s) 0 0 0 0 0

Surplus/(deficit) before tax (1,599) 363 (66) (156) (156) -122.7% -118.2% 136.4% 0.0%

Other taxation 0 0 0 0 0

Surplus/(deficit) for the year (1,599) 363 (66) (156) (156) -122.7% -118.2% 136.4% 0.0%

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of land and buildings 0 0 0 0 0
Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect of pension schemes 0 0 0 0 0
Other comprehensive income 0 0 0 0 0

Total comprehensive income for the year (1,599) 363 (66) (156) (156) -122.7% -118.2% 136.4% 0.0%
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INCOME
Actual 

2019-20
Forecast 
2020-21

Forecast 
2021-22

2019-20 - 
2020-21

2020-21- 2021-
22

Explanation for variance

£000 £000 £000 % %

1 Tuition fees and education contracts
a) FE - UK 848 851 1,267 0% 49%
b) FE - EU 0 0 0
c) HE 1,647 1,588 1,319 (4%) (17%)
d) Non-EU 0 0 0
e) SDS contracts 0 998 388 (61%) Transfer of FA credits to SFC
f) Education contracts 748 (100%)
g) Other 0 0 0

Total tuition fees and education contracts 3,243 3,437 2,974 6% (13%)

2 SFC / RSB Grants
a) SFC / RSB FE recurrent grant (including fee waiver) 11,821 11,857 13,330 0% 12%
b) UHI recurrent grant - HE provision 0 0 0
c) FE Childcare funds 678 491 563 (28%) 15%
d) Release of SFC / RSB deferred capital grants 535 410 475 (23%) 16%
e) SFC capital grant 0 0 0
f) SFC grant for NPD 0 0 0
g) Other SFC / RSB grants - FE provision 510 1,877 1,686 268% (10%) Estates, FWDF and NTTF/YPG grants
h) Other UHI grants - HE provision 0 0 0

Total SFC / RSB Grants 13,544 14,635 16,054 8% 10%

3 Research grants and contracts
a) European Commission 0 0 0
b) Other grants and contracts 0 0 0

Total research grants and contracts 0 0 0

4 Other Income
a) Catering and residences 260 16 125 (94%) 681% impact of COVID restrictions
b) Other European Income 27 0 258 (100%) Delayed ERASMUS programme
c) Other income generating activities 1,174 938 1,163 (20%) 24% CHS contract - additional activity in 2021-22
d) Grants from ALF 0 0 0

i) Revenue 0 0 0
II) Capital 0 0 0

e) Non-government capital grant 0 0 0
f) Other grant income 0 0 0
g) Release of non-SFC government deferred capital grant 0 0 0
h) Income from Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme 355 0 0 (100%) End of job retention scheme
i) Other income 205 361 195 76% (46%) 2020-21 impacted by COVID19

Total other income 2,021 1,315 1,741 (35%) 32%

5 Investment income
a) Investment income on endowments 0 0 0
b) Investment income on restricted reserves 0 0 0
c) Other investment income 0 0 0
d) Other interest receivable 1 0 0 (100%)
e) Net return on pension scheme 0 0 0

Total investment income 1 0 0 (100%)

6 Donations and endowment income
a) New endowments 0 0 0
b) Donations with restrictions 0 0 0
c) Unrestricted donations 0 0 0

Total donation and endowment income 0 0 0
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EXPENDITURE

Actual 
2019-20

Forecast 
2020-21

Forecast 
2021-22

2019-20 - 
2020-21

2020-21- 
2021-22

Explanation for variance

STAFF COSTS £000 £000 £000 % %

1 Teaching departments 8,191 8,218 9,324 0% 13%
2 Teaching support services 1,126 1,163 1,045 3% (10%)
3 Other support services 0 0 0
4 Administration and central services 1,714 1,882 2,096 10% 11%
5 Premises 686 712 772 4% 8%
6 Catering and residences 204 208 217 2% 4%
7 Other income generating activities 777 839 822 8% (2%)
8 Other staff costs 476 429 440 (10%) 3%
9 Impact of FRS 102 pensions reported costs (less contributions paid included above) 1,510

Normal staff costs 14,684 13,451 14,716 (8%) 9%

10 Exceptional restructuring costs 98 0 0 (100%)
Total staff costs 14,782 13,451 14,716 (9%) 9%

Additional breakdown of staff costs
Salaries 10,310 10,417 11,632 1% 12%
Social security costs 956 1,040 1,061 9% 2%
Pension contributions 1,908 2,003 2,023 5% 1%
Non-cash pension adjustments - net service cost 1,510
Non-cash pension adjustments - early retirement provision 0
Severance payments 98 0 0
Total staff costs 14,782 13,460 14,716 (9%) 9%

NON-STAFF COSTS
1 Exceptional costs - non-staff 0 0 0

2 Other operating expenses a) Teaching departments 834 1,095 947 31% (14%)
b) Teaching support services 216 170 182 (21%) 7%
c) Other support services 0 0 0
d) Administration and central services 1,420 1,192 1,542 (16%) 29%
e) General education 0 0 0
f) Premises 806 1,440 1,347 79% (6%)

(i) Maintenance 256 339 619 32% 83%
(ii) Utilities 317 297 359 (6%) 21%
(iii) Other 233 804 369 245% (54%)

g) Catering and residences 134 27 53 (80%) 96%
h) Other income generating activities 391 93 256 (76%) 175%
i) Overspend on student support funds * 0 0 0
j) Planned maintenance 0 0 0
k) Movement on early retirement pension provision 0 0 0
l) NPD 0 0 0
m) Other 815 521 1,000 (36%) 92%

Total other operating expenses 4,616 4,538 5,327 (2%) 17%

3 Depreciation a) Government funded assets 769 1,035 792 35% (23%)
b) Non-government funded assets 0 0 0
c) NPD funded assets 0 0 0

Total depreciation 769 1,035 792 35% (23%)

4 Interest a) On bank loans, overdrafts and other loans 0 0 0
b) Finance lease interest 0 0 0
c) Other 0 0 0
d) Net charge on pension scheme 241 0 (100%)
e) NPD interest 0 0 0

Total interest 241 0 0 (100%)

* Includes any overspend on bursaries, discretionary funds, and student funds received from SAAS, but excludes 
childcare funds.



Actual 
2019-20

Forecast 
2020-21

Forecast 
2021-22

Forecast 
2022-23

Forecast 
2023-24

2019-20 - 
2020-21

2020-21- 
2021-22

2021-22 - 
2022-23

2022-23 - 
2023-24

Explanation for variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 % % % %

Surplus/(deficit) before other gains and losses and share of operating 
surplus/deficit of joint ventures and associates

(1,599) 363 (66) (156) (156)

Add:
Total depreciation (Government-funded, privately funded and NPD-
funded assets) net of deferred capital grant release (incorporated 
colleges only)

234 625 317 317 317
167.1% -49.3% 0.0% 0.0%

Exceptional non-restructuring items (e.g. impairment costs) 0 0 0 0 0
Donation to Arms-Length Foundation (incorporated colleges only) 0 0 0 0 0
Non-cash pension adjustment - net service cost 1,510
Non-cash pension adjustment - ERP 0
Non-cash pension adjustment -net interest costs 241
Deduct:
Non-Government capital grants (e.g. ALF capital grant) 0 0 0 0 0
 Exceptional income (if disclosed as exceptional in accounts) - PLEASE DO 
NOT INCLUDE CJRS INCOME HERE

0 0 0 0 0

CBP allocated to loan repayments and other capital items (incorporated 
colleges only) 190 190 190 190 190 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
NPD payments to reduce NPD balance sheet debt 0 0 0 0 0

196 798 61 (29) (29) 307.1% -92.4% -147.5% 0.0%

Cash budget for priorities (incorporated colleges) :

Revenue priorities
Student support funding 0 0 0 0 0
2015-16 pay award 0 0 0 0 0
Voluntary severance 0 0 0 0 0
Estates costs 0 0 0 0 0
Other - please describe 0 0 0 0 0
Total impact on operating position 0 0 0 0 0

Capital priorities
Loan repayments 158 0 0 0 0
NPD / PFI repayments 0 0 0 0 0
Estates costs 0 0 0 0 0
Provisions pre 1 April 2014 32 190 190 190 190
Total capital 190 190 190 190 190

Total cash budget for priorities spend 190 190 190 190 190

West Lothian College

ADJUSTED OPERATING RESULT

Adjusted operating result
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Balance Sheet
Actual 

2019-20
Forecast 
2020-21

Forecast 
2021-22

Forecast 
2022-23

Forecast 
2023-24

2019-20 - 
2020-21

2020-21- 
2021-22

2021-22 - 
2022-23

2022-23 - 
2023-24

Explanation for variance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 % % % %

1 Non-current assets a) Intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0
b) Fixed assets 19,792 19,391 20,472 19,680 18,888 -2.0% 5.6% -3.9% -4.0%
c) Investments 0 0 0 0 0

Total non-current assets 19,792 19,391 20,472 19,680 18,888 -2.0% 5.6% -3.9% -4.0%

2 Current assets a) Stock 0 0 0 0 0
b) Debtors 1,444 1,627 906 817 727 12.7% -44.3% -9.8% -11.0%
c) Investments 0 0 0 0 0
d) Cash and cash equivalents 1,129 2,749 750 749 749 143.5% -72.7% -0.1% 0.0%
e) Other (e.g. assets for resale) 0 0 0 0 0

Total current assets 2,573 4,376 1,656 1,566 1,476 70.1% -62.2% -5.4% -5.7%

3 a) Bank loans and external borrowing 0 0 0 0 0
b) Bank overdrafts 0 0 0 0 0
c) Lennartz creditor 0 0 0 0 0
d) Obligations under finance leases and service concessions 0 0 0 0 0
e) Payments received in advance 0 0 0 0 0
f) Amounts owed to SFC 158 0 0 0 0 -100.0%
g) Obligations under PFI/NPD 0 0 0 0 0
h) Deferred capital grant 410 439 474 474 474
i) Other creditors and accruals 2,790 3,804 2,154 2,154 2,154 36.3% -43.4% 0.0% 0.0%

Total creditors < 1year 3,358 4,243 2,628 2,628 2,628 26.4% -38.1% 0.0% 0.0%

Share of net assets/(liabilities) in associate 0 0 0 0 0

NET CURRENT ASSETS/LIABILITIES (785) 133 (972) (1,062) (1,152) -116.9% -830.8% 9.3% 8.5%

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 19,007 19,524 19,500 18,618 17,736 2.7% -0.1% -4.5% -4.7%

4 a) Local authority loans 0 0 0 0 0
b) Bank loans and external borrowing 0 0 0 0 0
c) Lennartz creditor 0 0 0 0 0
d) Finance leases and service concessions 0 0 0 0 0
e) Obligations under PFI/NPD 0 0 0 0 0
f) Deferred capital grant 11,362 11,557 11,547 11,072 10,597
g) Amounts repayable to Funding Council 2,053 2,211 2,211 2,211 2,211 7.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
h) Other creditors 0 0 0 0 0

Total creditors >1 year 13,415 13,768 13,758 13,283 12,808 2.6% -0.1% -3.5% -3.6%

5 Provisions a) Pension provisions 14,299 12,093 14,299 14,299 14,299 -15.4% 18.2% 0.0% 0.0%
b) Other 3,806 3,523 3,923 3,923 3,923 -7.4% 11.4% 0.0% 0.0%

Total provisions 18,105 15,616 18,222 18,222 18,222 -13.7% 16.7% 0.0% 0.0%

TOTAL NET ASSETS (12,513) (9,860) (12,480) (12,887) (13,294) -21.2% 26.6% 3.3% 3.2%

9 Restricted Reserves a) Endowment Reserve 0 0 0 0 0
b) Restricted Reserve 0 0 0 0 0

10 Unrestricted reserves a) Income and Expenditure Reserve (20,546) (17,398) (20,740) (20,740) (20,740) -15.3% 19.2% 0.0% 0.0%
b) Revaluation reserve 8,033 7,538 8,260 7,853 7,446 -6.2% 9.6% -4.9% -5.2%

11 Non-controlling interest 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL RESERVES (12,513) (9,860) (12,480) (12,887) (13,294) -21.2% 26.6% 3.3% 3.2%

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one 
year
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Actual 

2019-20
Forecast 
2020-21

Forecast 
2021-22

Forecast 
2022-23

Forecast 
2023-24

2019-20 - 2020-
21

2020-21- 2021-
22

2021-22 - 2022-
23

2022-23 - 2023-
24

Cashflow £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 % % % % Explanation for variance

1 Cash flow from operating activities
a) Surplus / (deficit) for the year -1599 363 -66 -156 -156 (123%) (118%) 136% 0%

2 Adjustment for non-cash items
a) Depreciation 769 1,035 792 792 792 35% (23%) 0% 0%
b) Amortisation of intangibles 0 0 0 0 0
c) Benefit on acquisition 0 0 0 0 0
d) Amortisation of goodwill 0 0 0 0 0
e) Loss / (gain) on investments 0 0 0 0 0
f) Decrease / (increase) in stock 0 0 0 0 0
g) Decrease / (increase) in debtors (274) (183) 580 (89) (90) (33%) (417%) (115%) 1%
h) Increase / (decrease) in creditors 615 1,014 (822) 0 0 65% (181%) (100%) Assumed job evaluation grant is released
i) Increase / (decrease) in pension provision 0 0 0 0 0
j) Increase / (decrease in other provisions (200) (199) (9) (72) (72) (1%) (95%) 700% 0%
k) Receipt of donated equipment 0 0 0 0 0
l) Share of operating surplus / (deficit) in joint venture 0 0 0 0 0

m) Share of operating surplus / (deficit) in associate 0 0 0 0 0
n) Other 975 (410) (474) (474) (474) (142%) 16% 0% 0%

Total adjustment for non-cash items 1,885 1,257 67 157 156 (33%) (95%) 134% (1%)

3 Adjustment for investing or financing activities
a) Investment income (1) 0 0 0 0 (100%)
b) Interest payable 241 0 0 0 0 (100%)
c) Endowment income 0 0 0 0 0
d) Loss / (gain) on the sale of assets 0 0 0 0 0
e) Capital grant income 0 0 0 0 0

Total adjustment for investing or financing activities 240 0 0 0 0 (100%)

4 Net cash inflow from operating activities 526 1,620 1 1 0 208% (100%) 0% (100%)

5 Cash flow from investing activities
a) Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 0 0 0 0 0
b) Proceeds from sales of intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0
c) Capital grants receipts 0 0 0 0 0
d) Disposal of non-current asset investments 0 0 0 0 0
e) Withdrawal of deposits 0 0 0 0 0
f) Investment income 1 0 0 0 0 (100%)
g) Payments made to acquire fixed assets 0 0 0 0 0
h) Payments made to acquire intangible assets 0 0 0 0 0
i) New non-current asset investments 0 0 0 0 0
j) New deposits 0 0 0 0 0

Total cash flows from investing activities 1 0 0 0 0 (100%)

6 Cash flows from financing activities
a) Interest paid 0 0 0 0 0
b) Interest element of finance lease and service concession 0 0 0 0 0
c) Endowment cash received 0 0 0 0 0
d) New secured loans 0 0 0 0 0
e) New unsecured loans 0 0 0 0 0
f) Repayments of amounts borrowed (158) 0 0 0 0 (100%)
g) Capital element of finance lease and service concession payments 0 0 0 0 0

Total cash flows from financing activities (158) 0 0 0 0 (100%)

7 (Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year 369 1,620 1 1 0 339% (100%) 0% (100%)

8 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 760 1,129 2,749 750 749 49% 143% (73%) (0%)
9 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,129 2,749 750 749 749 143% (73%) (0%) 0%
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Capital Expenditure Projects and Forecast Methods of Financing Actual 
2019-20

Forecast 
2020-21

Forecast 
2021-22

Forecast 
2022-23

Forecast 
2023-24

2019-20 - 
2020-21

2020-21- 
2021-22

2021-22 - 
2022-23

2022-23 - 
2023-24

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 % % % %

Expenditure:
Land & Buildings 0 553 510 0 0 -7.8% -100.0%
Equipment & Others 0 81 150 0 0 85.2% -100.0%

0 634 660 0 0 4.1% -100.0%
Financed by:
Cash reserves 0 0 0 0 0
ALF grants 0 0 0 0 0
Leasing 0 0 0 0 0
SFC/RSB grant 0 634 660 0 0 4.1% -100.0%
Re-investment of proceeds from disposal of assets * 0 0 0 0 0
Non-SFC/RSB grants 0 0 0 0 0
PFI/NPD 0 0 0 0 0
Other - please specify if material 0 0 0 0 0

0 634 660 0 0 4.1% -100.0%

* to be included only where this has been agreed by SFC

Actual 
2019-20

Forecast 
2020-21

Forecast 
2021-22

Forecast 
2022-23

Forecast 
2023-24

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Capital disposals

Disposal proceeds:
Asset description 0
Asset description 0
Asset description 0
Asset description 0

0 0 0 0 0

Gain/(loss) on disposal:
Asset description 0
Asset description 0
Asset description 0
Asset description 0

0 0 0 0 0
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ALF Funding
Actual 2019-

20
Forecast 
2020-21

Forecast 
2021-22

Forecast 
2022-23

Forecast 
2023-24

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Estimated balance of cash in ALF as at 1 August 0 0 0 0 0

Donation to Arms Length Foundation 0 0 0 0 0

Grant from Arms Length Foundation - capital 0 0 0 0 0
Grant from Arms Length Foundation - revenue 0 0 0 0 0

Estimated balance of cash in ALF as at 31 July 0 0 0 0 0

Note:

Actual 2019-
20

Forecast 
2020-21

Forecast 
2021-22

Forecast 
2022-23

Forecast 
2023-24

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Grant from Arms Length Foundation - capital:
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

Grant from Arms Length Foundation - revenue
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Description 0 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0 0

For most foundations, the most recent accounts available are for periods ending in 2020. Colleges' forecast 
movements will not include governance costs, donations from third parties, payments to third parties or 
investment income.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY Actual 2019-20 Forecast 2020-21 Forecast 2021-22 Forecast 2022-23 Forecast 2023-24
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total Income 18,809 19,387 20,769 20,142 19,563
Total Funding Council Grant (excluding release of deferred capital grant) as % of 
Total Income

72% 75% 77% 77% 82%

Total non-Funding Council Grant (including release of SFC DCG) as % of Total 
Income

28% 25% 23% 23% 18%

Total Education Contracts and Tuition Fees as % of Total Income 17% 18% 14% 14% 15%
Total Research Grants and Contracts as % of Total Income 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total Other Income as % of Total Income 11% 7% 8% 9% 4%

Total Expenditure 20,408 19,024 20,835 20,298 19,719
Salaries as % of Total Expenditure 72% 71% 71% 72% 72%
Other operating costs as % of Total Expenditure 23% 24% 26% 24% 24%
Depreciation/amortisation as % of Total Expenditure 4% 5% 4% 4% 4%

Operating Surplus/(deficit) (1,599) 363 (66) (156) (156)
Operating Surplus/(deficit) as % of Total Income -9% 2% 0% -1% -1%
Adjusted operating surplus/(deficit) 196 798 61 (29) (29)
Adjusted operating surplus/(deficit) as % of Total Income 1.0% 4.1% 0.3% -0.1% -0.1%

Cash and Current Asset Investments 1,129 2,749 750 749 749
Overdrafts 0 0 0 0 0
Days Ratio of Cash to Total Expenditure 21 56 14 14 14
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 526 1,620 1 1 0
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities as % of Total Income 2.8% 8.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Unrestricted reserves (20,546) (17,398) (20,740) (20,740) (20,740)
Current Ratio 0.77 1.03 0.63 0.60 0.56
Unrestricted reserves as % of Total Income -109% -90% -100% -103% -106%
Total borrowing (Overdrafts, Loans, Finance Leases, PFI/NPD) 0 0 0 0 0
Interest cover -5.63 #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Income ratios

Expenditure ratios

Operating position

Cash Position

Balance Sheet strength
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Board of Governors 
 
DRAFT OUTCOME AGREEMENT 
 
Introduction 
 
The Outcome Agreement (OA) 2021-22 is the accountability framework between the 
Scottish Funding Council (SFC) in which the college captures deliverables, impact and 
outcomes for the year in question. In each academic year, colleges typically work on 
three OAs: 
 
1. Looking back – evaluating and reporting on targets and outcomes set in the 

previous year’s OA (2020-21) 
2. Reporting on progress on the current year’s OA (2021-22) 
3. Looking forward – developing the following year’s OA (2022-23). 
 
However, because of disruption caused by the pandemic, the approval of the current 
year’s OA is taking place in-year as per guidance from SFC on 31 August 2021. This 
paper presents the OA 2021-22 for discussion and approval. In relation to 2022-23, the 
Curriculum Planning paper is fundamental to the college’s plans for that year and will 
drive the OA 2022-23. The self-assessment report for 2019-20 is included as an 
appendix as per SFC guidance?  
 
 
Draft Outcome Agreement 2021-22 
 
In August 2021, SFC requested that colleges ensure agreements capture high-level 
outcomes on the following themes for 2021-22: 
 
• Outcomes for students 

 
• Fair access and transitions 
• High quality learning, teaching and support 
• Partnership, participation and student experience 
• Learning with impact 
• Public health emergency 
• Equalities and inclusion 

 
• Outcomes for economic recovery and social renewal 

 
• Responsive institutions 
• Confident and highly capable, work-ready graduates 
• Knowledge exchange and innovation  
• Collaboration  
• Climate emergency 
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Action 
 
The Board of Governors is invited to approve the draft Outcome Agreement. 
 
 
 
Sarah-Jane Linton       
Vice Principal Learning and Attainment    
 
Simon Earp 
Vice Principal Performance and Improvement  
07 December 2021 
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WHAT DRIVES US          

This Outcome Agreement is effectively a contract between West Lothian College and 

the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) on what we plan to achieve over the three years 

from 2021 to 2024, with a particular focus on academic year 2021-22. 

It reflects priorities that emerged from extensive consultation with staff, the Student 

Association, employers, West Lothian Council, third sector partners and our Board of 

Governors. 

Vision and Strategic Goals 

The college’s vision to deliver a highly skilled, 

enterprising and resilient workforce is 

underpinned by four strategic goals and three 

core values that influence how we act. 

 

Our four strategic goals align very well with the 

Outcomes and Impact Framework, as well as 

with the main themes from phase three of the SFC 

review of coherent provision in colleges and 

universities. They also map closely to the 

independent UK Commission on the College of 

the Future’s people, place and productivity 

themes. 

 

To inspire and enable success for all, we will: 

• Provide a wide range of qualifications at further and higher education level 

• Have clear vocational pathways from school to college, and from college to 

university, apprenticeships or employment 

• Have a modern curriculum, responsive to the skills needs of the regional economy 

and supported by up-to-date and relevant facilities 

• Integrate digital technologies across our curriculum and services for students 

• Support our students facing financial, learning or mental health challenges. 

 

To support economic recovery and growth, we will: 

• Provide skilled people to help businesses survive, revive and thrive 

• Ensure that all courses are relevant to industry and keep pace with 

developments in different economic sectors 

• Be flexible in what, how, where and when we deliver 

• Establish centres of excellence in areas such as computing and early years 

• Enhance our STEM activity with schools, employers and partners. 

 

To strengthen our communities, we will: 

 

• Deliver more in our communities to reach people who are not in education or 

employment 

• Enhance our partnerships with third sector organisations to achieve shared 

objectives 

• Support our Community Planning Partnership and contribute to achieving its goals. 

To lead with vision and empathy, we will: 

• Be a trauma responsive college working with local organisations to support our 

students
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•  

• Support positive mental health and wellbeing of students and staff 

• Make work better for our employees by being a caring and supportive employer 

• Help our workforce and students adapt to a post-pandemic world of work. 

 

Three of the college’s four strategic goals align very well with the themes in SFC’s 

Outcome Agreement Framework – outcomes for students, and outcomes for economic 

recovery and social renewal.   

 

 

Values 

Our values underpin our vision and strategic goals. 

Putting students at the centre of everything we do means exactly that. Through 

elected full-time sabbatical president and vice president, volunteer executive team 

officers and faculty ambassadors, our Student Association plays a pivotal role in the 

college. It sits at the heart of our decision-making and self-evaluation processes, 

ensuring that every decision we make enhances the student experience. 

Being welcoming to all means that we ensure equality of opportunity, embrace 

diversity and are a truly inclusive college. 

 

Always striving for better sums up our commitment to embracing a culture of 

continuous improvement. We know what we need to do to improve the learning 

experience for our students and make work better for our employees, and we are 

making good progress. For example, prior to the emergency years, we had improved 

student retention and attainment for two consecutive years, as well as achieving silver 

accreditation Investors in People, LGBT Charter and Healthy Working Lives. We will 

focus our collective energy on building on these improvements over the next three 

years. 

 

Supporting external strategic outcomes 

Plans set out in this Outcome Agreement support the priorities of the Scottish 

Government priorities on economic recovery and inclusive growth, widening access 

and addressing the attainment gap. 

This Outcome Agreement aligns with and contributes to the high priority outcomes of 

the West Lothian Community Planning Partnership’s Single Outcome Agreement 

2013-23 to improve the employment position in West Lothian, and improve attainment 

and positive destinations for school pupils. The college plays a critical role in 

supporting individuals and businesses across West Lothian, contributing to inclusive 

economic growth and community wealth building. We contribute to a number of 
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regional groups to support economic growth and recovery – including the Economic 

Partnership Forum, the Jobs Task Force, the Chamber of Commerce, Job Centre Plus 

and the Developing the Young Workforce (DYW) regional employer group.  

We will continue to work with college, university and West Lothian Council partners on 

implementing skills projects created through the Edinburgh and South East Scotland 

City Region Deal. The college plays an active role on the City Deal HE/FE strategy 

group and elected members oversight committee, alongside our involvement in the 

regional college co-ordination group. In 2021, this work has expanded to connect the 

City Deal regional curriculum manager into the college’s Core Skills review group to 

ensure refreshed approaches to digital skills and the wider delivery of meta skills are 

consistently applied across our curriculum.  

The region is changing and the college aims to provide the skills necessary to help 

businesses, raise productivity, and meet the challenges presented by demographic, 

environmental and technological change. It is critical that our curriculum portfolio 

comprises courses that meet regional and national priorities, and address current and 

forecasted skills gaps.  

In planning a curriculum that meets the needs of the region, as well as understanding 

how industry sectors are expected to grow or decline over the next three years, the 

college pays close attention to changes in the economy and skills requirements at an 

occupational level. The Regional Skills Assessment forecasts that the highest 

proportion of job openings in the next ten years require skills at SCQF level 7 and 

above. Given that only 36% of the adult population has qualifications at these levels, 

it is essential that people are able to achieve qualifications like HNCs and HNDs to be 

able to take advantage of higher value and more secure jobs. The college will 

therefore continue to support a range of pathways to higher education including part-

time HNC study for senior phase school pupils, moving on to HNC study straight from 

school, progressing from FE qualifications to HNC, and part-time learning in work 

through work-based SVQs or evening HNC/Ds. 

We continue to be the top destination for school leavers in West Lothian. and as many 

leavers choose the college as the total of those who move onto all universities in 

Scotland. 

Looking further ahead 

Despite the short to medium term economic challenges caused by the pandemic, 

forecasted growth over the next ten years in the population and the regional economy 

present significant opportunities for the college. The population of West Lothian is over 

180,000 and projected to increase by 21,200 by 2042, making it one of the fastest 

growing populations in Scotland. This is reflected in the growing number of students 

enrolling at the college each year – from 6,151 in 2013-14 to 9,377 in 2020-21. Over 

the past five years, the college has consistently delivered above the target credit 

activity agreed with SFC and we expect this to continue given demographic and 

employment forecasts. 

It is critical that SFC identifies more appropriate ways of allocating funding to enable 

the college to meet this growing demand. 
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OUTCOMES FOR STUDENTS  

Fair access and transitions – education is accessible to students from all backgrounds 

and students are supported through successful pathways 

Poverty and trauma responsive practice 

The proportion of students enrolled at the college who are resident in SIMD20 

postcodes continues to increase and exceeds the relative proportion in the general 

population, demonstrating that we are reaching more people in communities 

affected by multiple deprivation. The precarious financial situation facing an 

increasing number of students makes committing to full-time study a challenge. Levels 

of poverty and  homelessness amongst our students are rising, and we will continue to 

make use of established partnerships with a range of external organisations to provide 

vital financial and housing support. 

 

Our Student Association and support staff work with local charities and social 

enterprises to help students facing financial difficulties remain on course and gain 

qualifications that will help them achieve improved life circumstances. As well as 

continuing to provide a free hot lunch for students, we also offer a free hot breakfast 

we introduced in March 2021, ensuring that learning is not hindered by hunger. We 

continue to ensure access to free sanitary products, and our Student Association 

provides dignity packs for students unable to afford basic hygiene products. 

Adverse childhood experiences (ACEs) are recognised as having a potentially 

negative impact on an individual’s future development, and it is evident that an 

increasing number of our students have experienced trauma in childhood and young 

adult life. We are in a unique position in the college sector to contribute to Scotland’s 

ambition to be an ACE-aware nation. Through the Children’s Hearings Scotland 

Learning Academy our trainers develop the skills of thousands of panellists across 

Scotland and have considerable understanding of trauma-informed practice. 

Our whole-college approach to trauma responsive practice will increase significantly 

in 2021-22. We will work with students to support and build resilience to enable them 

to achieve their goals. This approach will be enhanced by working with key 

professionals and academics to embed a trauma responsive approach across all 

practice. Working closely with West Lothian Council’s Youth Justice, Adult Justice, 

Addictions, and Children and Families teams we are offering individualised admission 

pathways for potential students. This is now recognised as a route to avoid custodial 

sentencing. A network of college staff and external professionals support those with 

specific needs to make progress in their learning.  

Additional funding from SFC in 2021-22 to support our Eliminating Poverty through 

Trauma-responsive Action project will support our work with local partners to improve 

the situation of students and their families. Further development of a flexible learning 

programme will encourage students to enter education and take time to establish a 

plan before committing to a full-time course. This is on an individualised basis and will 

support students who have experienced barriers to learning, including mental health 

and involvement with the justice system, or who have not reached a positive 

destination since leaving school. Students living in an SIMD10 postcode on full-time 

courses will benefit from targeted support from key professionals and employers 

seeking to expand their workforce. This funding also supports basic hygiene needs 

including laundry facilities on campus, pre-cooked healthy meals and access to 

kitchen facilities at break times for all students. 
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Care experienced students 

Over the year, we will continue to make further progress towards SFC’s refreshed 

National Ambition for Care-Experienced Students, and review our Corporate 

Parenting Plan to ensure that enhanced support is put in place for care-experienced 

students. College staff will continue to participate in mandatory training on what it 

means to be a good corporate parent. We guarantee an interview for all applicants 

who declare as care-experienced and work with partner agencies to offer an 

introductory welcome to potential students and a key contact prior to application. 

Where students disclose as care-experienced on application, we put support in place 

to enable them to progress successfully and achieve positive outcomes. This has 

proved very effective and has resulted in sustained above sector average success for 

care-experienced students.  

We have built on our excellent partnership with West Lothian Council Inclusion and 

Wellbeing Service to support young people who are care-experienced and not in full-

time education at school. Monthly strategic meetings with senior social work leads for 

justice, through-care and after-care co-create bespoke courses that are tailored to 

next steps on moving onto college or employment. This provision has attracted 

national attention in its alignment with the September 2021 judicial review by the 

Scottish Sentencing Council that ensures that college provision supports the 

individualistic approach to alternative sentencing for young people who have 

experienced trauma. This model is benefitting from our Eliminating Poverty through 

Trauma-responsive Action project, through which we will work with local partners to 

improve the situation of students and their families.  The college will join the Edinburgh 

Hub for Success in 2021, joining Edinburgh College, Newbattle Abbey College and all 

four Edinburgh universities to promote greater success in widening access for those 

least likely to progress to university from college. We are a member of the West Lothian 

Corporate Parenting Strategic Group and the CDN Access and Inclusion/Guidance 

group. 

 

We will continue to engage with Who Cares? Scotland and CELCIS in our work with 

care-experienced students. The college is represented on SFC’s Care Experienced 

Governance Group and involved in the Care Experienced, Estranged and Carers East 

Forum. Following the achievement in 2021 of the Going Forward for Student Carers 

Award from the Carers Trust and the equivalent UK national award Driving Change from 

the Carers Federation, we will deepen our relationship with West Lothian Carers. One 

of our faculty directors works directly with West Lothian Council’s lead officer on the 

delivery of The Promise to ensure a joined-up and responsive approach to ongoing 

improvements to the care system are complemented by the work of the college and 

our partners. 

 

Successful transitions and effective pathways 

West Lothian’s school/college partnership is led strategically by the council’s 

Education Services in close collaboration with the college. We have a very strong 

partnership with the region’s eleven secondary schools, and liaise directly with heads 

and depute heads in each school as well as with council lead officers.  

Vocational pathways are available to all secondary schools, including courses 

tailored for disengaged pupils that focus on essential life and employability skills. The 

college has a strong suite of courses delivered to over 400 senior phase pupils, 

providing access to vocational qualifications, national qualifications and Foundation 

Apprenticeships (FAs). The college is a strong supporter of FAs, and is the focal point 

for the delivery of FAs in West Lothian. We offer eight Level 6 and three Level 4 FA 

frameworks and work collaboratively with West Lothian Council and the DYW regional 

group to ensure our schools offer is fit for purpose. 
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In 2021-22, we are the only college in Scotland offering the equalities FA pilot Level 4 

in Hospitality (funded by Skills Development Scotland). Students on this course have 

been selected by the council’s Inclusion and Wellbeing team as the furthest removed 

from education in our region.  Participation in this FA is designed to support the young 

person through their studies and to engage with a pathway to their next destination. 

We will continue to work with the council to review existing curriculum planning 

processes to ensure we have a comprehensive and responsive vocational portfolio. 

The college supports shortening the learner journey for young people progressing to 

university and is now in the seventh year of delivering HNC Computing to S5/6 pupils 

(successful attainment of two Highers plus the HNC enables pupils to articulate into 

the second year of some Edinburgh Napier University computing degrees). We work 

in partnership with schools to ensure that senior phase subject choices are compatible 

with school to college and college to university progression. 

While most courses for school pupils are delivered at college, we offer School Link 

where pupils with additional educational needs attend college over three taster days 

and Schools Transition, a half day a week course over the academic year for school 

leavers from special education schools. We also offer a transition programme one 

morning a week for young people in their final year of school who are on the autistic 

spectrum and looking to apply for a full-time mainstream college course the following 

year.  

The college embraces the opportunities presented by the regional improvement 

collaborative and will support fully its collective focus to driving continuous and 

systematic improvement, particularly in relation to closing the poverty attainment 

gap. Our shared aspiration with the council is to produce a well-aligned, seamless 

vocational curriculum between school and college that supports progression, avoids 

duplication and results in a senior phase curriculum designed with young people at 

the heart. Increased engagement between teachers and lecturers to enhance 

delivery to students will be an important part of this. Seventy stakeholders took part in 

our annual school/college partnership planning event in February 2021 which agreed 

the following shared objectives: 

• Change the mode of delivery to offer depth and breadth of choice to pupils 

• Enable every young person to develop their own unique pathway to success, with 

the shortest possible learner journey from school to college and university 

• Attainment measures should promote success beyond outcome agreement 

measures and capture the achievements of every pupil 

• Define credible pathways to work in partnership with employers 

• Ensure the voice of the young people drives change and the pathways we offer. 

 

The college will continue to meet Skills Development Scotland (SDS) careers help and 

guidance managers, West Lothian Council’s Education and Access 2 Employment 

teams, and the DYW regional group regularly to understand and integrate approaches 

to positive destinations for young people.  

 

The college has articulation agreements with a growing number of higher education 

institutions to allow students to progress to university with advanced standing from 

many of our Higher National qualifications. We will increase the number of articulation 

agreements we have with universities and degree programmes to extend the 

availability of advanced standing for our HE students. University progression pathways 

have increased significantly since 2020-21, with new pathways and progression routes 

now available on 185 courses (70 in the previous year). New partner institutions 

include the University of the Highlands and Islands, and Glasgow Caledonian 

University, Open University pathways have been refreshed with the introduction of 
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pathways to Graduate Apprenticeships with Heriot-Watt University. However, it is 

disappointing that these has been a reduction in pathways at Queen Margaret 

University. 

 

Our partnership with Edinburgh Napier University to replace the former BA Business 

Management franchise degree pathway is well underway in 2021-22, with the agreed 

model delivered online and on our campus by university lecturers. This new degree 

pathway ensures our students can progress to the degree without the complexity of 

travelling to the university. Pastoral care is provided by college lecturers known to the 

students from their journey through NC, HNC and HND qualifications. The 2021-22 

intake saw significant growth in part-time applicants that is twice the number of full-

time students. 

 
High quality, learning, teaching and support (students at all levels experience a high-

quality, safe and supportive learning experience that enables them to succeed in their 

studies and they find it easy to participate and engage in their educational 

experience) 

Digital and blended learning 

In August 2020, we established a Learning Continuity Group under the stewardship of 

a faculty director that provided invaluable support to lecturers, assessors and other 

staff throughout the year. To support this group, we seconded a lecturer into a new 

role to advise on how to adapt pedagogy to support blended learning. We created 

three new learning technology posts to take forward the recommendations from this 

group. The work of this group was highlighted in Education Scotland‘s Comments and 

Cameos report that accompanied its publication, Remote learning in Scotland’s 

Colleges. 

Our curriculum faculties were re-shaped in 2020 to reflect the regional economy. In 

addition, we identified five strategic themes, each one led by a faculty director, to 

ensure the mainstreaming of all themes across the curriculum. These themes are 

learning, teaching and assessment; digital learning; equality, diversity and inclusion, 

trauma responsive practice; and STEM and sustainability. 

In August 2021 the college created a new training strategy for all delivery staff, 

recommended by the Learning Continuity Group, that involves all curriculum delivery 

staff and uses our online platform to deliver training, workshops and masterclasses. It 

also facilitates consultation of all staff who deliver learning, teaching and assessment 

to our students. This work is led by a vice principal and draws on the expertise of all 

faculty directors, heads of service and operational managers. Topics include the five 

strategic themes and weekly workshops with all delivery staff give a voice to those 

who lead learning, teaching and assessment in shaping the curriculum.  

A strong focus is on the improvement of online learning, developing a shared vision 

for blended learning and supporting delivery staff to adapt pedagogy for this hybrid 

approach. Six new Learning Champions (lecturers with partial remission from teaching 

duties) are led by a faculty director to inspire others to create innovative 

projects/teaching approaches and assessment methodology that will result in 

improved skill, creativity and digital pedagogical approaches across the college. 

Each Learning Champion supports the improvement of learning, teaching and 

assessment practice by co-creating a customised action plan for each faculty. They 

will raise the aspirations and expectations of our staff through improving skills, sharing 

innovative practice and ensuring progress is aligned to GTCS standards. 

Digital technology impacts on every industry sector the college serves, on how we 

deliver education and skills, and on how we operate. The college will continue to 
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modernise our curriculum, facilities and ways of working. To support the move to 

remote delivery and home working, we invested in upgrading our server infrastructure 

and made significant improvements to our systems to help staff and students work and 

learn more effectively. We made important progress on improving digital security with 

in the college being re-awarded with Cyber Essentials accreditation and achieving 

Cyber Essentials Plus in November 2021. We also invested in fourteen Clevertouch 

interactive screens and lecture capture software.   

To enable students to engage in blended learning the college will continue to 

distribute laptops and other devices. In 2020-21, we distributed 483 laptops, 90 

Chromebooks and iPads, 40 Wi-Fi enabled dongles and 90 MiFis to students. Despite 

this, we still had students experiencing digital poverty and this continues to be the 

case in the current academic year. We expect to see even greater demand from 

students in 2021-22. This is exacerbated by the ongoing challenge of significant 

delivery delays in receiving IT equipment due to global demand. With SFC stating that 

funding for digital resources will not continue in 2022-23, we face challenges in 

maintaining a digital infrastructure that meets the needs of our students and staff as 

hybrid models of learning and work persist beyond the pandemic years.  

Demand for digital devices to support blended learning will increase with each new 

cohort of students and it is unclear how this can be supported without sustained 

additional funding from SFC to address digital poverty. 

Support for student mental health and wellbeing 

Our Health and Wellbeing strategy covers staff and students, and a cross-college staff 

experience group seeks to improve working practices and support health and 

wellbeing. As the proportion of students declaring mental health problems increases 

each year, collaborative efforts by staff, students and stakeholders have a positive 

impact on students with poor mental health. We will support lecturers and other staff in 

the work they are doing proactively to support student mental health. For example, 

the Man Cave is now an established safe space at West Lothian College that delivers 

twice-weekly in-person and online discussions. Staff will take part in training on mental 

health, wellbeing and resilience throughout 2020-21. 

We will make good use of the additional SFC funding for mental health in 2021-22 to 

enable us to enhance our support for students and staff. This includes enhancing our 

outdoor space for health and wellbeing activities, an increase in resources to support 

students and mental health training. 

As well as a range of campaigns throughout the year to promote strategies for good 

mental health and wellbeing, our Student Association will continue to provide a range 

of initiatives to support students struggling with mental health. For example, Recharge 

enables students to self-refer and be supported in looking after their mental health 

and wellbeing through advice on diet, exercise and how to be mentally healthy. The 

Student Association will continue to offer Mental Health First Aid training to student 

representatives. The association will continue to work with a wide range of external 

partners across West Lothian to support student welfare.  

In 2021-22, college staff, Student Association representatives and some external 

partners will enrol on SMILE Counselling’s Mental Wellbeing and Health training, an 

eight-week programme designed to give enhanced capability to those keen to 

embed trauma informed practice. This will be rolled out to all staff as direct 

participants or as part of our wider approach to ensure all staff and partners are 

trauma responsive in their practice. Our third wave of training will see students trained 

in the same practice, which will enhance the nurturing and empathetic culture of the 

college, and ensure that students completing work placements and graduates take 

this practice into the workplace to influence the culture more widely.  
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Partnership, participation and student experience (students find it easy to participate, 

have their voice heard and valued, and influence their educational experience) 

Central to everything we do are our students. The student voice is critical in setting out 

the kind of college we want to be and the Student Association will continue to 

influence all decisions we make. The college invested in a large, visible and well-

resourced Student Association hub located in the entrance of our main campus 

building. So far in 2021-22, there are clear signs that there is greater engagement from 

students in the association. 

The Student Association has created an online student community on Microsoft Teams 

for this academic year to provide information updates, offer advice on IT, highlight 

money-saving schemes, point to work and volunteering opportunities, and 

encourage engagement in social activities and clubs. 

The Student Association plays a vital role in evaluating the quality of learning and 

teaching through its SPARKLE evaluation toolkit. This has resulted in changes to college 

processes, delivery of learning and support, and resources for learning. As well as 

evaluating the student experience, the Student Association self-evaluates its own 

performance and governance to ensure sustainability in capturing and acting on the 

student voice. 

 

Learning with impact (students at all levels are equipped to flourish in employment, 

further study and to lead fulfilling lives) 

Courses in context of public health 

Our close relationship with West Lothian Council’s economic development team yields 

insights into employers’ current and future skills needs, and leads to the involvement 

of the college in proactive planning with businesses. Weekly meetings with the 

council, DYW group and JobCentre Plus enable us to be agile in designing provision 

that meets immediate and medium-term needs of industry sectors. 

Positive destinations 

The SFC College Leaver Destinations 2019-20 publication showed that 97.3% of West 

Lothian College leavers had a positive destination. In 2021-22, we will continue to 

assist and advise students on positive progression pathways on leaving college. 

Good understanding of the needs of business and industry 

Employers have a major influence in ensuring our curriculum is fully aligned with 

individual, economic and community need. College leaders and faculty managers 

engage directly with hundreds of companies and organisations. As well as these 

individual relationships, employers take part in key strategic activities to plan course 

provision, for example through sector-specific employer advisory forums and annual 

curriculum planning events. All faculties use labour market intelligence effectively, 

and involve employers in course design. All faculty directors lead the development of 

one of five strategic cross-cutting themes above and work across the college and with 

external partners to continually improve organisational understanding and progress.  

Public health emergency (institutions are responsive, have assurance mechanisms in 

place to comply with guidance, communicate well with students, staff and 

communities, and remedy situations as they arise) 

We planned a safe return to campus from August 2021, and continue to have between 

60-70% of full-time students on campus, as well as almost all schools groups and 
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apprentices. This was the result of extensive joint planning between all areas of the 

college. Weekly Covid Business Continuity Planning meetings, and fortnightly 

meetings between senior management and trade unions, monitor how well our health 

and safety measures are being implemented and adapt these as necessary. This 

partnership working has resulted in excellent delivery planning in 2021. 

Our approach to staying safe during the pandemic is to insist on face coverings 

indoors, hand hygiene, distancing, ventilation and regular testing. Resources such as 

hand sanitisers, masks and testing kits are readily available across the campus. To 

help prevent the spread of the coronavirus, the college is investing £80,000 in 150 WiFi 

carbon dioxide monitors and sensors that link to and, are run through, our building 

management system.  This will allow us to obtain automatic readings in all areas of 

the college at any time of the day.  

We invest considerable time in effective, regular communication with staff, students 

and stakeholders. Prior to the start of the current academic year, the principal sent 

personalised letters to all students to welcome them to college, ask them to get 

vaccinated and encourage them to comply with safety measures to keep our campus 

open. Weekly updates are sent to staff from the Principal and HR, and very good use 

of all digital display screens across the campus reinforce safety guidelines and alert 

students to any changes. The Student Association reinforces these messages in their 

regular communications with students. In September, an NHS Vaccination Bus was on 

campus for two days and we will consider whether we should have a return visit later 

in the year.   

 

Equalities and Inclusion (every student has their individual needs recognised in terms 

of protected characteristics; and everyone is treated fairly and with respect) 

The college is committed to maintaining a culture of equality of opportunity where all 

staff, students and partners are treated fairly and with respect. We value diversity and 

aim to foster good relations, and eliminate discrimination, victimisation and 

harassment of any form, including gender-based violence. The college will continue 

to make progress on mainstreaming equalities through our Access and Inclusion Plan, 

Equalities Policy and Procedure, and Equalities Action Plan. These set out our direction 

in ensuring services and courses are open and inclusive for all, and that we attract 

and meet the needs of people from all backgrounds. A cross-college group, led by 

one of our faculty directors, was created in summer 2020 to lead our diversity, inclusion 

and equalities work. 

One of our vice principals is a member on the SFC group set up to tackle persistent 

inequalities. In addition to her college experience, she brings experience of the care 

system to this planning group that aims to take an intersectional approach to 

determine the true impact of inequality and how colleges and universities can work 

in partnership to better align access and inclusion. 

We will continue to build on our achievements from 2020-21 when we established a 

fresh approach to embedding equalities and widening access, and recruited a 

dedicated equalities officer. This better joined-up approach will have considerable 

impact on our next steps in mainstreaming equality and diversity across the college. 

This was reinforced in our current equality outcomes that were identified following 

extensive engagement from all staff in embedding college values and behaviour. 

All students supported to achieve their full potential 

 

A dedicated student support team of well qualified, proactive and experienced staff 

meet the needs of individual students. Students are encouraged to disclose specific 

needs when they join the college and, increasingly, before they enrol. In 2021-22, all 

students were asked to complete a wellness survey on enrolment. There was a very 
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good completion rate and this is influencing how we support students this year. 

Support is personalised to facilitate learning and attainment, and is available during 

the day and out of hours to support part-time students. Our student support team 

provides a high-quality service, evidenced by our above average sector success for 

students living in areas of multiple deprivation, care-experienced students, and those 

with a declared disability. Individual plans are developed in consultation with 

students, and these plans are shared with teaching staff to inform strategies for 

retention and attainment. Student progress is monitored throughout the year by 

named staff. 

The college supports disabled students and staff well, as evidenced by sustained 

above sector average successful outcomes for students who declare a disability. 

Students who disclose a disability are referred to the student support team who 

develop a support plan with them relevant to the nature of their disability. The 

Equalities Committee ensures that disabilities are fully considered and reasonable 

action taken to ensure every student has an equal chance to succeed. 

Mainstreaming equality, diversity and inclusion into the everyday work of the college 

is at the heart of all we do. The college has created a whole-college approach to 

equalities and widening access by establishing three levels of staff and student 

involvement. We have closely aligned our three equality outcomes to the college 

values to ensure equalities and widening access are embedded into all our activity.  

Students leaving school and who have been in a supported learning environment 

benefit from a transition period that is supported by full-time college courses that 

enable students move onto opportunities including employment or volunteering.  
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OUTCOMES FOR ECONOMIC RECOVERY AND 

SOCIAL RENEWAL  

Responsive institutions (Institutions are responsive to employer and industry needs and 

to current and future skills requirements) 

Using labour market information and industry engagement 

The college uses a wide range of sources to ensure that our courses align with labour 

market information. Each year we use the West Lothian Regional Skills Assessment to 

understand projected growth or decline in different industry sectors, occupational 

trends, and the profile and skills level of the population. Regular engagement between 

college leaders and the Federation of Small Businesses, the local Chamber of 

Commerce and industry bodies results in enhanced business intelligence on 

emerging skills needs that influences curriculum planning. 

 

Curriculum planning throughout the year involves employer representatives. The 

college is a key partner in weekly meetings of the West Lothian Economic Recovery 

Group that includes all key organisations. We are the primary conduit for partners such 

as West Lothian Council, universities and Skills Development Scotland to provide 

employers with a single skills support proposition rather than partners approaching 

them with individual offerings. This prevents duplication and ensures that students are 

given the right support to progress to the path that is right for them. 

Upskilling and reskilling the existing workforce 

The college plays a pivotal role in supporting West Lothian’s economic recovery. 

Working closely with partners such as DWP, SDS, DYW, West Lothian Business Gateway, 

West Lothian Chamber of Commerce and Voluntary Sector Gateway West Lothian the 

college is fundamental in helping businesses to shape their current and future 

workforce through skills development.  

In this third disrupted emergency year, we have continued to shape our curriculum 

portfolio to support essential upskilling and reskilling, for example through effective 

use of the Flexible Workforce Development Fund, the apprenticeship family, our 

extensive SVQ portfolio and part-time professional courses. Through the Flexible 

Workforce Development Fund we supported 53 businesses, across a diverse range of 

sectors, to upskill and reskill 2,700 employees. Our successful track record in 

delivering bespoke, relevant training to companies led to West Lothian Council 

awarding the college £150,000 to supplement our FWDF allocation. In response to the 

economic challenges caused by the pandemic, the college designed bespoke Skills 

Boost courses for the NHS, including the Care at Home team and the Scottish 

Ambulance Service. In 2021-22, we will continue to deliver accelerator HNCs, 

Pathway Apprenticeships and enhanced Kickstart work placements with relevant 

skills development in support of our commitment to the Young Person’s Guarantee.  

 

The excellent partnership with the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) and West 

Lothian Council to deliver courses for those made redundant or facing redundancy as 

a result of the pandemic has been crucial for economic recovery in our region. Our 

Skills Boost courses have attracted previously unsuccessful applicants for jobs and 

college courses and enabled them to gain employment with large organisations like 

NHS. This approach continues in 2021-22 to include a PDA qualification for support 

workers providing shorter, sharper training to allow new staff to be job-ready and meet 

the demands of the increased care workforce. 

Working in partnership with the DWP, a Youth Hub will be created in 2021 and located 
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in our campus to offer an additional service that will bring job opportunities to young 

people.   

Meta skills and attributes to succeed 

Pathways for people without work to study and move into jobs 

As part of the Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Regional Deal (through the Data 

Driven Innovation Gateway project) will work with other colleges to develop a suite of 

courses that enhance the digital skills of groups including those furthest away from 

education and employment, women returners, and those currently employed and in 

need of reskilling. In 2020-21 this includes the provision of data science courses. 

Confident and highly capable work-ready graduates (work-ready graduates are 

confident and ready to secure success in their career, meeting employer needs and 

making a positive contribution to our economy and society. Students are equipped to 

take up employment and succeed when the job market opens up) 

Early Years and Childcare partners in West Lothian Council ensured that all childhood 

practice students were able to undertake work placements throughout 2020-21. In 

response to the various pressures of industry lockdown by sector, the college worked 

closely with 3rd sector partners to develop formal volunteering’ opportunities for our 

students. 

Pipeline of technically skilled people to fill skills gaps 

 

Following the success of a course supported through the Digital Start Fund in 2020-21, 

the college secured further funding to deliver a second course starting in January 

2022.  This will be carried out in partnership with The Prince’s Trust will offer students 

employability activities and interviews with potential employers. The college has 

offered two data science courses through the DDI City Deal.   

  

The Cyber Security course for neurodivergent students funded through SDS was highly 

successful with 100% pass rate and attendance.  The course was developed to work 

with students’ different learning styles. The course was supported by our partners at 

The Donaldson’s Trust and West Lothian Council Supported Employment Service. 

Following a meeting with the DDI coordinator they are looking to see how the course 

for neurodivergent students can be replicated in other colleges. 

 

As an illustration of our creativity in planning a curriculum offer that meets skills gaps, 

we are proactive in the delivery of electrical car programmes and training to prepare 

for the demands of the industry now and in the future, Level 2/3 Hybrid qualification 

example illustrates that we can fast-track students towards their qualifications beyond 

the traditional 1 level per year approach, to compress multiple years of SCQF level 

studies to create job-ready graduates more quickly. 

 

The college will continue to design courses in partnership with employers to address 

skills gaps in industry sectors, for example in external wall insulation in support of the 

green economy. We will make full and effective use of all apprenticeship family 

products to support a pipeline of skilled people, including the new Skills Boost 

programmes and their link to this pathway. 

The college has been contracted to deliver 106 new start Modern Apprenticeships in 

2021-22 and we are seeing growth in the social care, business and construction 

sectors. We are developing our partnership with Herriot Watt University to ensure local 

employers have access to the full range of apprenticeships on offer. In addition, the 

college supports the delivery of apprenticeships in a number of local authorities and 

continues to support Scottish Electrical Charitable Training Trust and Construction 
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Industry Training Board to deliver the educational component of their apprenticeships. 

We will intensify work on STEM and our curriculum portfolio will offer a broader and 

deeper range of qualifications in engineering, computing, construction and science. 

We will continue to facilitate regional partnerships through the West Lothian Regional 

STEM Partnership and work with partners to establish a regional strategy. Over the year, 

we will work in partnership with schools, employers and DYW to support a range of 

STEM activities, eg the IET Lego League in January 2022. 

Knowledge Exchange and Innovation 

Innovation in the curriculum 

We will continue to be an early adopter of new approaches to curriculum design and 

delivery. Working with partners, we will leverage opportunities brought about by the 

Edinburgh and South East Scotland City Regional Deal, in particular related to data. 

The college will build on its innovative partnerships with companies like Morrison 

Construction and SERS to evaluate vocational courses co-designed with them.  

Two years ago, we integrated outdoor learning into our childhood practice curriculum 

and delivered this with children from local nurseries and primary schools in our forest 

classroom. We have further developed opportunities for outdoor learning that benefit 

our students, staff and stakeholders as well as young people in nursery, primary and 

secondary settings. We enabled three colleges to adopt similar practice in 2020-21 

and shared our learning materials and approaches with them to allow our model to 

be easily replicated. Now that outdoor learning has been integrated into all childhood 

practice courses, a second forest classroom will be created on campus in 2021-22 to 

accommodate demand. Further cross-college collaborations over the year between 

the childhood practice team and curriculum areas such as construction and 

engineering will enhance the learning experience of all students involved. 

Innovation in physical and virtual learning spaces 

In 2020-21, the college repurposed the ground floor of the main campus building to 

create a modern learning centre with flexible technology-enabled learning spaces 

for individual and group study. A new Student Association hub was created in the main 

entrance and a multi-purpose Information Point and Campus Café provide further 

opportunities to enhance the student experience. The final phase of this project will 

be completed in 2021-22 with the building entrance being extended and enhanced 

to offer a larger, improved and flexible circulation space. 

Also completed in 2020-21 was the extension of our engineering workshop by creating 

an additional floor in the existing workshop and installing equipment that was 

previously not available at the college. This project will be enhanced in 2021-22 by 

creating further workshop facilities to meet increased demand from companies to 

support electrical engineering apprenticeships. SFC provided additional capital 

funding to contribute to the implementation of these projects. 

The college agreed a five-year estates plan in 2021. More substantial capital funding 

is required to repurpose our 20-year-old campus so that it can support students, 

employers and other stakeholders well for the next twenty years. While we will make 

the most effective use of the capital grant we receive from SFC, the major 

reconfiguration set out in our estates is not possible with our existing grant. As well as 

continuing to make a business case for additional SFC capital funding, we will pursue 

alternative funding opportunities and partnership opportunities to fulfil our ambitions. 

In 2021-22, we secured £493,000 from West Lothian Council    

Separate from the projects highlighted above, achieving other priorities for improving 

our learning estate in 2021-22 is dependent on the required funding being available. 
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These priorities include creating a digital health suite in response to industry demand 

to enable health and social care students to carry out practical work in a high-quality 

simulated setting. We also plan to create a dedicated suite of flexible informal learning 

spaces that includes a quiet space for neurodivergent students, a base for 

employability skills, and a safe space for students who have not engaged with 

education for a long time.  

Innovation in how we work 

The college is committed to sustaining hybrid working and blended learning. 

Following a staff survey in June 2021, a working group was created to consider how to 

support hybrid working beyond the pandemic years, and will consult widely with staff 

to reach recommendations. These will be considered in 2021-22 with a view to 

implementing agreed recommendations from summer 2022.   

In 2021-22 we will make greater use of data analytics to plan our curriculum with a 

wide range of information, including data collected by West Lothian schools on the 

future career preferences and destinations of their pupils as well as the courses they 

are studying. This, combined with labour market data, helps us make our curriculum 

relevant to individual and employer needs. We also use data proactively to determine 

how we can help an individual improve their chances of success and predict future 

trends. Our support staff, armed with analysis of our data and the intelligence that 

comes with that, reach out to students to offer personalised help. 

 

Engaging with the innovation landscape 

The college will continue to engage with the Innovation Centres, in particular The Data 

Lab and Construction Scotland Innovation Centre, on professional development 

opportunities for our staff and access to emerging technologies for our students and 

collaborative projects.  

Although West Lothian was identified as the sixth most resilient local authority in the UK 

by the Oxford Economics Vulnerability Index, one reason for this is a lower proportion 

of small businesses and self-employment relative to the national average. The college 

will support the region to be more enterprising. Many courses include enterprise units 

that involve students in work placements or simulated activities that develop skills for 

employment. We will build on our excellent collaboration with Bridge2Business and 

West Lothian Business Gateway to inspire, connect and support college students into 

business, and continue to raise awareness of the opportunities available to students 

once they are at university.  

Collaboration (there is active collaboration with other SFC funded institutions and 

across the education and skills system)  

In June 2020, the principals of Edinburgh, Fife, Forth Valley and West Lothian Colleges 

formed a four-college collaboration to explore new ways of working and develop a 

multi-region response to economic recovery. Two outputs from this partnership, Skills 

Boost Academies and Accelerator HNCs, were rolled out in 2020-21 to the wider sector 

through the Young Person’s Guarantee and National Transition Training Fund. We will 

continue to work through this partnership to explore further opportunities for 

collaboration in our four college regions. 

In 2021-22, the college will establish new strategic relationships with the east of 

Scotland universities to pursue shared ambitions and stimulate demand for higher 

education. (refer HE level skills) 
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Place-based estate 

Supported by £493k awarded by West Lothian Council through the Scottish 

Government’s Place Based Investment Capital Fund, the college will create a new 

training centre to deliver sustainable construction skills. A critical component of the 

centre will be the building of a semi-detached eco house designed in two styles – one 

constructed traditionally, the other built to passive house standards with renewable 

energy sources to achieve zero-carbon capability. The facility will be designed and 

built in collaboration with our industry partners, and we will explore with east of 

Scotland universities links with their sustainable construction developments. The twin 

design will enable students and employees to be trained in two critical areas, 

reducing the carbon emissions of existing houses and using new construction 

techniques and low carbon technologies in new builds. Exploratory discussions will 

take place with industry partners on how this new training centre will address current 

and future skills shortages. 

Climate emergency (Institutions take urgent action to help reduce or halt climate 

change, avoid irreversible damage, and support environmental sustainability 

measures) 

 

Scotland’s colleges are committed to achieving net-zero by 2040 or earlier. Our Net 

Zero Plan 2021-26 sets out actions that we want to achieve as our commitment to 

tackling climate change. As well as contributing to government targets and our own 

aims, it will encourage and enable our students and staff to apply, support and 

promote sustainability in their everyday lives. 

Becoming more sustainable and reducing our carbon footprint is a key priority for the 

college. Our Net Zero Carbon Plan will be launched in September 2021 and set out 

cross-college actions that demonstrate our commitment to climate change. Our 

sustainable goals include biodiversity, building emissions, the circular economy and 

will focus on key UN goals such as poverty, zero hunger and good health and 

wellbeing. These will be taken forward by staff and students in conjunction with partner 

organisations. We will showcase what we have achieved during COP26. 

 

The college will undertake a campus energy audit in 2021-22 supported by the 

Scottish Government Decarbonisation Fund. This will identify projects that could form 

the basis of future applications for capital funding. In partnership with Borders and Forth 

Valley Colleges, we will employ a sustainability officer to help take forward our 

sustainability/net zero plans.  

 

Innovative responses to the climate emergency 

 

The eco house described above will contribute to reducing carbon emissions as part 

of our place-based approach to economic recovery. As part of our net zero 

commitments, we will continue to make full use of the college’s extensive outdoor 

space. In 2021-22, we will create a second forest classroom, plant additional trees 

across the campus, and create wildflower areas with homes and feeders for insects, 

birds and small wildlife. In addition, we will install an outdoor gym and games area, 

more outdoor seating and further covered areas for students and staff to enjoy the 

outdoors in inclement weather. 

 

Embedding sustainability within all college courses is planned for 2022-23. For 

example, in 2021-22 our preparation for green jobs and just transition, we have worked 

with SQA to create a flexible qualification that covers sustainability with industry 

specific units. 
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During COP26, the college will organise a Volunteering Week for staff and students to 

participate in a range of activities that contribute to tackling climate change. 
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APPENDIX 1 - OUTCOME AGREEMENT TARGETS 

2021-22                

Measure 2014-15 2015-16  2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 
A Credits Delivered (Core) 44,196 43,417 42,595 44,132 44,607 44,737 43,646   
 Credits Delivered (ESF) 0 973 1,490 1,194 833 1,187 707   
 Credits Delivered (Core + ESF) 44,196 44,390 44,085 45,326 45,440 45,924 44,353 47,776 
B Volume of Credits Delivered to 10% most deprived postcode areas 2,129 1,938 2,437 3,694 3,986 3,959 4,413   
 Proportion of Credits delivered to 10% most deprived postcode areas 4.8% 4.4% 5.5% 8.1% 8.8% 8.7% 8.8% 8.8% 
C Volume of credits delivered to care-experienced learners 0 246 164 576 2,148 2,364 3,073   
 Proportion of credits delivered to care-experienced learners 0.0% 0.6% 0.4% 1.3% 4.7% 5.2% 6.2% 6.2% 
D Number of senior phase age pupils studying vocational qualifications 

delivered by colleges 75 134 186 197 278 314 278   
E1 Proportion of enrolled students successfully obtaining a recognised 

qualification (Full time FE) 63.5% 64.1% 61.9% 65.5% 67.7% 62.9% 65.7% 62% 
 Number of enrolled students successfully obtaining a recognised 

qualification (Full time FE) 849 842 788 875 838 713    
 Total number of FTFE students 1,336 1,313 1,273 1,336 1,237 1,133  1200 
E2 Proportion of enrolled students successfully obtaining a recognised 

qualification (Part time FE) 74.2% 70.6% 77.7% 78.7% 85.5% 83.9% 81.0% 82% 
 Number of enrolled students successfully obtaining a recognised 

qualification (Part time FE) 2,482 1,676 2,241 2,675 3,735 2,379    
 Total number of PTFE students 3,344 2,374 2,883 3,400 4,370 2,836    
E3 Proportion of enrolled students successfully obtaining a recognised 

qualification (Full time HE) 71.1% 69.7% 72.5% 69.8% 70.5% 68.3% 69.0% 70% 
 Number of enrolled students successfully obtaining a recognised 

qualification (Full time HE) 507 513 525 531 541 520    
 Total number of FTHE students 713 736 724 761 767 761    
E4 Proportion of enrolled students successfully obtaining a recognised 

qualification (Part time HE) 73.9% 65.5% 74.6% 78.5% 81.7% 88.5% 82.0% 83% 
  Number of enrolled students successfully obtaining a recognised 

qualification (Part time HE) 334 306 362 547 468 570    
 Total number of PTHE students 452 467 485 697 573 644    
F Number of students achieving an HNC/D qualification articulating to 

degree level courses  207 221 241 231 0     
 Number of students achieving an HNC/D qualification articulating to 

degree level courses with advanced standing 94 88 111 92 0     
 Proportion of students achieving an HNC/D qualification articulating to 

degree level courses with advanced standing 45.4% 39.8% 46.1% 39.8% -  39.8% 40% 
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G Total number of full-time FE college qualifiers (in confirmed destinations) 
 

763 841 759 787 743   

  
 
 

 Number of full-time FE college qualifiers in work, training or further study 
3-6 months after qualifying 749 797 738 749 715     

 Proportion of full-time FE college qualifiers in work, training or further 
study 3-6 months after qualifying 98.2% 94.8% 97.2% 95.2% 96.2%  95.2% 96% 

 Total number of full-time HE college qualifiers (in confirmed destinations) 466 477 486 476 497     
 Number of full-time HE college qualifiers in work, training or further study 

3-6 months after qualifying 454 466 473 463 483     
 Proportion of full-time HE college qualifiers in work, training or further 

study 3-6 months after qualifying 97.4% 97.7% 97.3% 97.3% 97.2%  97.3% 97% 
H Percentage of students overall satisfied with their college experience 

(SSES survey) - 92.2% 94.2% N/A 95.4%   95.4% 90% 
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APPENDIX 2 - 2020-21 A YEAR IN NUMBERS  
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APPENDIX 3 – SELF ASSESSMENT OF 2019-20 OUTCOME AGREEMENT 

INTRODUCTION 

 

West Lothian College had many successes in 2020-21, a year that was without doubt the most 

challenging year for students in living memory. It is important to start this evaluation of the 

year by recognising the dedication, creativity and determination of our staff and the hard 

work, commitment and resilience of our students. Without that, we would be telling a very 

different story. 

We enrolled a record number of students over the year, experienced our highest ever student 

success and, against sector trends, exceeded our core credit target and the additional 

credits allocated through the Young Person’s Guarantee and National Transition Training 

Fund.  

Despite long periods of working remotely, we were able to engage all colleagues in two 

successful staff conferences that led to refreshing our vision, goals, values and behaviours. 

We worked hard to help staff adapt to the uncertainty and challenges brought about by the 

pandemic. The success of this is reflected in the very positive results from the four staff surveys 

that took place from the beginning to the end of the year.       

While supporting students and staff through the public health emergency was our top priority 

over the year, we also made significant progress on improving our estate, took our employer 

and stakeholder partnerships to new levels, and enhanced our innovative approaches to 

collaboration.  

OUR RESPONSE TO COVID 

 

In consultation with local trade union representatives the college planned a safe return to 

campus from August 2020. Following the pattern of the pandemic four significant changes to 

timetables took place in the academic year: 1) to support students deferred from the 

previous year, 2) to take account of Level 4 guidelines on restricted blended learning from 

November 2020, 3) to deliver online only from January to March 2021, and 4) to adapt to the 

gradual relaxation of guidance after the spring break.  

We delayed the start of the academic year to mid-September to allow time for lecturers to 

take part in training and prepare for blended learning (deferred and school students were on 

campus from mid-August). All lecturers received a new laptop and we seconded a lecturer 

into a new role advising others on how to adapt pedagogy for digital delivery. A Learning 

Continuity Support Team, comprising key staff and a representative from the local authority’s 

digital learning team, was established to provide advice to colleagues throughout the year. 

The invaluable work of this group was recognised in the Comments and Cameos publication 

that accompanied Education Scotland‘s report, Remote Learning in Scotland’s Colleges. 

Supported by additional capital funding from SFC and Connecting Scotland, we distributed 

483 laptops, 90 Chromebooks and iPads, 40 Wi-Fi enabled dongles and 90 Mi-Fi to students 

over the year. Despite this, some students continued to experience digital poverty and this 

continues to be the case in the current academic year.  

In the move to remote delivery and home working we upgraded our server infrastructure and 

made significant improvements to our student Information systems to help staff and students 

work and learn more effectively. To support campus-based and online delivery, we bought a 

range of hardware resources such as Padcasters and 14 Clevertouch interactive screens, as 

well as lecture capture software. When students were able to be on campus, our focus was 
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on supporting vulnerable students and those needing to complete practical units. Staff 

worked very hard to ensure students benefited from every possible moment they had on 

campus. 

We were one of a very small number of colleges that were successful in providing work 

placements for all childhood practice students in 2020-21, made possible by our excellent 

partnership with West Lothian Council. Schools and nursery settings offered placements that 

ensured our students achieved their qualifications and were able to register with their 

professional body (SSSC). 

The economic impact of the coronavirus pandemic led to major challenges for students. 

Increased numbers struggled financially and students already experiencing poverty found it 

harder than ever before. In response, we introduced a free hot breakfast for students to 

supplement our free hot soup, so that hunger did not get in the way of achieving their 

qualification. Making full use of additional funding from SFC to help students financially and 

respond to their declining mental health, our support teams mitigated some of the worst 

effects of the pandemic on many of our students. This was enhanced by our Student 

Association and support staff working together with local charities and social enterprises to 

help students facing difficulties. 

As well as supporting our students, we provided a wide range of support to staff. We 

expanded on the initiatives such as the virtual beverage room introduced during the first 

lockdown in 2020. In addition to our annual staff survey, we undertook three pulse surveys 

over the year to be aware of the challenges staff were facing and what further support we 

could provide. We received very high engagement in these surveys and we took a range of 

actions as a consequence.   

REFLECTIONS ON PERFORMANCE DATA  

 

Performance figures for the second academic year impacted by the pandemic need to be 

understood in the context of the effects of the pandemic on student retention, success and 

progression which were significant. Caution needs to be taken on any comparisons with 

previous years.  

Recruitment 

The college achieved a record number of 9,377 enrolments in 2020-21 (of which 6,316 were 

supported by SFC credits). This strong demand has continued in 2021-22 with enrolments on 

full-time courses ahead of the same time last year.  

A quarter of all enrolments were full-time (2,185), of whom 91% lived in West Lothian, 56% 

were female and 9.5% lived in areas of multiple deprivation. The college continued to be the 

top destination for West Lothian school leavers.  

We continued to cement our role in workforce development over the year enabling nearly 

1,000 employees in 350 organisations to achieve SVQs, supporting 349 Modern Apprentices 

including 222 new starts, and working with 53 companies to train 2,700 employees (through 

the Flexible Workforce Development Fund).  

Continuing our commitment to Developing the Young Workforce, we increased our 

Foundation Apprenticeship numbers, with 192 students enrolled from schools across West 

Lothian, including 132 new starts. In support of the Young Person’s Guarantee and adults at 

risk of losing their jobs during the pandemic, we worked with three colleges to design Skills 

Boost courses and accelerator HNCs. These were rolled out nationally and our college 

delivered more of these over the year than most colleges in Scotland. 

As well as supporting young people on a variety of courses throughout the year, as an 

employer we agreed a strategy to develop our own young workforce. We recruited six 
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unemployed young people through the UK Government’s Kickstart scheme and two Modern 

Apprentices (with more in 2021-22). In addition, throughout the year we continued to offer 

internships to university undergraduate students and college graduates, and work 

placements for our Foundation Apprenticeship students. 

Retention 

The overall early withdrawal rate of our students improved on 2019-20. In fact, for both FE and 

HE full-time students, early withdrawal rates were the lowest they had been for at least ten 

years. This was a direct result of excellent work in engaging students on practical activities on 

campus, supporting work placements and delivering innovative approaches that enabled 

students to engage with industry experts. Proactive financial, learning and mental health 

support for students complemented this. 

However, heightened pandemic restrictions from November, followed by the winter 

lockdown from January to March 2021 had a devastating effect on some students, 

particularly full-time FE students who most need in-person encouragement from lecturers and 

support staff. Then, just as some students were able to return to campus following months of 

lockdown, they were dealt a further blow with two months of EIS strike action. On top of the 

isolation and uncertainty many students experienced due to the pandemic, they now faced 

confusion and anxiety as a result of industrial action. Together, these undoubtedly 

contributed to the large increase in further withdrawals that led to the highest withdrawal 

rates of full-time FE students ever experienced at the college.  

Although there was significant improvement in 2018-19 (the year before the pandemic), 

withdrawal rates for full-time FE students have been stubbornly high for over ten years. 

Therefore, although the two pandemic years have undoubtedly contributed to increased 

withdrawals, the college will establish a working group in 2021 to look into this in detail and 

identify actions for improvement. 

Success  

Despite the significant disruption caused by the pandemic and strike action, 81.3% of 

all students completed their course successfully, an increase of 3.3 percentage points 

on 2019-20 and the best ever overall performance achieved by the college.  
 

Level and Mode 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

FEFT 67.8% 62.9% 60.4% 

HEFT 70.5% 68.3% 71.3% 

FEPT 85.7% 83.9% 89.2% 

HEPT 80.1% 89.8% 83.2% 

ALL 80.4% 78.0% 81.3% 

 

While full-time HE students were impacted by the same challenges as FE students, more 

managed to complete their qualifications successfully (71.3% which was an increase of three 

percentage points on the previous year). A significant contributor to that increase was the 

college’s ability to sustain work placements in subjects such as childhood practice and 

professional cookery.  

Completed success declined for full-time FE students over the year. This is a vulnerable group 

of students who are typically younger than full-time HE students. They are significantly more 

likely to live in areas of multiple deprivation, declare a disability and be care experienced 

(see below). As described above, the impact of the pandemic and industrial action was 

more severe on these students. 
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Enrolments 2020-21 FEFT HEFT 

Aged 16-19 53% 43% 

Care experienced 10.3% 3.4% 

Disability 42% 18% 

SIMD10 11.5% 6.8% 

 

Age and disability were the most significant factors in the decline in FEFT student success. 

Student success in the 16-19 age group (who made up more than half of all full-time FE 

students) was 5.9 percentage points down on the previous year. This was the only age group 

that saw a decline in FEFT success. Success rates for the 462 FEFT students who declared a 

disability also reduced by 5.8 percentage points. 

Overall, male success improved by 6.2 percentage points and female by 2.1 percentage 

points. In our 2019-20 self-evaluation report we referred to the impact that pandemic 

disruption had on students who had to defer. It is testimony to the efforts from staff to support 

and retain these students that 89.6% of the 275 students who deferred from 2019-20 achieved 

a positive outcome in 2020-21.   

The following information relates to the success of students in key groups of interest to SFC:  

• Successful outcomes for students living in SIMD10 areas increased over the year from 70.9% 

to 76.1%. Performance improved across all modes and levels except HEPT 

• Overall success for care experienced students was 65.8% which was an increase on the 

previous year. Full-time success for care experienced students increased from 58.0% to 

60.7% 

• Overall success for BME students increased from 83.1% to 86.3% with increases in all modes 

and levels other than HEFT  

• Overall success for students who declared a disability increased from 72.4% to 73.7%. Full-

time HE students with a disability achieved slightly above college average success with a 

large increase over the year from 62.2% to 73.1% 

• Students undertaking accelerator HNCs achieved 74.4% success and those on Skills Boost 

courses achieved a success rate of 91.8%.   

PERFORMANCE TO OUTCOME AGREEMENT TARGETS 

 

Credit Target  

In 2020-21, the college delivered its highest ever number of credits – 49,647 against a revised 

target of 46,709. This revised target included 2,356 credits for National Transition Training Fund 

and Young Person’s Guarantee courses which the college exceeded by 463 credits. 

Alongside the record numbers of enrolments, this is further evidence of the growth in demand 

consistently experienced by the college and our ability to deliver.   

Outcome Agreement Targets 

Outcome Agreement volume targets for SIMD10, care experienced, BME and senior phase 

students were all exceeded:  

• For the fourth consecutive year there was a higher volume and proportion of credits (8.8%) 

delivered to students living in SIMD10 postcodes  
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• Continuing a four-year trend, a higher proportion of credits was delivered to care 

experienced students (6.2%), with a total of 257 students identified as care experienced (an 

increase of 77) 

• The proportion of credits delivered to BME students (4.4%) continued to increase 

• The number of senior phase age pupils studying vocational qualifications at the college 

increased slightly on 2019-20 to 322, although there was a decrease in the overall number 

of school pupils on college courses 

• Reflecting changes to our curriculum portfolio, the proportion of credits delivered to 

students on STEM courses increased to 27%, exceeding our target.  

Progression  

The SFC College Leaver Destinations 2019-20 publication showed that 96.2% of FE leavers and 

99.0% of HE leavers had a positive destination on leaving West Lothian College.  

Of our Scottish Widening Access Programme (SWAP) students who moved onto university in 

2019, the overall retention for those who were still at university at the end of their first year was 

93%. Of our SWAP students who were successful in 2020-21, 86.1% gained a place at 

university, compared to 82.5% in the previous year.  

The proportion of the college’s HNC/D completers in 2019-20 moving onto university with 

advanced standing was 14.8%, a drop of 4.3 percentage points on the previous year. 

Considerable work was undertaken in 2020-21 to increase the number of progression 

pathways, with two new universities and 115 courses being added to the pathways in time for 

2021-22.  

Project Search, delivered in partnership with West Lothian Council and NHS Lothian, is aimed 

at young people aged 16-29 who have a learning disability and/or autism. The college was 

awarded the DFN Project Search Performance Award for 2019-20 as 75% of the students 

gained, and were still in employment, after six months. This was a significant achievement as 

these students finished their course just before the pandemic hit the country.   

Funded through the Digital Start Fund the college worked in partnership with industry body 

ScotlandIS to deliver Level 6 NPA Cyber Security. Most of the students moved onto HNC 

Cyber Security commencing in August 2021. The partnership with ScotlandIS enabled the 

students to develop their employability skills and secure interviews with relevant employers. 

PROGRESS ON OUR STRATEGIC GOALS IN 2020-21 

 

Inspire and enable success for all 

Staff were innovative in adapting curriculum delivery to help boost student retention and 

success. This included virtual masterclasses from external industry specialists, online student 

conferences and talks from experts. 

Building on the college’s reputation for delivering Foundation Apprenticeships, we were 

awarded funding to deliver three Level 4 Foundation Apprenticeships. One cohort was 

delivered at Deans Community High School in partnership with The Larder social enterprise. 

The extensive support we provided to students who are carers was externally recognised by 

achieving two awards in 2021 – the Going Further for Student Carer: Recognition Award from 

the Carers Trust Scotland, and Carer Support accreditation from the Carers Federation. 

Informed by feedback from students and employers, we invested £1.5 million in 2020-21 to 

improve campus and curriculum facilities in 2020-21. This doubled the size of our engineering 

and construction workshops, installing equipment not previously available to students on 
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campus. It also supported the reconfiguration of our main building to create a modern 

learning centre encompassing the library and individual, group and quiet study areas, a 

large, visible Student Association space, a new information point for students and visitors, and 

a multi-functional cafe with booths that can be used for study. We used additional SFC 

funding in 2021-22 to invest in a range of facilities and equipment to enhance the student 

experience. This included creating a welcoming informal space for vulnerable students, new 

equipment for the gym, science labs, engineering and construction workshops, and a new 

barbering facility.  

One of our Project Search students won the Young Achiever Award at the Scottish Health 

Awards in December 2020. At the 2020 CDN College Awards, the college won the Marketing 

and Communications Award for innovation in online engagement with applicants. We also 

received highly commended and commended awards in the College Colleague of the Year 

category. We are shortlisted in four categories at the forthcoming 2021 CDN College Awards 

for work in 2020-21, and one of our computing lecturers is a finalist in the Cyber Educator 

category at the Scottish Cyber Awards in November 2021.  

In September 2020, 100 participants including staff, students, the Student Association, 

employers, partners and Board members took part in an online curriculum planning session 

event. A similar event in February 2021, involving over 70 participants drawn from West 

Lothian Council, schools, Education Scotland, Skills Development Scotland and universities 

planned our school/college offer.  

Support economic recovery and growth 

We established a four-college collaboration with Forth Valley, Edinburgh and Fife Colleges 

and were successful in securing funding for the national roll-out of Skills Boosts and 

Accelerator HNCs in response to economic disruption caused by the pandemic. Nearly 500 

students enrolled on four Accelerator HNCs and 13 Skill Boost courses at the college.   

The college was a key participant in weekly meetings held throughout the year with the 

council’s economic development team, Skills Development Scotland, the DYW group and 

JobCentre Plus. This partnership transformed the way partners work together and enabled us 

to be agile in designing provision that meets the immediate and medium-term skills needs of 

industry sectors. Our partnership approach to supporting economic recovery and growth was 

featured at the CDN College Expo in 2021. 

Our Workforce Development team supported local businesses in applying for financial 

support through the Apprentice Employer Grant. We become a Kickstart intermediary to 

support companies access this UK government scheme. In discussion with West Lothian 

Council, we agreed that administration of Kickstart would be undertaken by the council with 

the college providing the training component. The college became the Kickstart Gateway 

for organisations outwith West Lothian enabling 21 young people to start with external 

companies and six with the college. Two of the latter young people have already progressed 

in the college onto Modern Apprenticeships as part of our own commitment to the Young 

Person’s Guarantee. 

In partnership with the Scottish Ambulance Service, the college developed a new vocational 

qualification in health and social care for staff working at Mobile Testing Units across 

Scotland. The bespoke nine-week course provides staff with a transferable qualification for 

further opportunities within health and social care once the testing centres are no longer 

required. 

Strengthen our communities 

Significant progress was made in 2020-21 to become a trauma-responsive college, in 

particular through a pioneering project in partnership with social work partners and others to 
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offer college as an alternative to the custodial sentencing of young people. Key to success is 

ensuring the young person coming to college needs only to tell of their trauma once with all 

services, including social work, sharing the right data to provide the right support. While 

working towards their qualification and through a careful understanding of their skills, talents 

and motivation to learn, the young person is referred for wraparound therapy at college. To 

develop this work further we secured SFC funding for 2021-22 to enable us to build capacity 

and support students living in poverty and with experience of trauma.  

We continued to play an active role in supporting the West Lothian Community Planning 

partnership, in particular by supporting individuals and communities impacted by economic 

disruption caused by the pandemic.  

The college was awarded a contract extension to continue to deliver the Children’s Hearing 

Scotland Learning Academy. In 2020-21, we delivered training to over 700 new panel 

community volunteers, as well to 2,120 existing panel members.   

Lead with vision and empathy 

Staff, students and the Student Association continued to be innovative throughout 2020-21 on 

mental health and wellbeing. In addition to our existing counsellors, we used SFC funding to 

recruit a specialist member of staff to provide further support to students with their mental 

health. Feedback from students on the support provided throughout the pandemic has been 

very positive. At pre-enrolment this year, we collected data on student wellbeing using a 

shortened Warwick-Edinburgh Mental Wellbeing Scale. This proactive approach received 

responses from 80% of students and has greatly improved our understanding of the general 

wellbeing of students at the start of their course. 

The Man Cave, a dedicated space for male students and staff to talk about their mental 

health, met online throughout the year. Health and social care students, supported by 

lecturers, designed and built an outdoor wellbeing space for all students to use on campus. 

Collaborations with third sector mental health supporting organisations matured over the 

year, including a new strategic partnership with S.M.I.L.E. Counselling. 

The college continued to build capacity to support positive mental health of students and 

staff. Fourteen colleagues undertook the Highfield Level 2 Introduction to Mental Health 

Awareness award. To support staff wellbeing we introduced a wellbeing day in addition to 

annual leave entitlement, organised a wide variety of wellbeing activities accessed 

throughout December via an interactive Advent Calendar, and a shorter working day and 

lunchtime finish on Fridays during the six-week summer break. 

A new management structure was put in place at the start of the 2020-21 academic year, 

providing greater coherence and enhanced strategic leadership and decision making. Over 

the year, in addition to our annual staff survey, we carried out three pulse surveys on topics 

such as wellbeing and experiences of remote working. As well as providing early feedback 

on the effectiveness of the new management structure, the results of these surveys are 

influencing the work of the Creating a Hybrid Model working group that will inform our 

sustained approach to hybrid working. Standout results from these surveys included: 

• 97% felt well informed about the safety measures taken to allow a safe return to onsite 

working 

• 99% felt that the college takes positive action on health and wellbeing  

• 94% felt well supported by their line manager  

• 95% would recommend the college as a place to work  

• 90% have a good work routine whilst working remotely   
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• 99% believed they are trusted to do their job when working from home.  

The college received an unconditional revalidation to the General Teaching Council 

Scotland and work continued to support lecturers gain registration. We launched our first Net 

Zero plan and formed a new group to drive forward this important work.  

PROGRESS IN 2021-22 

 

It is important to understand the scale of the challenge facing students during 2020-21 and 

the continued uncertainty they have caused by the pandemic. This uncertainty continues 

and is impacting on this year’s students. 

The college has been innovative, creative, responsive and caring in the ways that we have 

supported our students, staff and the communities we serve. We will continue to work hard to 

ensure students receive the best possible learning experience.  

While responding to the evolving public health emergency, we will continue to invest time in 

building for the future in what qualifications we deliver and how we deliver these. Our staff 

who responded magnificently since the outbreak of the pandemic and continue to do so. 

This gives us great confidence in on our ability to fulfil our vision of a highly skilled, 

enterprising and resilient workforce.  
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Finance and General Purposes Committee 
 
Minute of Meeting of the Finance and General Purposes Committee held on Thursday 
25 November 2021at 10.30am via zoom 
 
Present: Moira Niven (Chair) 
 Jackie Galbraith (Principal and Chief Executive)  
 Lynne Hollis 
 Alex Linkston 
 Frank Gribben 
 Sue Stahly 
 
In attendance Jeanette Dobson (SA President) 
 Jennifer McLaren (Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services) 
 Simon Earp, (Vice Principal, Performance and Improvement)  
 Sarah-Jane Linton (Vice Principal, Learning and Attainment)  
 Derek O’Sullivan (Head of HR and People Development)  
 Fiona Hudson (Head of Finance, Procurement & Student Funding) 

Lesley Aitkenhead (Board Governance Advisor) 
Sue Cook (Vice Chair, Chair of Audit Committee) 

    
1 Welcome/Apologies 
 

The Chair welcomed all to the meeting. Apologies were noted Kirsti Clark.  Fiona 
Hudson was welcomed to Committee and Sue Cook joined as Chair of Audit 
Committee for discussion on Item 3.1. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest 
 

There were no declarations of interest.   
 

3 Minutes of Meeting of 9 September 2021 
 

The Minute of the meeting of 9 September 2021 was approved. 
 
4 Matters Arising  
 

The committee noted all actions as either completed, on track or covered by an 
item on agenda. 
 

5 Financial Forecast Return  
 

Vice Principal, Finance and Corporate Services (VP, F&CS) presented Paper 3 
setting out the Financial Forecast Return (FFR) for recommendation for Board 
approval, and submission to the Scottish Funding Council, as required. 
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The committee were advised that Scenario Planning is part of the Scottish 
Funding Council requirements and is aimed at stressing the financial resilience 
of the college sector.   
 
In order to give the FFR due consideration, a Finance Working Group was 
formed.  Membership was the chair of the board and each committee.  In addition, 
an invite was made to any board member who wished to join the group.  The 
Finance Working Group used a variety of internal and external data sources, 
including the Strategic Risk Register to identify extreme but plausible scenarios. 
 
The Finance Working Group identified a particular scenario that would have a 
material strategic, financial, reputational impact on the college, covering the 
withdrawal of SFC Funding for Foundation Apprenticeships and Pay Awards.  
Other scenarios were considered as part of the process, but did not meet the 
criteria of worst case, and were discounted. 
 
The committee requested additional information on why this particular scenario 
was selected, and were given an explanation by the VP, F&CS, with additional 
context provided by the Principal and Vice Principal, Learning & Attainment.  The 
committee were advised that the withdrawal of funding for Foundation 
Apprenticeships was considered to have the most significant impact in terms of 
financial, strategic and reputational impact to the college, and was therefore a 
suitable scenario for stress testing purposes. 
 
The VP, F&CS emphasised that the scenario did not reflect college strategy, but 
was aimed at meeting the requirements set out by the SFC to highlight the 
importance of Foundation Apprenticeships as a key element of the overall college 
curriculum. 
 
The committee welcomed the additional context, and recommended approval of 
the FFR by the Board, ensuring that all Board Members are made aware of the 
additional context, and that the paper is not shared publicly, as may be mis-
understood, without the additional context. 
 

6 Annual Report & Financial Statements 
 
The VP, F&CS presented Paper 4, with appendices for recommendation for 
Board Approval.  The committee commented on welcome the report and thanked 
the team for the effort in preparing the report for the committee.  The committee 
noted a minor amendment to page 22 and page 29 requiring updates to the 
Board Members information.   
 
The committee discussed the overall position and took time review the 
information contained in each of the tables, including the increase cost to 
premises and higher level of creditors, resulting from the estates project and 
timing of contractors’ payments. 
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The committee noted no direct impact from Brexit, but noted some potential 
indirect implications resulting from changes in EU funding, and welcomed the 
overall positive performance, given the circumstances. 
 
The committee asked about the inclusion of personal information on salaries and 
was advised that the requirement is dictated by the Accounts Direction. 
 
The committee noted thanks to the Head of Finance, Procurement and Student 
Funds and recommended approval to the Audit Committee. 
 

(i) Management Accounts 
 

Head of Finance, Procurement and Student Funds presented Paper 5, for the 
attention of the committee, with no areas of concern raised. 
 

(ii) Reconciliation of Final Outturn of 2020-21 
 
Head of Finance, Procurement and Student Funds presented Paper 6, for the 
attention of the committee.  It was noted that this is not a standard paper, but is 
welcomed by the committee as it provides additional assurance on any 
movements between the June management accounts and the annual accounts.  
The reconciliation showed that the accounts were in line with the forecast 
presented in June 2021. 
 

(iii) College Certificate 
 

Vice Principal, Performance and Improvement presented Paper 7 for noting. The 
committee were advised that the college credits were a statement of fact and no 
clawback was required in 2020-21.  An Internal Audit Report would provide 
additional assurance to the Audit Committee on 2 December 2021. 
 

7 Business Development Report 
 

Vice Principal, Performance and Improvement presented Paper 8 for noting. The 
committee welcomed the report and commented on the range of investment 
projects within the college. 
 

8 Infrastructure Report 
 

Vice Principal, Finance & Corporate Services presented Paper 9 for noting. The 
committee were asked to note the total estimated funds of £350k for the projects 
being taken forward from the 2021-26 Estates Plan.  The committee welcomed 
the positive benefit of the work already completed within the college estate and 
the overall success of the programme to utilise the capital funding grant of £660k. 
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9 HR and People Development 
 

(i) HR and People Development Report 
 

Head of HR and People Development presented Paper 10 for discussion and 
noted changes to the format of the report.  The presenter summarised the key 
messages, including reference to recruitment, sickness leave and retirement.   
 
The committee welcomed the changes to the report and asked for an update on 
the current discussions with the EIS on instructor roles.  The committee were 
advised that discussions were ongoing.  
 
The committee asked if there were any underlying trends or concerns of 
unplanned absence levels and was advised that sickness levels remain low, and 
there were no underlying trends. 
 

(ii) Employer Association Update 
 

The committee received a verbal update from the Board Chair on ongoing 
discussions with the Employers Association.  The committee were advised of the 
plans to roll out the nationally agreed Registration Scheme but there was some 
discussion on its suitability for lecturers, as it was designed for nursery, primary 
and secondary schools.   The committee discussed progress on negotiations on 
pay awards for lecturers and support staff.  Negotiations include discussions on 
salary increases at a National and Local scale.  Consideration has also been 
given to the implications of adopting a different way of working, but this was still 
at early stages of fact find. 
 

11 AOB 
 

The committee were advised of an event that occurred at another education 
establishment, for awareness and potential lessons learned. 

 
12 Review of Meeting, Development and Supporting Papers  
 

The committee discussed the quality of the papers and discussion, with positive 
comments.   
 

14 Date of Next Meeting 
 

The next meeting of the committee is Thursday 24 February 2021 at 10.30 am. 
 

Signed …………………………………………………. 

Chair, Finance and General Purposes Committee 

Date  ………………………………………………… 
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Board of Governors 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE’S ANNUAL REPORT TO THE BOARD  
 
The Financial Memorandum between the college and the Scottish Funding 
Council states that the Audit Committee must produce an annual report for the 
Board of Governors. 

The report is attached to this paper. 
 
Action 
 
The Board of Governors is asked to note the report for the year ended 31 July 
2021. 
 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Corporate Services 
7 December 2021 
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Board of Governors  
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS  
 
Period: Year ended 31 July 2021  
 
1 Introduction 
 
 In complying with the duties of the Audit Committee, as expressed in its 

Terms of Reference, the committee has met over the year, to consider 
the annual financial statements, health and safety reports, review the 
financial and other control systems and strategic risk register and to 
consider significant relevant reports from the Scottish Funding Council 
and other bodies. 

 
 What follows is a summary for the year, and the committee’s opinion on: 
 

i)   Audit Committee Administrative Matters 
ii) Internal Audit 
iii) External Audit 
iv) Other Relevant Matters 

 
2 Audit Committee Administrative Matters 
 
 The previous Audit Committee Report to the Board of Governors was 

submitted in 2019 and covered the year 1 August 2019 to 31 July 2020. 
 
 During 2020-21, membership of the Audit Committee was as follows:  
 

Sue Cook Chair 01/08/20 - 31/07/21 
Simon Ashpool Member 01/08/20- 01/07/21 
Colin Millar Member 01/08/20 - 31/07/21 
Richard Lockhart  Member 01/08/20 - 31/07/21 
Lynne Hollis  Member 01/08/20 - 31/07/21 
Jeremy Miles* Member 04/03/21 - 19/06/21 

*Did not attend an Audit Committee meeting 
 

The Principal and Chair of the Board of Governors also attended 
meetings, although not members. The Secretary to the Board also 
attended meetings.    
 

3 Internal Audit 
 

3.1 The college’s internal audit service was provided by Azets.  
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 The fees for the internal audit work contained in the accounts 
was £37,000.   

 As a result of the Covid restrictions in place during 2019-20 five 
days were carried forward to 2020-21 which increased the total 
number of days to 54.   

 
 3.2 During the period August 2020-July 2021 the following areas were 

reviewed: 
 

(1) Core Financial Systems 
(2)     Estates Plan 
(3)     Cyber Security 
(4)     Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery 

 
  The reports identified areas for improvement and a rolling action 

plan has been produced by the college to ensure that these  
  improvements are made.  
 
  3.3  Risk Workshop 
   

At a virtual risk workshop held in March 2021 and facilitated by 
Azets, the Board of Governors discussed risk appetite and agreed 
a risk tolerance level for each strategic risk in the risk register.   

.  
3.4   Board Effectiveness Review 

 
A Board effectiveness review was also undertaken by Azets 
against agreed aspects of the Code of Good Governance for 
Scotland’s Colleges. An action plan has been produced to take 
forward recommendations from the review. 
 

  3.5   Tender 2020-21 
 

As this was the final year of the contract with Azets, a mini-
competition under the Advanced Procurement for Universities 
and Colleges (APUC) Framework for Internal Audit Services was 
undertaken during 2020-21. 
 
The outcome of the exercise was Azets secured the highest score 
and the Board of Governors approved the re-appointment of Azets 
from 1 September 2021 for a period of 35 months with the option of 
two 12-month extensions.  
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3.6    Summary of Grades 
 

The table below provides a summary of grades over the last three 
years.   
 
Grade* 5 4 3 2 1 Total 
2020-21 0 0 1 11 0 12 
2019-20 0 0 0 3 0 3 
2018-19 0 0 0 8 1 9 
 
*Grade Definition 
 
5 - Very high risk exposure: Major concerns requiring immediate 

Board attention. 
4 - High risk exposure: Absence/failure of significant key controls. 
3 - Moderate risk exposure: Not all key control procedures are 

working effectively. 
2 - Limited risk exposure: Minor control procedures are not in 

place/not working effectively. 
1 - Efficiency/housekeeping point. 

 
4 External Audit 
 

4.1 The college’s external audit service is provided by Mazars, as 
appointed by Audit Scotland, for a five-year period commencing 
2017. This is the fourth year of the external audit service being 
provided by Mazars.   

  
 Although the college does not appoint Mazars, the Audit Committee 

continues to monitor the scope and quality of their work.   
 
4.2  The fees for the period, as contained in the accounts, were 

£15,000. 
 
4.3 Financial Results for the year ended 31 July 2021. 

 
The college generated a deficit before other gains and losses in the 
year of £1,742,000 (2020 - deficit of £1,599,000), with total 
comprehensive income surplus of £2,593,000 (2020 - deficit of 
£5,005,000). The total comprehensive income in 2021 recorded an 
actuarial gain in respect of pension funds of £4,335,000 (2020 - 
loss of £5,895,000).   
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After transfer of £495,000 from the revaluation reserve, the 
cumulative deficit on the Income and Expenditure account 
decreased by £3,088,000 from £20,546,000 deficit to £17,458,000 
deficit. 
 
The cumulative deficit at the year-end comprised £265,000 for 
holiday pay accrual, £2,211,000 for voluntary agreed PFI 
termination loan, £3,523,000 for early retirement provisions, 
£12,093,000 for defined benefit pension obligations, off-set by 
surplus £633,000 for trading activities (see Note 16). 

 
The college is reporting net total liabilities of £9,920,000 in its 
balance sheet, which is due to the reclassification of deferred 
Government Grant as deferred income within creditors and 
allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more 
than one year as appropriate and the actuarial gain in respect of 
Pension Schemes. 

 
4.4   Mazars will provide an unqualified Audit Report. However, one          

emphasis of matter statement is contained in the audit opinion.            
The valuation of land and building contains a material uncertainty   
valuation clause due to the impact of Covid. This clause does not 
invalidate the valuation. 

 
5 Risk Management 
 

The college is required to implement policies and procedures concerning 
risk management.   
 
At the September 2020 meeting of the Board of Governors, the Board 
agreed that each committee would have ownership of the risks aligned 
with their remit.    

 
This meant that all risks in relation to: 

 
• Digital infrastructure was reviewed quarterly by Audit Committee. 
• Estates, Financial and HR and People Development were reviewed 

quarterly by Finance and General Purposes Committee 
• Learning and attainment were reviewed quarterly by Learning and 

Teaching Committee 
 

As part of the risk management framework, the Board of Governors 
agreed a recommendation from the Audit Committee that the risk 
register would be a standing item at each Board meeting as a 
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discussion paper and the Board would take collective responsibility for 
the register.  

 
Assurances were given from the Audit, Learning and Teaching and 
Finance and General Purposes Committees that they were satisfied 
with the risk mitigations. 
 

6 Health and Safety 
 
 The committee received and reviewed regular Health and Safety reports 

as part of its remit to provide assurance to the Board of Governors that 
the college has in place appropriate policies and procedures to promote 
and safeguard the health and safety of staff, students and all 
stakeholders and satisfies current legislation. During 2020-21 much 
of the focus of these reports was on the impact of Covid and ensuring 
compliance with Scottish Government guidance. 

 
7      Annual Report on Performance Indicators – Internal and External 

Audit year ended 31 July 2021 
 

Internal Audit 

 Actual 
 

Budget 
 

Notes 

Cost 
Number of days 
Average cost per day 
Completion of agreed operational plan 
 

£37,000* 
54 

£685 
100% 

£25,000 
49 

£510 
100% 

 
 
 
 

 
 *The variance between budget and actual spend is due to the additional 
days carried forward from 2019-20 and the costs of carrying out the 
Board effectiveness review which were negotiated outwith the annual 
contract. The number of days excludes the additional time required to 
fully conduct the Board effectiveness review. 

 
External Audit 

 Actual 
 

Budget 
 

Notes 

Cost 
Number of days 
Average cost per day 
 

£15,000 
32 

£469 

£15,000 
32 

£469 
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Reporting 

 Actual 
 

Deadline 
 

Notes 

Statutory Accounts  
Management Letter 

31 Dec 21 
31 Dec 21 

31 Dec 21 
31 Dec 21 

(1) 
 

 
Notes 

 
(1) This assumes that the Board of Governors approve the accounts. 

 
8 Value for Money 
 

The college has a Value for Money Policy and the Audit Committee is 
satisfied that arrangements have been put in place to promote economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

 
9 Conclusion 
 
 On the basis of the above the Audit Committee is satisfied that the 

college’s risk management, control and governance systems are 
effective. 

 
The Board is asked to approve this report of activities. 

 
 
 
Sue Cook 
Chair Audit Committee 
7 December 2021 
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Board of Governors 
 
EXTERNAL ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT  

The attached report summarises the findings from the 2020-21 year-end 
audit.   
 
The conclusion of the auditors is that they anticipate issuing: 
 
• an unqualified opinion, without modification, on the financial statements. 

However, an Emphasis of Matter paragraph will be included within the 
auditor's report with respect to the material valuation uncertainty disclosed 
in the financial statements; 

 
• an unqualified regularity opinion, meaning that in their opinion, in all 

material respects the expenditure and income recognised in the financial 
statements have been applied for the purposes intended; 

 
• an unqualified opinion on the matters prescribed by the Auditor General 

for Scotland. Namely that the remuneration and staff report, performance 
report and governance statement have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the relevant legislation. 

 
The auditors are also concluding as follows against the wider scope 
dimensions for smaller bodies: 
 
• the college has effective arrangements, including budgetary control, that 

help the board members scrutinise finances; and 
 

• the college has governance arrangements in place that provide 
appropriate scrutiny of decisions made by the board and are reflected in 
the governance statements. 

 
 
Action 
 
The Board of Governors is asked to note the findings from the audit. 
 
 
 
Jennifer McLaren 
Vice Principal, Finance & Corporate Services  
7 December 2021 
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The Audit Committee 
 West Lothian College 
Almondvale Crescent 
Livingston 
West Lothian 
EH54 7EP 

 
 

2 December 2021 

 
 
 

   Mazars LLP 
      Apex 2 
   97 Haymarket Terrace 

                       Edinburgh  
            EH12 5HD  

 

 
 

Dear Members, 

Annual Audit Report – Year ended 31 July 2021 

We are pleased to present our Annual Audit Report for the year ended 31 July 2021. The 
purpose of this document is to summarise our audit conclusions. 

The scope of our work, including identified significant audit risks and other areas of 
management judgement, was outlined in our Audit Strategy Memorandum which we 
presented to the Audit Committee on 24 June 2021. We have reviewed our Audit Strategy 
Memorandum and concluded that the original significant audit risks and other areas of 
management judgement remain appropriate.  

We would like to express our thanks for the assistance of your team during our audit. 
 

If you would like to discuss any matters in more detail then please do not hesitate to contact 
me on 0738 724 2052. 

 
 

Yours faithfully 

 
Lucy Nutley 

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
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Executive summary 
Purpose of this report and principal conclusions 

This Annual Audit Report sets out the findings from our audit of West Lothian College (‘the 
College’) for  the year ended 31 July 2021 and forms the basis for discussion at the Audit 
Committee meeting on 2 December 2021. 

Our responsibilities are defined by the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 
and the Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’) issued by Audit Scotland. Subject to the 
satisfactory completion of the outstanding work, at the time of issuing this report we have the 
following conclusions: 

Opinion on the 
financial 

statements 

We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion, without modification, on the 
financial statements. As outlined in more detail in section 2, we intend to 
include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph within our auditor’s report with 
respect to the material valuation uncertainty disclosed in the financial 
statements regarding the College’s land and buildings valuation in the 
prior year. Our proposed audit opinion is included in the draft auditor’s 
report in Appendix B 

Opinion on 
regularity 

We anticipate issuing an unqualified regularity opinion, meaning that in 
our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income 
recognised in the financial statements have been applied for the 
purposes intended. 

Opinion on other 
requirements 

We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion on the matters prescribed 
by the Auditor General for Scotland. Namely that  the remuneration and 
staff report, performance report and governance statement have been 
properly prepared in accordance with the relevant legislation. 

Wider scope 
work 

We anticipate concluding as follows against wider scope dimensions for 
smaller bodies: 
• The College has appropriate financial planning arrangements in 

place. The College is reliant on the outcome of dialogue with the 
Scottish Funding Council in relation to future funding, or the increase 
of other income to ensure financial sustainability is ensured; and 

• The College has governance arrangements in place that provide 
appropriate scrutiny of decisions made by the Board of Governors. 

   Our proposed audit and regularity opinion is included in the draft audit report in Appendix B. 
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Status of our audit work 

We have substantially completed our work on the financial statements and wider scope work 
for the year ended 31 July 2021. At the time of preparing this report the following matters 
remain outstanding: 

 
 

Audit area Status Description of outstanding matters 

 
 

Review and 
completion 
procedures 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

A review of the final Annual Report and Financial 
Statements will be completed upon receipt. Standard 
audit completion procedures still require    to be 
performed. 
We will also consider post balance sheet events until 
the date of sign-off. 
 

 
 

Status 

Likely to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial 
statements 

Potential to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial 
statements 

Not considered likely to result in material adjustment or change to disclosures within the 
financial statements 

 
 

Internal control recommendations and misstatements 
We did not identify any significant control weaknesses during our audit and have not raised any 
internal control recommendations. There were also no internal control recommendations from 
prior years to provide an update on.  

 
Section 4 outlines the misstatements noted as part of our audit as at the time of issuing this 
report. If any additional misstatements are noted on completion of the outstanding work, these  
will be reported to the Audit Committee in a follow-up letter. 
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Our audit approach 

We provided details of our intended audit approach in our Audit Strategy Memorandum on 
24 June 2021. We have not made any changes to our audit approach since we presented 
our Audit Strategy Memorandum. 

 
 

Adding value through the audit 

We recognise that all of our clients want us to provide a positive contribution to meeting their 
ever-changing business needs. Our aim is to add value to West Lothian College through our 
external audit work by being constructive and forward looking, by identifying areas of 
improvement and by recommending and encouraging good practice. In this way we aim to 
help the College  promote improved standards of governance, better management and 
decision making and more effective use of limited financial resources. 

 
 

Materiality 
Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular matter in 
the context of financial statements as a whole. Misstatements in financial statements are 
considered to be material if they, individually or in aggregate, could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

We set materiality at the planning stage of the audit at £408,000 using a benchmark (2%) of 
total expenditure. Our final assessment of materiality, based on the draft financial 
statements is £422,000 using the same benchmark. 

 

 Initial Threshold 
£’000 

Final Threshold 
£’000 

Overall materiality 408 422 

Performance materiality 327 337 
Trivial threshold for errors to be reported 
to the Audit Committee 12 13 
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The assessment of what is material is a matter of professional judgement and is affected by 
our perception of the financial information needs of the users of the financial statements. In 
making our assessment we assume that users: 

• have a reasonable knowledge of business, economic activities and accounts; 
• have a willingness to study the information in the financial statements with reasonable 

diligence; 
• understand that financial statements are prepared, presented and audited to levels of 

materiality; 
• recognise the uncertainties inherent in the measurement of amounts based on the use of 

estimates, judgement and the consideration of future events; and 
• will make reasonable economic decisions on the basis of the information in the financial 

statements. 

We consider materiality whilst planning and performing our audit based on quantitative and 
qualitative factors. 

 
 

Performance Materiality 
Our audit testing is based on a level of performance materiality, which is a percentage of 
overall materiality, but also dependent on the level of inherent risk assessed on the area 
being tested. It is lower than overall materiality as it helps to reduce the risk that the total of 
the uncorrected or undetected misstatements does not exceed materiality for the financial 
statements as a whole. It is based on between 50 – 80% of overall materiality depending on 
the inherent risk level assessed. Our initial assessment of performance materiality is based 
on low inherent risk, meaning that we have applied 80% of overall materiality as performance 
materiality.  

 
 

Misstatements 
We aggregate misstatements identified during the audit that are other than clearly trivial. We 
set a level of triviality for individual errors identified (a reporting threshold) for reporting to the 
Audit Committee that is consistent with the level of triviality that we consider would not need 
to be accumulated because we expect that the accumulation of such amounts would not 
have a material effect on the financial statements. This level was set at 3% of materiality. 
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Audit of the financial statements 
 

Set out below are the significant findings from our audit. These findings include: 

• our audit conclusions regarding significant risks and key areas of management judgement 
outlined in the Audit Strategy Memorandum; 

• our comments in respect of the accounting policies and disclosures that you have adopted 
in the financial statements. On page 12 we have concluded whether the financial 
statements have been prepared in accordance with the financial reporting framework and 
commented on any significant accounting policy changes that have been made during the 
year; 

• any further significant matters discussed with management; and 

• any significant difficulties we experienced during the audit. 
 
 

Significant risks and key areas of management judgement 

As part of our planning procedures we considered the risks of material misstatement in the 
College’s financial statements that required special audit consideration. Although our report 
identified significant risks at the planning stage of the audit in our Audit Strategy 
Memorandum, our risk assessment is a continuous process and we regularly consider 
whether new significant risks have arisen and how we intend to respond to these risks. No 
new risks have been identified since we issued our Audit Strategy Memorandum. 
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Management 
override of 
controls 

Description of the risk 
In all entities, management at various levels within an organisation are 
in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to 
manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating 
effectively. Due to the unpredictable way in which such override could 
occur, we consider there to be a risk of material misstatement due to 
fraud and thus a significant risk on all audits. 

 How we addressed this risk 
We addressed this risk through performing audit work over: 

 
• Accounting estimates impacting on amounts included in the financial 

statements; 

• Consideration of identified significant transactions outside the normal 
course of business; and 

• Journals recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made 
in preparation of the financial statements. 

 Audit conclusion 
Satisfactory assurance has been gained in respect of the presumed risk 
of   management override. We have no matters to report. 
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Revenue 
recognition 

Description of the risk 
 

There is a presumption under International Standards on Auditing that 
there is a significant risk of fraud and error in the timing of revenue 
recognition leading to the material misstatement of revenue overall. This is 
because revenue is an area of particular focus by users of financial 
statements and can be subject to judgements as to when grant income 
should be recognised and if clawback conditions apply to the funding. 

 
This risk only applies to the non-grant income generated by the College. 
The risk has been rebutted in relation to grant income received by the 
College, given the highly regulated nature, and therefore, low inherent risk 
of this income. 
 

 How we addressed this risk 
We addressed this risk through performing audit work over: 

 
• The design and implementation of controls management has in place to 

ensure income is recognised in the correct period; 
 

• Cash receipts around year end to ensure they have been recognised in 
the appropriate year; 

 
• The judgements made by management in determining when non-grant 

income is recognised; and 
 

• Expected credit loss provisions applied to receivables at the year end, 
considering the appropriateness of judgements made by management. 

 Audit conclusion 
Satisfactory assurance has been gained in respect of the presumed risk of 
revenue recognition. We have no matters to report. 
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Expenditure 
recognition 

Description of the risk 
For public sector organisations, the same risk in relation to fraud and error 
in respect of the timing of recording of transactions can apply to the 
recognition of non-payroll related expenditure and contractual obligations. 

 
The pressure to manage expenditure to ensure that budgeted outcomes 
are achieved increases the risk surrounding fraudulent reporting of 
expenditure. 

 How our audit addressed this risk 
We have undertaken a range of substantive procedures including: 

 
• The design and implementation of controls management has in place; 

 
• Testing of non-payroll expenditure around the year end to ensure 

transactions are recognised in the appropriate year; 
 

• Testing material year end payables, accruals and provisions; and 
 

• Reviewing judgements about whether the criteria for recognising 
provisions are satisfied. 

 Audit conclusion 
Satisfactory assurance has been gained in respect of the risk of 
expenditure recognition. We have no matters to report. 
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Key Areas of Management Judgement 

Key areas of management judgement include accounting estimates which are material but 
are not considered to give rise to a significant risk of material misstatement. These areas of 
management judgement represent other areas of audit emphasis. 

 
 
 
 

Valuation of 
Pension 
Liabilities 

Description of area of focus 
The College makes contributions to two pension schemes – the Scottish 
Teachers Superannuation Scheme (STSS) and the Lothian Pension 
Fund (LPF). While both are defined benefit schemes, it is not possible to 
identify the College’s share of the underlying assets and liabilities in the 
STSS and it is therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme. 

 The College’s share of the LPF’s underlying assets and liabilities is 
identifiable and is recognised in the accounts. 

 
Given the scale of the liability recognised, a misstatement in the reported 
position could be material to the financial statements. 

 How we have addressed this area of management judgement 
We have addressed the risk by: 

 
• Considering the arrangements put in place, including existence of any 

relevant controls, for     making estimates in relation to pension entries 
within the financial statements. 

 
• Considering the reasonableness of the actuary's assumptions used in 

providing the College with information in the financial statements through 
the use of our internal experts. 

 Audit conclusion 
There have been no other significant findings arising from our review of the 
defined benefit liability valuation and disclosures in the financial statements. 
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Valuation of 
Land and 
Buildings  

Description of area of focus 
The College holds land and buildings with a net book value of £20m as at 
31 July 2021.  

In line with the requirements of the Government Financial Reporting 
Manual, the College has adopted a formal revaluation policy of an 
external valuation every five years, with a desktop, interim valuation 
performed during the five year period. As the external valuation was 
performed at 31 July 2020, no revaluation is planned in the current year.  

The College policy meets the requirement of the FE SORP that assets are 
valued sufficiently regularly so that the carrying value of the asset is not 
materially different from its fair value. The College is required to assess 
on an annual basis whether there are indicators of impairment to assets at 
the reporting date.  

Given the significance of the value of fixed assets held, a misstatement in 
the valuation could be material to the financial statements 

 
 How we have addressed this area of management judgement 

We have addressed the risk by: 
 
• Reviewing management’s assessment as to whether the value still 

reflects the prior year valuation; 
 

• Reviewing the reconciliation between the College’s asset register 
and general ledger; and 
 

• Considering the College’s impairment review process for land and 
buildings.  
 

 Audit conclusion 
Satisfactory assurance has been gained over the valuation of land and 
buildings. We have no matters to report.  
The external valuer included a material valuation uncertainty paragraph within 
their valuation report during the revaluation in 2019/20. As the valuation has 
not been re-performed as at 31 July 2021, management judgement is that the 
valuation uncertainty remains. As such, details of the material valuation 
uncertainty will be included in note 1(q) to the financial statements. In our 
view, this matter is fundamental to the users’ understanding of the financial 
statements and as such we intend to include an ‘Emphasis of Matter’ 
paragraph in respect of this disclosure within our auditors report set out in 
Appendix B. Our opinion on the College’s financial statements is not modified 
in respect of this matter. 
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Grouped 
assets 
accounting 
policy 

Description of area of focus 
During 2020-21 digital funding was made available to the College for the 
purchase of equipment to provide to students to enable and support 
remote learning that was required as a consequence of Covid-19. The 
College is required to account for this as capital funding as a term of the 
funding. 

Any assets acquired using this funding, although distributed to students, 
are considered the property of the College and will be capitalised under a 
grouped asset accounting policy.  

 
 How we have addressed this area of management judgement 

We have addressed the risk by: 
 

• Considering the College’s grouped asset accounting policy and 
whether this is consistent with the requirements of the digital 
funding provided; 

 
• Considering how the College has satisfied itself that it has 

appropriate processes in place around the stewardship of the 
associated assets and what consideration of impairment has 
been made. 

 
 

 

Audit conclusion 
Satisfactory assurance has been gained over the application of the grouped assets 
accounting policy. 
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Qualitative aspects of the entity’s accounting practices 

We have reviewed the College’s accounting policies and disclosures and concluded they 
comply with the requirements of the 2019 Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting 
for Further and Higher Education and the Government Financial Reporting Manual 2020/21 
and were  appropriately tailored to the College’s circumstances. 

Draft financial statements were received from the College on 13 October 2021 at the start of 
audit fieldwork. The draft annual report was received during fieldwork on 02 November 
2021. Both draft financial statements and draft annual report were of a good quality. 

Producing quality supporting working papers is a crucial part of compiling financial 
statements that are complete and materially accurate. They also support the delivery of an 
efficient audit. Working papers provided for audit were of a good standard and staff were 
responsive to our requests during the audit. 

 

Significant matters discussed with management 

No significant matters arose during the course of the audit. 
 
 

Significant difficulties during the audit 

We completed our audit mostly remotely with an onsite visit to the College. During the course 
of the audit we did not encounter any significant difficulties and  we have had the full co-
operation of management. The draft accounts, working papers and annual report were all 
provided in line with the agreed timetable. We would like to express our thanks to 
management and officers for their co-operation throughout the audit.
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Summary of Misstatements 
 

This section outlines the misstatements identified during the course of the audit, above the 
trivial threshold for adjustment of £13k.  

The table outlines the misstatements that were identified during the course of our audit. 

 

Adjusted misstatements 

We set out below adjustments, identified by management and made to the draft financial 
statements during the course of the audit.  

  
  Statement of 

Comprehensive Income 
Balance Sheet 

  Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) 

      
 Dr: Revenue 48 -   
 Cr. Deferred income   - 48 
 Being the correction of ESF income relating to 2021/22 included in 2020/21 accounts  
      
 Total  48 - - 48 

 
 

The total effect of the adjustments above was to decrease net assets on the Balance Sheet by £48k 
and to decrease revenue by £48k. These adjustments are immaterial to the overall financial 
statements. 
 
Unadjusted misstatements 

There were no unadjusted misstatements identified during the course of the audit above the 
trivial threshold of £13k. 
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Wider Scope 
 
 

Our approach to Wider Scope work 
The Code requires us to conclude and make a judgement on the four dimensions of wider 
scope work. These are: 
• financial sustainability; 
• financial management; 
• governance and transparency; and 
• value for money. 

 
In recognition that audit work should be risk based and proportionate to the nature and size 
of the audited body, the Code allows auditors to determine whether application of the full 
wider scope work is appropriate in smaller bodies. At the planning stage, we considered that 
the audit of West Lothian College should be carried out under the small body provisions of 
the Code. We have reached this conclusion through our assessment of:  
 
• the relative size of the College;  
• the relative simplicity of the College’s functions;  
• the College’s risk profile.  
 
In line with the Code requirements, our work has therefore focused on financial sustainability 
and the governance statement. This is concluded on in the following pages. 
 
 
In 2020/21, we have also considered the following risk areas as they relate to the College: 
  
• Exit from the European Union  
• Changing landscape of public financial management  
• Dependency on key suppliers  
• Openness and transparency  
 
We do not consider that any of the above constitute a significant risk for the College at this 
point but will continue to monitor. 

 
 

National Fraud Initiative 

The College participates in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) exercise. Data was submitted 
in line with timescales and the Audit Committee have been informed of the exercise. No 
significant findings or issues arose from NFI during the 2020/21 audit process. The  
College met all deadlines set by the NFI and investigated potential matches in a timely 
manner.
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Financial sustainability 
Dimension 

Financial sustainability extends the going concern assumption from the financial statements, 
looking forward two to five years, reviewing and assessing arrangements for financial 
planning and affordable and sustainable service delivery in this timescale. 

Our conclusion 

West Lothian College has appropriate financial planning arrangements in place. The College 
is reliant on the outcome of dialogue with the Scottish Funding Council in relation to future 
funding, or the increase of other income to ensure financial sustainability is ensured.  

 
 

Financial Planning 

The College would normally prepare a 5-year budget and forecast which forms the basis of 
the Financial Forecast Return (FFR) required to be submitted to the SFC annually. The 
2020/21 FFR was  prepared using the figures in a baseline budget approved by the Board 
of Governors  in June 2021. As in the prior year, given the level of uncertainties relating to 
financial planning, the SFC requested only a 3-year FFR, this approach has been adopted 
again in the current year due to these uncertainties continuing.  

 
Through the FFR process and other financial reporting throughout the year, the College and 
its Board of Governors have a clear view of the financial challenges and long-term risks 
faced. FFR planning assumptions, as advised by the SFC, have been considered fully before 
use. We note that one of those assumptions is that funded credit activity for Foundation 
Apprenticeships (FAs) will not continue beyond 2021-22. Not funding FAs would have a 
significant and disproportionate impact on the College.  The college are therefore considering 
options around the delivery of FAs as a way to help bring the college close to breakeven in 
2022/23. The College has taken a prudent approach to their forecast as they excluded the 
Children Hearing Scotland (CHS) training contract which will expire in 2023/24, even though 
the college believes they have a good chance of retendering and renewing the contract. 
 
Given the level of sector wide uncertainties around future funding and of the general 
economic environment that have arisen following Covid-19, it is reasonable that the College 
forecasts do not exceed the three-year modelling period requested by the SFC. Longer term 
actions are included within this period which demonstrates that the College is taking steps to 
ensure its long-term financial sustainability, however, these rely on the outcome of on-going 
dialogue with SFC over funding for aspects such as voluntary severance and capital 
investment. 
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A summary of the College’s three year forecast is included in the table below. 
 
 

 Budget 
2021/22 
£’000 

Forecast 
2022/23 

£’000 

Forecast 
2023/24 
£’000 

Total Income 20,769 20,142 19,563 

Staff costs (14,716) (14,612) (14,187) 

Total other expenditure (6,119) (5,686) (5,532) 

Operating surplus/(deficit) before 
other gains and losses (66) (156) (156) 

Add back: Depreciation – net of 
deferred capital grant 317 317 317 

Less: Cash based priorities 
allocated to loan repayments (190) (190) (190) 

Adjusted Operating Surplus / 
(Deficit) 61 (29) (29) 

 
 

The FFR shows figures close to breakeven throughout its timeframe. The College will 
continue to work to refine the income and costs reflected in their financial plans to meet or 
better these results. 

 
The figures above are based on the following 

• Income assumptions provided by the SFC; 

• Decrease in income and related staff costs in between 2022/23 and 2023/24 is due to the 
Children’s hearing Scotland contract coming to an end; 

• Salary increasing from 71% to 72% of total expenditure 

• Loan payments due to SFC have been suspended until July 2026, following the payment in 
2020/21. Amounts that would have been paid to the SFC are planned to be invested into 
College estates. 

 
The College, like so many in the sector, remain reliant on the SFC for funding decisions that 
will determine credit delivery going forward. We note that the College is largely on track for 
achievement of credits in 2021/22 following successful recruitment earlier in the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
Asset Management and Estates Strategy 
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During 2020-21 the College produced its 5-year Estates Plan which captures the estates 
developments required to deliver on curriculum plans and give students the best possible 
learning experience. The Estates Plan is designed to complement the College strategic and 
operational plans and its key aim is to ensure maintenance of high-quality fit for purpose 
facilities, minimum environmental impact and operational sustainability. The Board of 
Governors, through the Finance & General Purposes Committee, will monitor the strategy. 
 
National estates survey 
 
Gardiner & Theobald were appointed by the Scottish Funding Council in January 2017 to 
provide a summary of the conditions of the estates within the Scottish Further Education 
sector. Overall, across Scotland the total gross estimated backlog was £363 million.  
 
The West Lothian College survey showed an estimate of £2 million of costs over the 5-year 
period from 2018-19 to 2022-23, with only £17k being identified as urgent. The report states 
that expenditure of this level is to be expected with buildings approaching 20 years old. The 
work marked as urgent has already been completed, and the remaining works are currently 
being planned. During the year, £19k was spent on backlog maintenance. Further backlog 
maintenance expenditure has been factored into the 3-year plan. 
 
During the year, two significant estates projects were undertaken, both of which were 
funded by the College alongside additional funding from the Scottish Funding Council. The 
first of these was to create a mezzanine floor within the engineering and construction 
faculty, to extend the space available and upgrade the equipment to enhance the student 
experience. Additionally, a project to reconfigure the ground floor of the main campus 
building to increase individual and collaborative flexible learning spaces, and including a 
new, modern Learning Centre, Student Association hub and Information Point was 
completed in the summer of 2021. Through additional funding received from the SFC, the 
College will complete works on the main building during 2021-22 with an extension to the 
front entrance. 
 
 
We consider that appropriate attention is given to the estate and assets, and that their 
maintenance is factored into long term plans and discussions. 
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Governance and transparency 
 

Dimension 

Governance and transparency covers the effectiveness of scrutiny and governance 
arrangements, leadership and decision making and transparent reporting of financial and 
performance information. 

 
 

Our conclusion 

West Lothian College has governance arrangements in place that provide appropriate 
scrutiny of decisions made by the Board of Governors . We consider the additional 
governance arrangements made by the College to deal with the impact of COVID-19 to be 
appropriate.  

 
 

Governance arrangements 

Our work in this area has considered the overall governance arrangements in place at the 
College, reviewed the financial and performance reporting to the Board of Governors , and 
reviewed the minutes of committees to inform our assessment of the appropriateness of 
the governance structure. We have also attended Audit Committees during the year. 

Financial papers submitted to committees are relevant and timely. Each paper has a 
summary setting out the purpose of the paper and the action required by the members. 
Minutes are understandable and contain detail of discussions and rationale for decision 
making. 

At 31 July 2021, the Board consisted of 18 members, 9 female (including the Principal) and 
9 male. In the current year the Board has continued to maintain a gender balance that 
meets with the objective of the Gender Representation on Public Boards (Scotland) Act 
2018. 

The key committees’ membership comprises of, and are chaired by Board members, with 
each also containing the Principal, with the exception of the Audit Committee. In addition, 
the Chair of the Board is also not permitted to be a member of the Audit Committee. 
Appropriate College officers attend committees and present reports as required. 
 

During the year, the College had a co-opted independent member on the Audit 
Committee, who was appointed for their specific skills and expertise. We have found this 
arrangement works well, and encourage the College to continue this, where the need 
arises in future years if possible.  
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Covid-19 Governance arrangements 

Following the Government announcement of the initial lockdown in 2020, the College’s main 
form of teaching was online during the year as the ongoing Coivd-19 pandemic. As the law 
and regulations changed and lockdowns occurred during the year, online teaching was used.  

As well as acting within government guidelines, student engagement was a main priority of 
the college throughout the pandemic as the remoteness of the new learning style had an 
impact on student experience. A Covid-19 committee meets every Friday within the college 
to discuss case numbers, government guidelines and ensuring that student interaction 
remains positive. Some of the ways student engagement was encouraged was through 
virtual industry talks, online student conferences and expert master classes. As a result the 
college has seen a very positive reaction to the blended learning approach.  

In September 2020, most students returned to a more campus-based learning, with some of 
the less practical subjects continuing to be accessed remotely.  

Board and Committees continued to meet on the same schedule during this period using 
appropriate virtual platforms. 

Lockdowns occurred throughout 2020/21 and the threat of imminent lockdowns remained 
throughout. The College was set up to deal with these effectively due to their blended 
learning approach being operational from the prior year.  

We have reviewed the College’s Covid-19 Governance arrangements and conclude that 
there is evidence of appropriate governance arrangements in this regard.  
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Governance Statement 

As part of our audit we have read the governance statement included in the annual report. 
The governance statement sets out the corporate governance framework in place throughout 
the reporting year, the internal controls in operation, the work of internal audit and the overall 
efficiency and effectiveness of the governance framework. 

The governance statement confirms the College’s compliance with the 2016 Code of Good 
Governance for Scotland’s Colleges. 

We are required to read and provide an opinion on the governance statement. In our opinion, 
the information contained within is consistent with the financial statements. We also consider 
that the governance statement has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and further directions made by the Scottish Funding Council. 

 
 

Internal audit 

An effective internal audit service is an important element of any organisation’s governance 
arrangements. Internal audit provide the College with independent assurance on internal 
control and corporate governance processes. The internal audit function at the College is 
provided by Azets. Internal Audit have attended Audit Committees throughout the year and 
have produced 8 reports to support the overall Annual Internal Audit Opinion.  

 
 

Transparency 

Transparency means that service users and the public have access to understandable 
information about how the College is making decisions and using its resources. There is a 
commitment to transparency, with the minutes and papers of the Board of Governors and  key 
committees being available on the website.
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Our fee 
 
 
 

Fees for work as the College’s appointed auditor 

We reported our proposed fees for the delivery of our work in our Audit Strategy 
Memorandum, presented to the Audit Committee on 24 June 2021. Having completed our 
work for the 2020/21 financial year, we can confirm that our final fees are as follows: 

 
 

Area of work 
Proposed fee 

2020/21 
Final fee 
2020/21 

Auditor remuneration £14,260 £14,260 

 
Pooled costs 

 
£900 

 
£900 

 
Contribution to Audit Scotland costs 

 
£590 

 
£590 

Total Fee £15,750 £15,750 
 
 

 
We confirm that these fees are in line with the scale fee set by Audit Scotland. We also 
confirm that we have not undertaken any non-audit services for the College in the year. 

05 
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Draft Management Representation letter 
Dear Sirs 

LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
 

We confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief the following representations given to 
you in connection with your audit of the College’s accounts for the period ended 31 July 
2021. 
We acknowledge as members of the Board of Governors our responsibility for ensuring: 
a) the financial statements are free of material misstatements including omissions; 
b) that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

College as at 31st July 2021; 
c) all the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your 

audit and all the transactions undertaken by the College have been properly reflected 
and recorded in the accounting records; 

d) all other records and related information, including minutes of all management 
meetings, have been made available to you; 

e) the accounting policies used are detailed in the financial statements and are consistent 
with those adopted in the previous financial statements and are in accordance with the 
Accounts Direction issued by the Scottish Funding Council (SFC) under the terms of the 
Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992; and 

f) compliance with the terms and conditions of the Financial Memorandum issued to the 
Board of Governors  by the SFC. 

  
Azets acted as Internal Auditors to the College during the year. All reports issued to the 
College and our responses to them have been made available to you. 
 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control 
systems to prevent and detect fraud. We have disclosed to you the results of our risk 
assessment that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud. There have 
been no irregularities (or allegations of irregularities) involving management, employees 
who have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material effect on 
the financial statements. 
  
The College has no liabilities or contingent liabilities other than those disclosed in the 
accounts. 
  
All claims in connection with litigation that have been, or are expected to be, received have 
been properly accrued for in the financial statements
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There have been no events since the balance sheet date that require disclosure or which 
would materially affect the amounts in the accounts, other than those already disclosed or 
included in the accounts. Should further material events occur, which may necessitate 
revision of the figures included in the financial statements or inclusion of a note thereto, we 
will advise you accordingly. 
 
The College has had at no time during the year any arrangement, transaction or agreement 
to provide credit facilities (including loans, quasi-loans or credit transactions) for the Board 
of Governors  nor to guarantee or provide security for such matters. 
  
We confirm that we have disclosed to you all related party transactions relevant to the 
College and that we are not aware of any further related party matters that require 
disclosure in order to comply with the requirements of charities legislation, the Statement of 
Recommended Practice for Further and Higher Education accounts or accounting 
standards. 
 
The College has not contracted for any capital expenditure other than as disclosed in the 
accounts. 
  
The College has satisfactory title to all assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on 
the College’s assets, except for those that are disclosed in the financial statements. 
  
We are not aware of any irregularities, including fraud, involving existing management or 
employees of the College, nor are we aware of any breaches or possible breaches of 
statute, regulations, contracts, agreements or College's Constitution and Articles of 
Government which might result in the College suffering significant penalties or other loss. 
No allegations of such irregularities, including fraud, or such breaches have come to our 
attention. 
 
We confirm that we are not aware of any possible or actual instance of non-compliance 
with those laws and regulations which provide a legal framework within which the College 
conducts its business. 
  
We confirm that, in our opinion, the College is a going concern on the grounds that current 
and future sources of funding or support will be more than adequate for the College’s 
needs. We have considered a period of twelve months from the date of approval of the 
financial statements. We believe that no further disclosures relating to the College’s ability 
to continue as a going concern need to be made in the financial statements. 
 
We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic on the College, including the impact of mitigation measures and uncertainties, 
and that the disclosure in the Performance Report fairly reflects that assessment. 
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We confirm that we have carried out an assessment of the potential impact of the United 
Kingdom leaving the European Union, including the potential outcomes at the end of the 
Implementation Period, and that the disclosure in the Performance Report fairly reflects that 
assessment. 
 
We confirm that no unadjusted misstatements have been brought to our attention. 

 
We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where appropriate, of 
supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of 
the above representations to you. 
  
  
Yours faithfully 
  
  
  
.………………………………………….. Chair of Board  
  
  
…………………………………………….. Principal 
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Draft Audit Report  

Independent auditor’s report to the members of the Board of Governors  of West Lothian 
College, the Auditor General for Scotland and the Scottish Parliament 

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements 

Opinion on financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements in the annual report and accounts of West Lothian 
College for the year ended 31 July 2021 under the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 
1992 and section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005. The 
financial statements comprise  the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure, 
Statement of Changes in Reserves, Balance Sheet, and Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The  financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice). 

 
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements: 

 
• give a true and fair view in accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) 

Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council of the state of 
the College’s affairs as at 31 July 2021 and of its deficit for the year then ended; 

 
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice; and 
 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Further    and Higher 
Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding 
Council, the Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, and regulation 14 of 
The Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (as amended). 

 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing 
(UK) (ISAs (UK)), as required by the Code   of Audit Practice approved by the Auditor General for 
Scotland. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We were appointed by 
the Auditor General on 31 May 2016. The period of total uninterrupted appointment is five years. 
We are independent of the college in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial  Reporting Council’s Ethical 
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. Non-audit services prohibited by the Ethical Standard were not provided to the 
college. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
 

  

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2016/code_audit_practice_16.pdf
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Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting 
We have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is appropriate. 
 
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to 
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the college’s 
ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve 
months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 
 
Risks of material misstatement 
We report in a separate Annual Audit Report, available from the Audit Scotland website, the most 
significant assessed risks of material misstatement that we identified and our judgements thereon. 
 
Responsibilities of the Board of Governors for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board of Governors 's Responsibilities, the Board 
of Governors  is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with the financial reporting framework, and for such internal control as the 
Board of Governors  determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Governors  is responsible for assessing the 
college’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users  taken on the basis of these financial statements irregularities, 
including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and    regulations. 
 
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities outlined above to detect material 
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Procedures include: 

 
• obtaining an understanding of the applicable legal and regulatory framework and how the 

college is complying with that framework; 
 

• identifying which laws and regulations are significant in the context of    the College; 
 

• assessing the susceptibility of the financial statements to material misstatement, 
including how fraud might occur; and 

 
• considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate competence and 

capabilities to identify or recognise non-compliance  with laws and regulations. 
 

http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
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The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is 
affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness of the college’s 
controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures performed. 

 
Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities that 
result from error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. The capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities 
depends on factors such as the skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of 
manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the relative size of individual amounts manipulated, 
and the seniority of those individuals involved. 

 
A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 
located on the Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report. 

 
 
Reporting on regularity of expenditure and income 

Opinion on regularity 
In our opinion in all material respects the expenditure and income in the financial statements were 
incurred or applied in accordance with any applicable enactments and guidance issued by the 
Scottish Ministers. 

 
Responsibilities for regularity 
The Board of Governors is responsible for ensuring the regularity of expenditure and income. In 
addition to our responsibilities to detect material misstatements in the financial statements in 
respect of irregularities, we are responsible for expressing an opinion on the regularity of 
expenditure and income in accordance with the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 
2000. 

 
 
Reporting on other requirements 

Opinion prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland on audited part of the Remuneration 
and Staff Report 
We have audited the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report described as audited. In our 
opinion, the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report has been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Further and Higher Education (Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made 
thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council. 

 
Statutory other information 
The Board of Governors is responsible for the statutory other information in the annual report and 
accounts. The statutory other information comprises the Performance Report and the 
Accountability Report excluding the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report. 

 
Our responsibility is to read all the statutory other information and, in doing so consider whether 
the statutory other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, 

https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx
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based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this  
statutory other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the statutory other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon except on the Performance Report and 
Governance Statement to the extent explicitly stated in the following opinions prescribed by the 
Auditor General for Scotland. 

 
Opinions prescribed by the Auditor General for Scotland on  Performance Report and 
Governance Statement 
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

 
• the information given in the Performance Report for the financial year for which the 

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that 
report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council; and 

 
• the information given in the Governance Statement for the financial year for which the 

financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that 
report has been prepared in accordance with the Further and Higher Education 
(Scotland) Act 1992 and directions made thereunder by the Scottish Funding Council. 

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We are required by the Auditor General for Scotland to report to you if, in    our opinion: 

 
• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

• the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration and Staff Report are not 
in agreement with the accounting records; or 

 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters. 

 
Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities 
In addition to our responsibilities for the annual report and accounts, our conclusions on the wider 
scope responsibilities specified in the Code of Audit Practice are set out in our Annual Audit Report. 
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Use of our report 

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with the Public 
Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 and for no other purpose. In accordance with 
paragraph 120 of the Code of Audit Practice, we do not undertake to have responsibilities to 
members or officers, in their individual capacities, or to third parties. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Lucy Nutley 
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
 
Mazars LLP 
Apex 2 
97 Haymarket Terrace 
Edinburgh 
EH12 5HD 
 
[Full date] 

 

Lucy Nutley is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 21 of the Public Finance 
and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 
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Independence 
As part of our ongoing risk assessment we monitor our relationships with you to identify any 
new actual or perceived threats to our independence within the regulatory or professional 
requirements governing us as your auditors. 

We can confirm that no new threats to independence have been identified since issuing the 
Audit Strategy Memorandum and therefore we remain independent. 
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Introduction 
 
This report provides an overview of the health and safety standards at West 
Lothian College from July to September 2021. The country moved to beyond 
level 0 which meant a change on campus with reduction from two metres to 
one metre social distancing. Other mitigations stayed in place including 
reduced class sizes, online learning, ventilation, mask wearing, enhanced 
cleaning and hand hygiene. This continuation of enhanced mitigations reduced 
the risk to students who had still to be included in the vaccination programme.  
Staff returned to campus on 16 August and students returned to campus on 
30 August. The number of students on campus increased from 11% to 25% in 
the July to September quarter. Staff continue to home working where possible 
and a more hybrid model of working has been adopted for progressing into this 
new academic year. 
 
Accidents, Incidents, Near Misses and Investigations 
 
The monitoring, recording and reporting of accidents, incidents and near 
misses are legal requirements that the college promotes across the campus. As 
well as meeting our legal obligations, this allows us to identify where and how 
risks arise. Each report is fully investigated by the college’s Health and Safety 
Officer. Appendix 1 shows details of all investigations during this period. 
 
During this reporting period, there have been eight HSF1 forms completed 
relating to first aid/accidents/incidents and near misses. As a comparison, 
during this period in 2020 there were seven forms completed (there was 
significantly less student activity in that period). Certain work-related injuries, 
cases of disease and near misses must be reported to the Health and Safety 
Executive (HSE). There was one RIDDOR reported to HSE. 
 

 
Data Collection 2021 to date 
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Health and Safety Management 
 

The following arrangements are in place to control health and safety risks in 
order to meet the legal requirements and show commitment to all stakeholders: 

 
Health and Safety Committee  
Last Health and Safety Committee meeting 
was held on: 

24 September 2021 

Minutes from meeting have been posted on 
Sharepoint  

Yes 

Total Action points raised   11 
Actions Raised against Health and 
Safety Officer  

 5 Health and Safety Officer 
currently outstanding   

 1 

Next meeting scheduled for 8 December 2021 
Employer’s Liability Insurance  
Zurich Employers Liability Insurance   Expires on 31 July 2022 
Interventions  
HSE Inspections in the last 12 months 0 
Improvement Notices issued in last 12 
months 

0 

Prohibition Notices issued in last 12 
months 

0 

Improvements issued by Fire Service in 
last 12 months 

0  

Risk assessments  
Number of risk assessments due for review All departments review Risk 

Assessment for the start of 
2021-22 term 
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Number of new Risk assessments 3x Maternity Risk Assessment 
1x DSE assessment 
1x Manual handling 
Welding Risk Assessment 
First Aid provision Risk 
Assessment 

Fire Risk Assessment  
Fire Risk Assessment in place Yes 
Review Date October 2021 
Health and Safety Policy  
Policy Statement approved by Jackie Galbraith 
Next Review date August 2021 
Responsibilities currently unassigned 0 
Health and safety Procedures * Review date 
Accident/Incident reporting June 2021 
Lone Working May 2021 
Inspection and Auditing July 2021 
Emergency Evacuation  July 2021 
Work Placement August 2022 
Excursions  June 2021 
COSHH  April 2021 
First Aid  June 2021 
Lock out/Tag out June 2021 
Noise at Work June 2021 
Business Continuity Policy Framework July 2022 
Counter terrorism  February 2023 
Fire Safety Actions  
Outstanding actions related to fire 
inspection 

0 

Overdue actions related to fire inspection 0 
Last emergency evacuation drill (daytime) 21 September 2021 
Last emergency evacuation drill (evening) 21 September 2021 
Next emergency evacuation drill (daytime) April 2022 
Next emergency evacuation drill (evening) April 2022 
* An extension on updating procedures was agreed due to Covid work  

Policies and Procedures   
 

Scheduled events 
  
The NHS vaccination bus attended college on 30 September for two days and 
was open to staff, students, their families and the local community. Uptake over 
the two days was around 100.  
 
Monthly College Development Network meetings have been taking place with 
other colleges along with the Health and Safety Executive and Healthy Working 
Lives to discuss health and safety related issues, share best practice and 
changes to guidance.  
 



 
  
 

  H&S Quarterly July to September 2021 5 
 

Fortnightly meetings continue between Health Protection Scotland and other 
colleges and universities proving to be an invaluable resource with up to date 
information regarding Covid statistics, vaccine roll-out and testing. 
 
The former Health and Safety Officer at Dundee and Angus (D&A) presented 
on the Learning Occupational Health by Experiencing Risks (LOcHER) to 
faculties. This initiative is a new approach for students and apprentices to help 
them identify and understand the health and safety risks in their area of study. It 
originated from the Health and Safety Executive and allows young people and 
new workers to learn about the associated risks and showcase how they can 
protect their own and fellow workers’ health, safety and wellbeing. The 
presentation demonstrated how D&A have embedded this into their learning 
and how it can be replicated in our college. 
 
Due to staff relocating to different campus buildings, fire marshal roles had to 
be re-established for each building. A new list of fire marshals was created 
ensuring that areas had full coverage now that staff are hybrid working. New 
volunteers were given initial training by health and safety officer and all fire 
marshals will be given new/refresher fire marshal training including how to use 
fire extinguishers. 
 
Staff Experience Group 
 
A reminder of the staff mental health support mechanisms was publicised along 
with specific information about Togetherall (a peer support platform for students 
and staff) and Able Futures (a support scheme, funded by the Department for 
Work and Pensions offering staff personalised, confidential support from a 
dedicated mental health professional).  
 
Free flu vaccination vouchers and free yoga lessons were offered to staff. 

 
Staff participated in the national ‘Cycle September’ challenge, cycling a total of 
1,551 miles in an initiative to promote active travel and exercise for which the 
college was placed second nationally for its sector and employer size. 
  

         Mandatory Training 

Staff mandatory training was refreshed for 2021-22 during this reporting period, 
and now includes an Action Counter Terrorism module and modules relating to 
student mental health. 

 
Student Mental Health (student support information is reported to each 
Learning and Teaching Committee meeting) 
 
The Student Support team has been contacting students who have disclosed a 
support need, getting to know student groups and building relationships with 
students and understanding their needs.   
 
They have been helping those who are anxious or who have Autism Spectrum 
Disorder get started at college, helping them build their confidence, familiarise 
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themselves with college and the new routine this brings. The team has been 
carrying out needs assessments, setting up and supporting alternative 
assessment arrangements, helping students complete their Disabled Student 
Award application and working with lecturers to put support plans in place.   
 
A team member is allocated to each full-time group, they are working closely 
with lecturers, and many students are engaging well with support, with the 
majority of 1-1 weekly meetings happening online. The partnership approach 
between the student support team and faculty staff has continued and initial 
meetings have taken place to ensure students who have support needs are 
engaging, lecturers are working with the team and that there are no concerns.   
 
Work has been done with the Information Systems team to improve recording 
of information and sharing of information with lecturers. Staff Advantage can 
now be used for recording and reporting, and keeping a risk register. This 
should reduce the need for manual sharing of information and create better-
detailed student support log, and the summarising and reporting of this 
information should be greatly improved.  
 
The work of the Man Cave continues, and we are continuing to offer LT4U, a 
Listening Service through Listen Well Scotland volunteers. 
 
The counselling service has continued to be a valuable support for students, with 
the counsellors working at almost full capacity.  As well as continuing to offer the 
service through teams, zoom, messaging, phone and email, the counsellors can 
now offer face-to-face counselling in a dedicated room. This has enhanced their 
service for students who prefer this mode.   
 
We have a Student Support team member with specific responsibility for mental 
health who is continuing to work with the student support team, the Student 
Association and staff across college to create resources, workshops and 
sessions which will develop a mentally healthy student population.  
 
We continue to contribute to the safeguarding work done cross college and we 
have dealt with nine referrals so far, this academic year, the main issues have 
been relating to significant mental health difficulties / suicidal ideation. 
 
Prevent 
 
The Prevent group continued to meet to discuss future planning and 
communications to the college staff and students. Now that the 
counterterrorism and radicalisation training has been included in the annual 
mandatory training, the group intends to present to curriculum teams to discuss 
the process further and how to refer students of concern to safeguarding and 
Prevent.  
 
There is continuous collaboration with NHS Lothian, and Lothian and Scottish 
Borders contest groups. The health and safety officer is the college’s Prevent 
lead and attends these meetings. 
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Changes to Covid19 Legislation/Guidance 
 
There were no changes to legislation, however Covid guidance was updated 
with the country moving to beyond level 0. 

 
Consultations and Internal Audits or Walk round inspections 
 
HSE Consultation July-August 2021 - The proposed changes to The Personal 
Protective Equipment at Work 1992 Regulations 
  
A walkaround of No.5 on the Square was undertaken by health and safety 
officer with the new learning and skills managers assessing Covid needs and 
set up for the new term. 
 
Covid cases   
 
The following positive Covid cases were reported during this quarter: 
 

• Staff - 24     
• Students - 56 

 
All of these cases were contacted and found to have been contracted through 
community transmission. Due to new guidelines issued by Health Protection 
Scotland (in partnership with college and universities) those who may have 
been in contact with a positive case were either given an inform and advise 
letter or close contacts identified and asked to go for a PCR. This information 
was also passed to Test and Protect so contact tracing could be followed up 
and cases were being notified. 
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Appendix 1 – Health and Safety Officers Investigation Findings 
 
  
No. Date Accident/Incident/ 

near miss 
HSF1 Detail Investigation 

1 6/7/21 Accident Cut finger cutting veg, first aider 
attended and cleaned and 
dressed cut 

No further action 

2 24/8/21 First aid As leaving class student 
collapsed as felt faint, first aider 
attended and student was 
collected by family member 

No further action 

3 24/8/21 Accident Member of staff was putting 
together a piece of equipment 
and there were two poles inside 
each other and one came out at 
full force and hit her above the 
eye.  A first aider attended and 
advised to go to A & E.  Another 
member of staff drove her 
where she received stitches. 

The accident was 
investigated and 
member of staff was off 
with nerve damage for 
over 7 days so was 
RIDDOR reportable. 
Health and Safety 
officer contacted the 
supplier to inform them 
that the packaging was 
in such a way that 
caused the items to 
come out in force and 
not labelled with a 
warning about them 
being inside one 
another 

4 30/8/21 Accident Student was completing a task 
in the forest classroom jumped 
onto a nail which was attached 
to a small piece of wood. This 
embedded into her foot. A first 
aider attended and called for an 
ambulance. 

The accident happened 
as the students were 
learning how to hazard 
spot prior to children 
attending the 
classroom. After two 
hours was taken to 
hospital by a family 
member due to 
ambulances being too 
busy 

5 9/9/21 First aid Lecturer asked for a first aider 
as the student had been 
complaining about pains in the 
upper chest area. First aider 
attended and student was sent 
home. 
 

No further action 

6 21/9/21 Accident Metal basketball cage lid was 
left sitting upright position.  
Student collected ball and lid 
fell forward and hit head. First 

Student was collected 
and went home 



 
  
 

  H&S Quarterly July to September 2021 9 
 

aider attended and advised to 
go to A & E if experience signs 
of concussion. 

7 27/9/21 First aid Student fell over at home then 
came into college the next day 
feeling in pain. First aider 
attended and advised to go to  
A & E 

No further action 

8 28/9/21 First aid Student fainted, first aider 
attended and was collected by 
family member and taken home 

No further action 
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Chairs Committee & Board of Governors 
 
BOARD DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 

Purpose 

This paper presents a summary of the Board Development Plan for discussion and 
agreement on the priority areas. 

Board Development Plan 

The actions noted in Appendix 1 reflect a continuous process of improvement, building 
on actions identified as part of the annual Board Effectiveness Self -Assessment or 
individual or committee reviews. 

Good progress is being made on actions, across a range of themes. Key updates 
include changes to the recruitment process that have now been implemented, and 
proposed changes to the risk management arrangements, as part of the work to 
embed a simple and effective process across the governance structure. 

Board Development - Responsibility 

It is the responsibility of every Board Member to raise any challenges or points of 
feedback that will ensure the Board and Committees continues to operate effectively.  
The Board Governance Advisor will encourage feedback from all stakeholders 
including guests and will provide guidance on potential areas of improvement, based 
on discussions and analysis of industry practices. 

Key Messages: 

• Board will be asked to agree if action taken to address issue is sufficient. 
Actions will remain open until evidence has been provided. 

• Actions that appear to be duplicates of previous actions will be assessed by the 
Board Governance Advisor to ensure it is captured as a unique action, with an 
explicit and measurable outcome, but duplicates may be removed. 

Action 

The Committee is asked to discuss the updated Board Development Plan in the 
Appendices.  

Lesley Aitkenhead 

Board Governance Advisor 

7 December 2021 
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Appendix 1 – Board Development Plan – Recommend to Close 
 

Ref Action Expected Outcome Owner Target 
Date

Status Update

2.1
We will present a review of curriculm plan for 21-22 and key performance 
indicators 19-20 to the Board.

Board will have a greater insight into the planned 
curriculm plan and measures of success.

VPL&A 01-Dec-21
Recommend 

to Close

Alll Board Members to participate in Curriculum Planning Event 
on 29 Sept.  Presentation from Vice Principals at December 
Board on Curriculum, including recording of event (to be 
shared).

2.3
We will seek the Board's approval of a full review of strategic risk register, 
mitigation and impact, with input from staff and external stakeholders.

Board Strategic Risk Register reviewed for 21/22 and 
reflects any new key risks facing college.

VPF&CS 30-Sep-21
Recommend 

to Close
Review of Inherent Risks and Risk Appetite completed at 
September Board, to reflect new Academic Year.

6.3
We will implement revised risk management processes, including to 
respective roles and responsibilities during 2021, with regular updates on 
progress provided to the Board.

Risk Management Arrangements will be simple, 
effective and provide adequate asurance to the Board 
that risks are being managed within agreed Risk 
Appetite.

Prin 30-Sep-21
Recommend 

to Close
Proposed change to Risk Management Arrangements, with 
Strategic Risk Register being presented to Board, for approval.

6.7
We will further develop the Committee Chair appointment process, 
including succession planning and shadowing options to support 
continuity and skills development. 

A review of the current skills matrix will be conducted, 
ahead of any planned Board or Committee requirement 
to ensure there is adequate coverage and a succession 
plan is in place for Board Members.

Chair/BGA 30-Dec-21
Recommend 

to Close

Recommendation to create new Chairs Committee, combining 
Nominations and Remuneration Committee, which will discuss 
and agree succession plan - paper for Sept Board approved.

7.3
We will create a revised Board & Committee Operating Schedule in 
conjunction with the Executive Team.

A Board Operating Schedule will help to confirm details 
of papers and attendees at meetings for the calendar 
year, and give Board members an overview for the AY.

BGA 30-Sep-21
Recommend 

to Close

Board Operating Schedule has been created as working 
document, and used to communicate dates, and papers for 21-
22 AY.  Board Operating Schedule has been agreed, with 
meeting dates scheduled for 22.

8.2
We will introduce a process of offering a 'mentor' for new Board & 
Committee Members as someone to have more informal discussion on the 
role, as a point of contact.

New Board Members will have mentor in place as part 
of induction process, to help settle into role.

BGA 30-Dec-21
Recommend 

to Close Mentor has been agreed for New Board Member.
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Appendix 2 – Board Development Plan – Open Actions (Oldest to Newest) 
 
 

   

 

Ref Action Expected Outcome Owner Target 
Date

Status Update

8.3
We will capture 'real life' experiences of being involved in a Board, to include 
as part of the recruitment process, which may encourage a more diverse 
interest in Board vacancies.

Board Members experiences can be shared to raise 
awareness of role on Board to provide insight to a wider 
range of candidates.

BGA 30-Sep-21 Not Started

1.4
Board Members will participate in a strategic session to assess the impact of 
emergency circumstances on the student experience.

Strategic session is completed within agreed timeline and 
identifies any learning from emergency circumstances.

VPF&CS 30-Nov-21 Not Started

6.6
We will update the revised structure in the annual accounts for information & 
transparency. 

Annual accounts will reflect the revised structure. Chair 30-Nov-21 On Track
Annual accounts due to be approved at December Board, 
including revised structure.

4.2
We will identify a network of contacts and external stakeholders who will 
help to raise profile of Board opportunities to a diverse Group.

Strong network in place to support succession plans, with 
potential for shadowing of current Board Members.

BGA/Chair 01-Dec-21 On Track

Two phased approach to recruitment, with second phase focused 
on longer term recruitment and sucession planning.  Recruitment 
phase 1 completed successfully, and next phase ongoing.

6.4
We will complete a post implementation review of Risk Management 
Practices to ensure the risk policy and strategy fully reflects the forward 
process thereafter. 

All agreed and implemented changes to risk management 
processes will be assessed to confirm exected outcomes.  

Prin 30-Dec-21 Not Started
Implementation of revised approach will be assessed, once 
approved by Audit Committee & Board.

8.1
We will identify opportunities for Board Members to gain additonal external 
insight in terms of practices at other colleges.

Board Members who are new to role will benefit from 
gaining insight and perspective from how other colleges 
governance processes operate, that will help them to 
identify areas of best practice.

BGA 30-Dec-21 On Track
BGA will identify and share opportunities for training and 
development with all Board Members, as part ongoing 
development plan.

6.1

We will demonstrate more proactive pursuit and early engagement with the 
aim of creating a more diverse representation on the Board, such as those 
from an ethnic minority background. 

Diversity of Board is inclusive in terms of protected 
charateristics and also in terms of how it operates.  This will 
be observed in terms of contribution to the Board and 
comparison with benchmark data.

BGA 31-Dec-21 On Track

Diversity of Board was discussed, with external speakers from 
AdvancedHE on the subject of diversity and inclusion.  
Recruitment plan in place that will address longer term strategic 
goals for diversity and inclusion.
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Appendix 4 – Board Development Plan – Closed Actions (Post July 21) 
 

 

Ref Action Expected Outcome Owner Target 
Date

Status Update

1.2

We will agree a timetable of events that will enable Board Members to 
attend college events, including staff conferences, webinars, where 
appropriate.

Students and Staff are better able to articulate the role 
of the Board and have increased awareness of the 
Board Members.  Board Members will feel a greater 
connection with the college.

BGA 30-Sep-21 Completed

Regular 'Meet the Team' events have been set up ahead of each 
of the Committees, enabling staff to meet Board Members.  
Board members offered a number of opportunities to join staff 
and students events, throughout the year - Celebrating Success; 
Open Day; Graduation Day; Curriculum Planning.  Recommend 
to close. 

2.5

We will arrange a Strategic Session for Board Members covering the key 
points of the 5-year estates strategy and buiness case that will to remain a 
discrete entity.

Strategic session on 5 year estates plan will be 
presented to June Board for information.

VPF&CS 30-Jun-21 Completed
Presented to June 21 Board Meeting and agreed that regular 
updates would be provided to the Board.

3.3

We will review the Board Recruitment Process  to ensure it addresses the 
need to bring in and retain private sector non-execs.  The balance of skills 
and experience remains key and the issue will be raised with Scottish 
Government as appropriate

A review of the current skills matrix will be conducted, 
ahead of any planned Board or Committee requirement 
to ensure there is adequate coverage and a succession 
plan is in place for Board Members.

Chair 01-Sep-21 Completed
Skills Matrix completed and presented to September 21 Board, 
with recommendations to address gaps.

4.1
We will highlight the importance of improving Board diversity in 
recruitment material

Recruitment material includes explicit reference to 
diversity and inclusion.

BGA 01-Sep-21 Completed
Information Pack and advert reviewed by members of the West 
Lothian Race Forum to ensure language was inclusive.  

5.1
We will maintain the Board Development Plan as a live document following 
discussions and input at Board and other meetings

Board Development Plan to be included as standing 
agenda of Board Committees and updated with any 
progress or new actions.

BGA 01-Sep-21 Completed
Board Development Plan is updated and presented to all Chair 
Committees and Board Meetings.

7.1
We will gain further insight into current Cyber Security Arrangements 
within the college, including the possible use of the NCSC Cyber Toolkit.  

Greater insight on Cyber Security will help Board gain 
comfort on areas of cyber risk within college and role of 
Board in supporting the Cyber Security Strategy.

VP, P&I 30-Aug-21 Completed

New Info Systems and Digital Infrastructure Report presented 
to Audit Committee is aimed at providing greater insight on Info 
Security and Cyber related issues.  Audit Committee to agree 
how this information will be shared with Board, to provide 
assurance.
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Board of Governors 
 
Register of Interests 
 
Purpose 
 
This paper presents a summary of the Register of Interests for Board Members 
as at December 2021.  This is a requirement of the Code of Governance and 
a key responsibility of a publicly funded body, to ensure there is no potential 
areas of conflict. 
 
Action 
 
The committee is asked to note the Register of Interests and advise the Board 
Governance Advisor of any changes. 
 
 
 
Lesley Aitkenhead 
Board Governance Advisor 
7 December 2021 
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Scottish Colleges Code of Governance  

 
This paper presents a summary of the Register of Interests for Board Members in the 
Financial Year January 2020 to January 2021.  This is a requirement of the Code of 
Governance1. 
 

 

Alex Linkston (Board Chair) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration None (Retired) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial West Lothian Highland Games CIC 
7 Non Financial Prince’s Trust Scotland (Council Member) 
7 Non Financial Colleges Scotland (Board Member) 
7 Non Financial Colleges Scotland Employers Association (Chair) 
7 Non Financial Cumbernauld Theatre (Board Member) 

 
Sue Cook (Vice Chair; Chair Audit Committee) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration Self Employed Consultant 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial West Lothian Schools Appeal Panel (Member) 
7 Non Financial Justice of the Peace (Lothian & Borders) 
7 Non Financial Prince’s Trust West Lothian (Chair) 
7 Non Financial Diabetes UK (Chair of Families Group) 
7 Non Financial Colleges Scotland Audit Committee (Member) 
7 Non Financial Scottish Justices Association (Board Member) 

 
Jackie Galbraith (Principal and Chief Executive) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration West Lothian College (Principal and Chief Executive) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial None 

                                                
1 “Incorporated colleges and regional boards must maintain and publicly disclose a current register of interests for all board members. 
Board members should declare any conflicts of interest in the business of the meeting prior to the commencement of each meeting of 
the board and its committees and withdraw from meetings as appropriate.” 

 



       Board of Governors – Register of Interests    

__________________________________________________________________  

Private & Confidential - December 2021  

 
Elaine Cook (Non-Executive Member) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration West Lothian Council (Depute Chief Executive) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts Provides IT and payroll facilities to West Lothian College under 

a Shared Service Agreement ending in March 2021. 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial Educational Institute of Scotland (Member) 

 
 
 

Iain McIntosh (Chair Learning & Teaching Committee) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration None (Retired) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial None 

 
Richard Lockhart (Non-Executive Member) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration Scottish Futures Trust (Associate Director) 
2 Related Undertakings Taycare Health Limited (Director) 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial None 

 
Tom Bates (Non-Executive Member) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration Lareine Engineering Ltd, Thomas Johnstone Ltd (Director) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial National Association of Rooflight Manufacturers (Member) 
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Frank Gribben (Senior Independent Member) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration Self Employed Consultant 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial University of the Highlands and Islands (Non Exec role) 

 
Lynne Hollis (Non-Executive Member) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration Self Employed Consultant 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial None 

 
Moira Niven (Chair Finance & General Purposes Committee) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration None (retired) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial Lord Lieutenant, West Lothian 
7 Non Financial President of Lowland Reserve Force and Cadet Association 

 
Colin Miller 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration Burness Paull LLP (Partner) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial None 
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Neil Sinclair (Staff Member) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration West Lothian College (Lecturer) 
1 Remuneration Self Employed Photographer 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial None 

 
Julia Simpson (Staff Member) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration West Lothian College (Employee) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial None 

 
Susanne Stahly  (Non-Executive Member) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration Kiros HR Solutions (Director) 
1 Renumeration Scottish Agricultural Wages Board (Board Member) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities The Royal Bank of Scotland Group Plc 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial The Edinburgh Dog & Cat Home (Director, Trustee & Vice 

Chair) 
7 Non Financial The Frisson Foundation (Trustee) 
7 Non Financial Faculty of Advocates Complaints Committee & Disciplinary 

Tribunal (Lay Member) 
 

Jeanette Dobson (Student Association President) 
Category Category 
1 Remuneration Student Association (President) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial None 
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Seonaid Crosby (Non-Executive Member) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration Scottish Futures Trust (Associate Director) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial Trustee & Director Link Education International 
7 Non-Financial Link Community Development Scotland 

 
Kirsti Clark (Student Association Vice President) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration Student Association (Vice President) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial None 

 
Lesley Aitkenhead (Board Governance Advisor) 
Category Interest 
1 Remuneration West Lothian College (Board Governance Advisor) 
2 Related Undertakings None 
3 Contracts None 
4 House, Land, Buildings None 
5 Shares & Securities None 
6 Gifts & Hospitality None 
7 Non Financial Vice Chair – Tide (together in dementia everyday) Charity 
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